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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders” total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investment Trust pic {the “Company” or the
“Trust™) was fermed in 1905 and has been a dedicated
property investor since 1982. The Company is an
Investment Trust and its shares are premium listed on the
tondon Stock Exchange.

BENCHMARK

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by investing in
shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses on an international basis, although,
with & Pan-European benchmark, the majority of the
investments will be located in that geographical area. The
Company also invests in investment property located in
the UK only.

Further details of the Investment Policies, the Asset
Allocation Guidelines and palicies regarding the use of
gearing are set oul in the Strateqic Report on page 25 and
the entire portfolio is shawn on page 18.

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company’s
alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM") with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River Capital
LLP {"the Portfolic Manager” or "the Manager”). Marcus
Phayre-pMudge has managed the portfolio since 1 April
2011 and been part of the Fund Management team since
1997,
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INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all independent of the fanager and
meet regularly to consider investment strategy, to monitor
adherence to the stated objective and investment policies
and 1o review performance. Details of how the Board
operates and fulfils its responsibilities are set out in the
Report of the Directors on page 41.

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out
opposite and Historical Perfarmance can be found on page
. Key Performance Indicators are set out in the Strateqic
Report on pages 26 and 27,

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that its
shares can be recommended by Independent Financial
Advisers (“IFAs™) in the UK to ordinary retail investors in
accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA")
rules in relation to non-mainstream investment preducts
and intends tc continue to do so. The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restrictions, which apply to non-mainstream
investment products, because they are shares in an
authorised investment trust.

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder information and details of how to
invest in TR Property Investment Trust ple, including an
investment through an ISA or saving scheme, can be
found on pages 111 and 112. This information can also be
found on the Trust’s website www.trproperty.com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 1



Financial Highlights and Performance

Balance sheet
Net asset value per share
Shareholders’ funds (£°000)

Shares in issue at the end of the year (m)

Net debt's

Share Price
Share price
Market capitalisation

Revenue
Revenue earnings per share

Year ended
31 March

Year ended
31 March

Dividends?

Interim dividend per share
Final dividend per share
Total dividend per share

parformance: Assets and Benchmark

Net Asset Value total return®®
Benchmark total returné
Share price total return®

ongoing tharges®®
Including perfarmance fee
Excluding performance fee

201 2020 Change
417.97p 358.01p +16.7%
1,326,433 1,136,453 +16.7%
3174 3174 +0.0%
16.5% 7.6%
392.50p 317.50p +23.6%
£1,246m £1,008m +23.6%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020 Change
7 _12.25p 14.62p -16.2%
5.20p 5.20p +0.0%
9.00p 8.80p +2.3%
~ 14.20p 14.00p +1.4%
+20.7% -11,5%
+15,9% -14.0%
+2873°Io -16.8%
+1,40% +0.80%
+0,65% +0.61%
+0.63% +0.59%

Excluding performance fee and direct property costs

1 Net debt is the total valye of loan notes, foans (including notional exposure to CFOs and Total Return Swap) fess ¢ash as a proportion of net asset value,

2. Dwidends per share are the dividends in respect of the financial year ended 31 Maich 2021 An intenm dwidend of 5.20p was paid in January 2021 A final dwvidend of
9.00p {2020: & 80p) will be paid an 4 August 2021 to shareholders on the register on 13 june 2021

The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 17 June 2021
3. The NAV Total Return for the year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company fram the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed

to be reinvesied on the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company's benchmark and other indices

4. The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the reievant ex-dividend date

5 Ongamg Cherges are calculated In accordance with the AIC methadology. The Ongeing Charges ratios provided in the Company’s Key Information Document are
calcufated in fine with the PRIPS regufation which is different 1o the AIC methodalogy

6 Comsidered 1 be an Allernative Performance Measuie as defined on paye 98.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Historical Performance
For the years ended 31 March

201 2012 2013 2004 2045 2016 207 2018 2019 202(“

Perforinance for the year:
Total Return (%)

NAV® 15.4 -8.5 25 224 28.3 8.2 8.0 15.5 91 -5 20.7
Benchmark® 15.2 -8.9 17.8 14.9 233 54 6.5 10.2 5.6 -14.0 15.9
share Pricet 12.6 -9.5 258 377 295 -16 91 255 6.2 -16.8 28.3

shareholders’ funds {£'m)

Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1118 1,256 1,328 1136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 118 1,256 1,328 1136 1,326
Sigma shares® 139 118 - - - - - - - - -

ordinary shares

Net revenye {pence per share)
Earnings . 6.94 707 6.74 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 1462 12.25
Dividendst . 6.00 6.60 700 745 770 8.35 10.50 12.20 13.50 1400  14.20

MAV per share (pence) 20710 18360 21525 25494 31812  335.56 35242 39564 418.54 358N 41797

share price (pence) 17710 154.50  186.30 24750 31050 29750 31450 382.506 33400 31750 39250

Indices of growth

Share pricet® 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179 222
Net Asset value® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 ™ 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 o 7 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPI 100 104 107 110 m 112 116 120 123 126 128
Benchrrleik(") 100 87 99 105 126 130 134 144 147 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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The NAY Total Return far each year is calcuiated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the refevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed tg be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices. This 15 considered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

Benchmark Index: composite index comprising the FTSE EPRA/NARET Developed Euiope TR index up 1o March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Develaped
Europe Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capilal.

The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date
The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012

Owidends per share in the year te which thew dedlaration relates and not the year they were paid

Share prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid.

Capital pnly values. These do not reflect dividends paid.

Price anly value of the indices set out In (B) above

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

Whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reperting period was very close 1o the
recent COVID-15 influenced nadir of global equity markets
in March 2020. Since then equity markets have been
determinedly focused on the future rather than reflecting
on the more immediate economic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic. As a result, I'm able to report
healthy returns for the year with a net asset value ["NAV")
total return of 20.7%, well ahead of the benchmark tatal
return of 15.9%. The share price total return was even
stronger at 28.3% as the discount nariowed cver the year.

Stock markets have taken great comfort from the huge
amount of central bank stimulus and state aid for both
corporates and individuals. Since November 2020, this
sense of supoort has been augmented by optimism
following the announcements and subsequent rollout of 3
range of vaccine programmes.

The crisis has forced a dramatic change in the way we work,
consume and relax. Over the last year our management team
has pondered not only the pace of these changes across a
wide range of property sectors but also their sustainability
once the world reverts to “the new normal”

Over the last quarter of the financial year under review
and into the start of the new one, we have seen very
dramatic share price movements as investors rotated
from companies cffering the safety of secure income
towards those offering greater risk, particularly where the
companies were trading at farge discounts to their asset
value. Your manager’s report will examine in more detail
how the portfolio structure has evolved through these
thematic rotations.



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Earnings for the year were 12.25) per share, 16Y% lower
than the prior year earnings of 14.62p.

The headline earnings per share figure is slightly deceptive,
earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous year,
but a significant tax refund and some further pricr period
withholding tax recoveries reduced the revenue tax charge
from an effective rate of 11.3% in 2020 to just 1.9% for the
financial year to March 2021. Further details of this are set
out in the Manager’s Report.

The Board has announced a final dividend of 9.00p per
share, bringing the full year dividend to 14.20p per share
{2020: 14.00p} an overall increase of 1.4% on the prior year
dividend. The Board is conscious of the income aspirations
of some ¢f our investor base and, although this dividend
is not fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves available. As tong as the Board has a reasonable
expectation of income returning to previous levels in the
megium term, the Board is happy to maintain a modest
level of dividend progression.

REVENUE OUTLOOK

Within our portfclio, the manager anticipates income

for the year to March 2022 to be split into three broadly
equal parts with one third suffering a reduction and in
some cases significant cuts or even suspensions, a third
with income returning to pre-pandemic levels, and the
balance offering some leve! of increase. We do not expect
total income levels to return to pre-COVID-19 levels within
the current financial year although we do expect an
improvement relative to 2020/21.

After allowing for the proposed dividend, revenue reserves
will still amount to 12.18p per share giving plenty of
capacity for the board to supplement the dividend again

in 2021/22, providing a return to pre-Covid levels can
reasonably be anticipated in the megium term.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years {rebased)
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Chairman’s Staternent continued

NET DEBT AND CURRENCIES

Gearing at the end of the year stood at 16.5% having
staried the year at 7.6%. Gearing fluctuaied considerably
throughcut the year, ranging between around 7.6% and
17.8% as market sentiment ebbed and flowed. This
demenstrates the benefit of the flexibility of our borrowing
structure, with a base level supported by our fixed
longer-term debt and the majority achieved through the
ievolving credit facilities and exposure through contracts
for difference ("CEDs").

sterling reached a low against the Euro in September
202G driven by fears of 3 no deal Brexit and remained
relatively weak until january 2021, As the new year arrived
and despite issues with bureaucracy for goads flowing
between the UK and Eurape, Brexit issues took a back
seat in investors’ minds as they focused on the route to
normalisation across the UK and Europe as the vaccine
programmes rolled out. The UK is clearly ahead af the
curve in this respect and Sterling strengthened steadily
towards our year end in March 2021.

Our policy is to maintain a hedged currency exposure in
line with the benchmark. Sterling represents around 27%
of the benchmark, therefore strengthening Sterling is 3
headwind tc the NAV,

Income is unhedged and around 65% of our income

is received in currencies other than Steriing, therefore
stronger Sterling reduces our income. Shghtly mere income
is received in the first half of the vear than the second, so
for the current year more was received in a period when
Sterling was weaker.

DISCOUNT AND SHARE REPURCHASES

The prior year end fell only two weeks after the market
lows following the announcement of the global COVID-19
pandemic and the shares started the new financial year
at a discount of 11.3%. The discount then moved arpund
between S% and 15% as market sentiment changed
through the roller coaster side of lockdowns, easings and
vaccine news. The avesage over the year was 30.2% but
closed at 6.1%. This closing of the discount over the year
meant that the share price return of 28.3% was well
ahead of the NAV return.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

No share buy-backs were made in the period, although
the discount was wide at various points during the year.
Many of our underlying stocks were also trading on wide
discounts and our manager focused our capital on those
opportunities.

THE BOARD

I am grateful to my Board colleagues and to the team

at TR for their suppoit and commitment this year. We
have met in person whenever the faw and common
sense allowed and “virtually” when necessary. Though
small, | believe the 8oard has an excellent batance and
spread of skills and experience apprapriate for the Trust's
abjectives. With twa relatively new members, and a
change in Chair, | have been keen to allow us all time

to settle into our roles. Even so, t am conscious of the
term of our SID, Simon Marrison whose independence,
skills and commitment are exernplary. He brings a unique
contribution with his continental property investment
expertise that is highly valued by us alt and that will be
hard to replace. Equally we always enjoy and benefit from
the introduction of a fresh and enquiring mind so we will
start the process of looking fer his replacement later this
year to allow an orderly succession.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
FACTORS (‘ESG’)

This year we have added more information on our
responsible investment approach. For many years we
have maintained a strang position in terms of voting

and engagement supported by our significant stakes in a
number of property companies. Our size in this specialist
area of the equity market has helped ensure that our
views are hieard. This engagement has been augmented
by the strength of BMO's Corporate Governance team and
their broader engagement record. We fully intend to keep
up and heighten pressure cn our investee companies

te enhance thelr standards of governance and we will

be increasing our expectations on both the provisicn of
data and on the Social and Environmental outcomes that
they deliver. Any long term support for management will
require companies to exhibit positive momeantum across
relevant measures.



AWARDS

The Tiust was the winner In the Specialist Equities
category of the Citywire Investment Trust Awards. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising in a broad range of equities and alternatives.

CITWIRE
WIRNEHR
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OUTLOOK

The pandemic has had a dramatic impact on the world
and on all aspects of real estate. In some instances this
was an acceleration of trends that were well underway
such as the structural shift to omnichanne! retailing. For
others, such as increased remote working, it has been a
very fast gestation period of an embryonic trend. Airport
hotel occupancy and business trave! will likely suffer a
long-term negative shift as companies embrace not only
a new generation of communication tools but also their
environmental credentials, The main common feature
across these examples is the difficulty in predicting the
scale and permanency of this evolution. What will be ‘the
new normal’ for these asset classes is the challenge for
our management team as we look forward to the post
pandernic world. What we can be sure about is that the
economic backdrop is @ world with hugely elevated levels
of government debt, ongoing central bank / governmental
stimulus packages and higher levels of domestic savings.

Al at a time when fixed income yields are at historically
low levets and much long duration sovereign debt offers
negative yields to redemption.

Real estate offers a substantial margin over fixed income
with the opportunity to reflect any economic recovery
through rental growth. As a real asset it also has some
infiation proofing credentials. However, as the last fifteen
months has reminded us, sentiment ¢an often override
fundamentals in liquid equity markets and our managers
will continue to focus on the assessment of earnings
sustainability and medium term growth potential.

)it

Chairman

3 June 2021

TR PROPERTY {NVESTMENT TRUST
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Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Net Asset Value total return for the year to 31 March
2021 was 20.7%, ahead of the benchmark tetal return of
15.9%. At the interim stage, | reported that Centinental
Furopean property companies had significantly
outperformed their UX counterparts (returns of 11.3% v
2.1%). The second half saw the compiete reverse. The UK's
perlermance in the second half was so streng that the

12 month performance of 15.1% (in GBP) outperformed
Continental Europe at 18.7% (in EUR).

The initial impact of the pandemic on European real estate
equities saw the benchmark fall 36% from the pre-Covid
peak of 19th February to the trough on 18 March 2020. Cur
fingncial year therefore started close to these depressed
levels and the steady recovery since then is reflected in
the healthy figures for the year under review. However it
is worth noting that collectively the sector remains nearly
15% below the pre-Covid peak.

This extraordinary year has clearly been like no other and
the qulf in performance of the different real estate sectors
(and their respective listed companies) requires the same
adjective. The year can be neatly divided into pre and post
the vaccine announcement.

From March to October investors focused on cwning
sustainable, pandemic proof income such as residential,
supermarkets and healthcare alengside logistics,
warehousing and industrial where the underlying tenants’
businesses had remained gpen and in many cases

were thriving. Consurmer facing sectors such a5 retail,
restaurants, hotel and leisure were shunned. We divide aur
universe of pan European real estate companies into 26
bespoke groups and over the 7 manths from the trough an
18th March 2020 our logistics / industrial group returned
+54% , German residential +60%, healthcare +36% whilst
UK retall fell 45% and European retail returned just 1%.
London retail also suffered falling 26% as tourism levels
(both domestic and international) colfapsed.

However, from November onwards we saw a complete
volte face as investors facused on the possibibty of

a normalising economic outloak post the vaccine
breakthrough. In our world that meant buying back into
the consumer facing sectors. Stocks exposed to these



sectors had been standing at farge discounts given the
market’s cxpectation of further asset value declines and
they enjoyed significant price recovery. Stocks such as
Hammerscn and Shaftesbury, who had both carried out
emergency capital raises (more on this fater), enjoyed
100% and 85% price appreciation frem their respective
{pre-vaccine announcement) capital raise prices.

The Trust was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandemic with overweights to European PRS (private
rented sector) particularly in Germany, supermarkets

{UK and Nordics), healthcare (mainly UK) and logistics /
industrial across both the UK and Eurape. These exposiires
drove much of the relative cutperformance from March to
November.

London exposed stocks suffered particularly as office
workers have not returned (we estimate office utilisation
rates at c25% versus a Continental average of over 50%)
and this combined with the ccllapse in tourism (both
domestic and international) has temporarily hollowed out
our global city. Our UK office exposure was concentrated
in decentralised offices through (15 and McKay whilst

we avoided London retail focused names such as Capco
and Shafteshury as well as those businesses with short
occupational leases such as Workspace.

As the reliefl / reopening / reflation” trade gathered
momentum, | closed our underweight exposure to
European shopping centres, bought back into some Central
London retail and renewed our exposure to office markets
particularly those cities with the shorter commute times.
Essentially | was still shying away from the largest two
conurbations (London and Paris) whilst adding te smaller
ones such as Madrid and Dublin and maintaining exposure
to decentralised office sectors in the UK, Sweden and
Germany.

The pendemic has turned much on its head” and in our
corner of the equity market it was the performance of
Swiss property companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicted. Traditionally a safe haven,
these stocks did not initlally recover from the March lows
with investars focused on the problematic retail exposure
of the largest listed companies. We continue to be
underweight the group.
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Another positive surprise has been in seif-storage which
repulled very steady numbers through the worst of the
year. Whilst our stock selection in the UX was correct
(Satestore total return +27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway success was Shurguard, the Continental player
returning +48%, which we didn't own. In cur defence, the
stock enjoyed strong demand from index trackers as it
entered various henchmarks midyear.

Most of 2020 was an understandably subdued

period for M&A corporate activity with one particular
exception, Norwegian offices. Entra (where we were a
top 20 shareholder) was the subject of a bidding war
between two Swedish listed players, Castellum and
Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget {also known as SBB). Whilst
neither successfully gained control, the share price total
return was 57%, our most successtul investment in the
period.

The portfolio has some gearing. This was reduced in
February and March 2020 but has subsequently returned
to pre-pandemic levels. Why have gearing in volatile
tirnes? The Trust continues to take advantage of its

closed ended structure and holds a number of illiquid
small cap stocks. These well-run companies (even when
exposad to outperforming subsectors) often suffer from
limited investor attenticn, being deemed too small. As 3
consequence, in rising markets they often underperform
their larger brethren (in market parlance their ‘bets’ s less
than one). Adding some gearing helps compensate for
these lower beta names. Our experience is that over time
the underlying property fundamentals will be recognised
and, if not, then the market will take them private or
merge them together. Our physical property exposure also
sits outside our benchmark and additional gearing ensures
that we are not underexpused to equities versus our
benchmark given that a propartion of capital is invested in
physical property.

OFFICES

0Of all the segments of the commercial real estate
landscape, the future demand for offices remains the
hardest to forecast. The two undeniable consequences of
the pandemic, for this asset class, has been the realisation
that employees of corporates of all sizes can work
remotely (for lang periods) if required and secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST o



Manager’s Report (ontin 2a

the next generation of 'best in class’ office accommodation
will be utilised very differently with tenants having new
priorities. Built into these demands will be the overarching
need for energy efficiency, carbaon neutrality and
sustainability through the life cycle of the building.

The take up figures for the last year (across the 15 major
cities we moenitar) offers little comparative value given the
inabritity for businesses to physically relocate in many of
these markets from March 2020. Taking London as a case
in point, Savills reported that West End take up fell frem
4.4m sq ftin 2019 to 1.7m in 2020. Office utilisation rates
through 2020 and into 2021 have varied hugely. A broad
rule of thumb was that the larger the city (and the longer
the average commute time) the lower the office utilisation
rate. Generally the smaller cities also had higher levels of
commuting by private transport or where workers were
using overground public transport. Scandinavian and Swiss
cities have seen almost normatised utilisation rates whilst
London and Paris remain sub 30%. Locking forward, what
is important to us is the amount of new space which was
scheduled to complete (construction was halted for very
short periods in most markets) and whether there are
signs of demand as we mave intg the post vaccine period.

Looking acress Curope as a whole, the combined effect of
reduced leasing activity and construction completions fed
10 100bps increase in vacancy to an average of 6.9% (BNP
data). This single statistic clearly hides a wide range of
levels. Unsurprisingly, London and Paris have experienced
the greatest increases from 5% to nearly 8% but Dublin
collects the wooden spoon with vacancy increasing to
over 9%. This is a gocd example of 3 small market where
a3 (termporary) demand strike meets a number of large
completions and refurbishments. However the historically
low levels of vacancy in many cities prior to the pandemic
have insulated most markets, with modest downward
maovements in prime rents recorded acrass the German
Big 6, Milan, Madrid, Oslo, Amsterdam and Stockholm.

The delivery of new office buildings has also been
deferred, particularly for tall buildings. The New London
Architecture’s Annual Tall Buildings Survey recorded

10 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 27% decline in planning applications for buiidings

aver 20 storeys in 2020 when compared with 2019. We
were surprised that the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
applications were in the Iatter part of the year and hints at
developer confidence regarding demand for new build.

Investment demand has remained very resilient almost
reqardless of shorl-term weakness in occupational
markets. The weight of capital seeking real assets is

a theme which will recur through this report. The rise

in the long end of the curve as the refiation theme
gathers momentum is proving very damaging for fixed
income structures. High quality ofiices - offering large iot
sizes - with secure income delivering 3.5-4% net yield

is attractive versus negative yielding sovereign bonds.
Further up the risk curve, opportunistic capital also remains
very active and listed development specialists such as
Great Portland Cstates and Derwent London have found it
hard to deploy capital amidst fierce competition.

The 2021 CBRE EMEA Investor Intentions Survey highlights
London as still the most attractive city for investment

in Europe with an estimated €40-45bn of global equity
looking to be deployed into the market across all types
of buildings. This is the highest figure since the survey
starting tracking demand in 2012. Whilst transaction
volumes slowed last year, the first two months of 2021
(traditionally a quiet time) have seen volumes reach
£875m greater than the same period in 2019. Part of the
London attraction is that yields didn't compress during
the Brexit uncertainty making the city look much cheaper
than other big Eurepean cities. Post the EU-UK Trade and
Cooperation Agreement we expect this gap to narrow.

RETAIL

The MSCl / IPD data for the 12 months to March 2021 saw
all retail property capital values fall 12.8% with a serious
acceleration in the decline of shopping centre values
which fell 25.5% over the last 12 months. In the interims,

I commented that we felt the valuation community were
behind the times due to their requirernent to look at deal
evidence. Essentially, in fast moving markets the published
figures will already be out of date. Stock markets know



this and retail landlords across the globe have been
trading at very large discounts to their (no longer valid)
last published ligures.

The woes of retail are well understood. The pandemic
has accelerated trends which were well established.
Reopening of economies will see footfali return to
shopping centres but the levels of sustainable rents
remair: the subject of market forces. In the UK the loss
of a huge number of well known brands either through
bankruptcy of retreat has resulted in average vacancy
lzvels in shopping centres reaching over 15% (MSCI data).

This means the negotiation boot remains firmly on the
tenants’ foot and we predict a further 15% falls in rental
values. The cne area where there are dear signs of price
stabilisation is in retail warehousing. Open air with plenty
of free parking, this type of retail asset sits well in an
amni-channel environment where retailer marqins are
maximised through click and collect. Affordability is the
eternal watchwaord and whiist there are some parks with
very high rents (often fashion retailer led) the majority will
see modest declines in rental values. Occupancy cost ratios
are also not burdened by escalating service charges.

Across Europe, the picture is more nuanced. Valuers are
even more conservative than their UK counterparts and
capitalisation rates are yet to move materially. In scme
countries, retailers have been given huge arnounts of
government support and as a result rental definquency

is generally lower than in the UK. In addition, many
shopping centres are anchored by hypermarkets (which
have remainad open) and not department stores {a UK/
US concept no longer fit for purpose beyond a handful

of tourist destinations such as Selfridges and Galeries
Lafayette). There have been lower levels of retailer
bankruptcy across Continental Furope and we put

this down to two factors: less overrenting and the UK
insolvency legislation. On this latter point, a huge number
of UK retailers have taken advantage of the CVA {(company
voluntary administration) to force landlords (generally a
large creditof) to accept corporate reconstructions which
unduly damage their interests. A recent High Court ruling
invelving the overly indebted retailer New Look, reinforced
this tenant friendly legislation.
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Investors remain very circumspect towards this asset ¢lass.
Income insecurity has resulted in investors requiring much
higher initial yields. (BRE estimate that UK prime shopping
centre yields have moved from 4.5% to 7% in the last

5 years with poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
or literally unsaleable. Retail warehousing has bucked the
depressing trend at least from an investor perspective.
Investors are increasingly confident that they are able

to measure tenant affordability and this is the key to
determining pricing. In the last couple of months we have
seen cormpetitive bidding for a number of retail warehouse
schemes, something not seen since 2018.

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industrial and logistics take up hit a record 597m sq ft

in 2020. whilst the pandernic suppressed demand in many
other parts of the property market, it clearly stimulated
logistics and business activity which utilised industrial
property. Amazon again accounted for a sizeable (20%)
portion of the activity and it was this XL segment {250,000 +
sq ftj which was the major beneficiary of the surging online
demand. The online share of retail sales rose from 19.2% in
2019 to 279% in 202C hitting a new high of 36.3% in January
2021 as we retumnad to lockdown. This will scale back as we
reopen but the boost 16 online scale and efficiency is here to
stay. Supply has responded but has been more than matched
by this demand. As a consequence, supply has fallen to
73.4m sq ft, down 6% on the year, and this tightening has
occurred in every size bracket.

Rental growth continues 10 march on but there has been
a broadening of growtn rates across the regions. Greater
London and the East Midlands recorded growth of over
7% whilst average rates across the country at 3.9%. Such
strong rental growth, the secure income and the positive
outlook has driven both domestic and international buyers
to pay record prices for this sector whether it is last mile
urban units, XL big boxes or terraces of well located
industrial units. Prime yieids are 3.5 to 4% and even shart
income is not deterring investors as evidenced by the sale
of our Bristol distribution unit at 4.5% initial yield with

3.5 years unexpired.

The same picture of rude health is evident across
Continental Europe. According 1o BNP, take up increased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11
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14% across the 6 largest European econgmies and vacancy
rates dropped to 5.5%, their lowest and all against a
backdrop of a sharp contraction in GDP. Again it was a
surge in e-commerce and home delivery which drove
dernand. Prime yields across Europe tightened 25bps in
2020, matching the UK with no signs of decompression
even as the long end of the curve rises. Investment
demand is truly global with US and Asian insiitutional
capital competing with more domestic long term capital
alf determined to participate in this structural shift.

RESIDENTIAL

As expecied the sector has remained highly resilient
during the pandemic. The majority of our investments are
in German and Swedish housing wheie rents are subject
to state control. The remaining exposure is Finland and the
UK where rents are open-market. The former offer greater
secufity with rents tied to indexation whilst the fatter
offers more oppertunity to capture market growth but
with the commensurate risk if vacancy rises and market
rents fail. During the ¢risis, the security of income and very
high occupancy levels resulted in the sector retaining its
popularity. German housing has experienced price rises in
virtually ail its sub-markets.

As explained earlier, Berlin remained the autlier

as the State of Berlin imposed a 5 year rent freeze
(Mietendeckef). The subsequent Constitutional Court ruling,
which confirmed that rent controls are determined at the
Federal, not State level, came just after the year end in
rid-April. We are pleased with this outcome and the share
prices of both Deutsche Wohnen (4.4% of net assets) and
Phoenix Spree (2.5% of net assets) responded positively.
New construction of apartments in Berlin had all but dried
up as developers awaited the outcome of the appeal.
Berlin remains the cheapest capital city in Western Europe
in which to rent an apartment {if you can find cne). The
desire of a left-wing iocal authority to keep it that way
regardless af the side effect of shutting oul new migrants
through the consequential callapse in the supply of new
homes has been suitably rebuffed.

ALTERNATIVES

This group encompasses sectors that have thrived
(supermarkets, healthcare, self-storage) in the crisis and
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those which have not (student accommodation, hotels).
Share price performance was an ampliied reflection of
nat only the underlying property performance but also
the dramatic shift in investor sentiment. Self storage
share prices have traditionally performed poorly in
slowing economic conditions as the income is considered
short term and volatile. However the pandemic has
focused investors” minds on the emerging strength of
this sector where a small group of operators (mostly
fisted companies) have the financial muscle to dominate
the price comparison websites. Another emerging trend
has been the increasing business usage of a product
traditionally seen as the domain of private customers.
Businesses have seen the merits of immediate, hassle free
access to short or fonger term storage. The supply chain
disruption during the pandemic heightened the need for
space as the mantra became a little more just in case and
a little less just in time'. Our self storage group returned
+46% from the low point (18th March 2020) to the end
of October. However, from November 2020 to the end of
March 2021 they have collectively returned just +4.1%.

A classic example of a switch in sentiment 35 investors
rotated away from the ‘Covid relative winners’ group into
the value names which had underperformed and looked
very cheap an historic metrics.

In another alternatives’ sub-sector we experienced the
complete reverse. Student accommaodation businesses
suffered a coliapse in income and Unite {our only
exposure) led the field in refunding rents which was the
correct PR strategy but depleted their top line. The well
documented difficulties far students thicugh the last
twao academic years and the compiete inability for many
averseas students to enroll physically impacted investor
sentiment with the sub-sector falling 46% between 19th
February and 18th March 2020 and then staging a weak
recovery of just +17% from then to the end of October.
whilst this performance compares poorly with self storage,
since the beginning of November the sub-sector has
rallied 30% as the likelihood of the reopening of tertiary
education improved.

Supermarkets have continued to attract investor
attention. Qur exposure is through Supermarket Income
REIT (UK) angd Cibus (Sweden and Finland). Supermarket



Income REIT raised a total of £490m in three separate
transactions through the year and naw has a market

cap of aver £900m. Cibus also raised capital (SCK

900m) in two tranches ta make further acquisitions. The
farger supermarket operators have been able 1o attract
custorners through their anline netwaork which the hard
discounters (Lidl, Aldi) are net able to offer. Volumes

and margins will normalise post the pandernic but these
aperators have had the eppartunity te prove the resitience
of their omni-channel model which utilises last mile
distribution from their network of stores. 1t is ane of the
few parts of the retail landscape where physical stores are
truly integral to the online joutney.

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remained busy on debt refinancings
througheut the pandemic and the huge amount of central
bank support and government stimulus ensured a healthy,
liquid market where pricing did not weaken. According to
EPRA, £15.2bn was raised in 2019 at an average coupon of
1.8% and 2020 saw €15.6bn at & cost of 1.6%. These figures
are not directly comparable as the mix of debt offerings in
each period was different but they are a clear indicator as to
the health and price stability in the debt markets. German
residential companies were again busy with Yoncvia raising
€2.5bn in four transactions borrowing 10-vear money at 1%,
Later in Ocicber, Gecing, kurape’s largest office REIT raised
£€200m in a 2034 term bond at 0.86%.

Early in the crisis, we saw a number of strong businesses
trading at premiums raise equity capital for gpportunistic
expansicn. This was in sectors with clear underlying
demand, namely healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Primary
Health Properties), self-storage (Big Yellow), logistics/
industrial {LondenMetric, Segro, VGP ), supermarkets
(Supermarket Income REIT, Cibus) and German residential
{Vonavia, ADO Praperlies, LEG). The Autumn saw
opportunistic raises in Sweden and Norway (Balder,
Klovern and Norwegian Properties) a regicn which had
experienced low levels of lockdown restrictions. More
recently in February and march this year we saw rengwed
activity in the UK, as the vaccine rollout improved
sentiment, with raises from Target Hezalthcare, LX), Tritax
Furobox and Supermarket Income REIT again. Continental
European raises in 2021 have so far been confined to

healthcare (Cofinimmo) and student accommadation (Xior).
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Post the summer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies finally
(ame under cashtlow and valuation pressure. In the end
it was just a handfui of retail focused names who had
been mismanaging their balance sheets long before

the pandemic. Hammerson'’s £600m raise effectively
recapitalised the balance sheet with a 24 for 1 rights issue
accompanied by the {previously announced) departure of
the (LG completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Chair,
CED and CFO. In tate October, Shaftesbury announced a
£300m placing and open offer. Looking back their timing
was spectacularly unfortunate as the announcement of the
first vaccines came less than a fortnight later,

These game changing announcements immediately
altered expectations and there is nowhere better to
illustrate the peint than the corporate saga at Unibail-
Rodamco-Westfield (URW). URW had announced a €5bn
‘Reset’ plan comprising €3.5bn capital raise, dividend
cancellation and a planned €4bn of disposals. A group

of activist shareholders lead by Leon Bressler (the (EQ

of Unibail frem 1992 to 2006) launched a campaign to
cppose these AGM proposals and launch an alternative
strategy which did not include a deeply discounted capital
raise. They proposed the sale of the US (ex Westfield)
portfolio and a return to their roots as an cwner of

prime European shopping centres. Their timing was
fortunate, with the 10th November AGM coming just
after the vaccine announcement and the improvement in
investor sentiment even for deeply indebted businesses.
Essentially convincing investors that they didn't need

to put ‘good money after bad’ and that the self help
strateqy would succeed. They were successful in their
campaign and sharefiolders voled against the Reset’
plan. This led to the departure of the Chairman, CED

and CFO and the promotion of existing senior managers
to the Board. The share price, which had troughed at
€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the closing
of short positions. This corporate tale neatly encapsulates
the dramatic change in investor sentiment (and pricing
of previcusly unloved husinesses) which we saw from
November onwards.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Turnover (purchases and sales divided by two) totalled
£468m equating to 36% of the average net assets over
the period. This was broadly in line with last year’s
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14

Manager’s Reporst ccritinied

equivalent figure (32%) which itself was well ahead of

the year 1o March 2019 (20%). it has therefore been two
years of elevated portfolio rotation due to market volatility.
The rapid reduction in leverage in February and March
2020 was followed by a swift reinvestment in the portfolio
which occurred in April and May as share prices recovered
from their March lows and this reinvestment was boosted
Dy our participation in the majority of the large number of
offensive capital raises as described earlier.

whilst 3 number of sought afier businesses were standing
at premiums to asset value and therefare were able

to raise capital accretively, the ‘Covid' world meant {hat
another smaller cohort of companies required emergency
(defensive) capital raises. After Hammerson's raise in
September came Shaftesbury’s £300m raise at 400p per
share, a 20% discount o the undisturbed share price

and 55% below where it had started 2020. We didn't

own Shaftesbury prior to the capital raise but took the
opportunity to participate. Given that part of the company’s
raticnale for the raise was to give comfort to their banks
and secure waivers over patential covenant breaches, one
wonders if the Board would have felt so pressurised just a
few days later. The share price finished our financial year
at 641p which reflects the enormous change in sentiment
around the reopening of the economy.

Private equity continues to stalk listed property
companies and | reiterate the statement made many
times in these reports aver the last decade - if the listed
market persistently undervalues its comoanies, private
capital won't be shy about buying it. This year we have
seen various firms build positions in listed companies:
Brookfield (British Land), KKR {(Great Portland Estates)
and Starwood {RDI1, CA Immo). It is the latter which has
been most active with its stakes. Having acquired 30%
of RD! from its South African based parent campany, it
launched an agreed bid for the remainder in February. The
interesting point is that the offer (recommended by the
Board at 121p) was 20% below the Iast published asset
value but 30% ahead of the undisturbed share price The
board were acknowledging two things - firstly that the
asset valuation was historic and likely to fall further and
secondly that the mixed portfolio, whilst an the road to
improvernent under refreshed management, was set to
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trade perpetually at a discount to its asset value. The exit
price therefore looked a fair one.

The precedent has been set and other smafl, deeply
discounted companies should lock to merge and generate
improved operational metrics for their shareholders.

The corperate activity atound Entra in Norway [covered
earlier) was an important contributor to perfermance given
our holding {2.5% of net assets).

The Interest in listed real estate continues to strengthen
as we move into the Spring with a range of existing
companies taking the opportunity to raise capital whilst
their shares trade at premiums to their asset value. This
was capped in March by the first major IPQ for over 3
years, (TR a Ceniral European logistics owner/developer
raised €1bn with the founder diluting from 100%
ownership 10 83%. The company has a market cap of
£5.6bn.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - DIRECT PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO

The physical property portfolio returned 2.8% with 3
capital return of -0.7% and an income return of 3.4% for
the 12 months to March 2021 In what was a difficult year
for real estate, the portfolio remained resilient with rent
collection in excess of 90% for all four quarters and with
only limited concessions given to two retail tenants.

During the period the Trust sold its freehold interest in
the Yode! Distribution Centre in North Brista) for £10m
which reflected a net initial yield of 4.5% and 3 capital
value of £200 per sq fi. This followed the successiul
regearing of the lease at the beginning of 2020. The sale
was concluded at a 25% premium o the September 2020
valuation and is 118% above the July 2014 purchase price.

The Trust also had a successful period of asset management
completing a number of leases including the letting of the
vacant restaurant unit at The Colonnades. The 3,500 sq ft
unit hias been let to Happy Lamb Hot Pot on & 20 year lease.
Happy Lamb is the latest edition of a hugely successful
Asian and US chain which produces authentic Mongolian
hoet pot cuisine. This is their third restaurant opening after
Holborn and Birmingham. This letting concludes a 10 year



transformation of this Bayswater asset where we have
added 16,000 sq ft of new retail space (hringing exciting
brands like Graham & Green and 1 Rebel to the area) as
well as doubling the Waitrose foatprint fram 20,000 to
40,000 sa ft.

At wandsworth, following the successful granting of
planning in November 2019, we have continued to work
with Wandsworth Berough Council and the Greater London
Authority to deliver the complex and detailed 5106
agreement. As anticipated this will take time. Meanwhile,
we centinue to let any of units cn the estate which come
vacant on short term leases. The demand for industrial
space has continued to grow over the past 12 months

and central London is no exceplion. New rents across the
estate are in the high £20s per sq ft and post the year end
we have lal the only vacancy to Sweaty Betty, the highly
successful UK leisure and fashion retailer.

REVENUE AND REVENUE OUTLOOK

Revenue earnings for the current year of 12.25p were 16%
lower than the prior year.

Earnings were enhanced by a tax refund and some further
prior period withholding tax recaveries which reduced the
revenue tax charge rate to only 1.5%. The most significant
contribution by far was a tax refund and interest thereon
resulting from the final settlement of cur fong running

FIl GLO claim with HMRC. The tax refund and interest
amounted to £1.7m, and that, together with the ability

to release some assodiated provisions meant an overall
contribution of 0.71p to the revenue account.

Long standing investors may recall that this claim was
first menticned in our reports for the year ended March
2010 following a change in UK tax law that all overseas
dividend receipts were nan-laxable in the UK from 1 july
2009. There were various challenges running through

the European courts that this treatment of overseas
dividends should be applied to earlier periods. These
have ultimately had some degree of success and last
year HMRC anncunced that they would settle on the open
computations. We reached agreement with HMRC on our
own open computations just before the financial year end
and the tax repayment has been received.

In addition to the tax refund received we were able to
reinstate losses which had been ulilised for the relevant
pericds. These will now be available gaing forward,
although use will be subject to current restrictions.

Our underlying income over the year fell by around 24%.
sorne companies cancelled dividends payable early in
the financial year in reaction to the COVID-19 pandemic,
or reduced distributions and this was documented in the
interim Report. The second half saw a similar level of
income redyuction as that seen in the first half. In addition,
in the fina! quarter cf the year some of our overseas
income was impacted by sterling strength.

The longer-term outlook is still not ¢lear, The UK has rolled
out a successful vaccination programme and at the time
of writing the easing of restrictions is progressing along
the government roadmap timetable. This has enailed us
to be a little more confident about our UK earnings with
all ccmpanies {excluding some small cap retail focused
businesses) recommencing dividends for FY22.

There have been clear real estate winners and losers and the
portfalio remains well positioned towards those sectors which
have maintained robust earnings through the pandemic. Our
exposure to index-linked income remains high and we will
see dividend increases hers alongside those names exposed
to buoyant conditions such as industrial and logistics. Other
areas will rerain under pressure.

On balance we expect the inceme from our portfolio to
increase over the current financial year as both the UK and
Continental Furope experience strong post vaccine recoveries.
However, it should be ncted that stronger sterling would
reduce the income from our overseas holdings and any
reductions in gearing would also lead to lower income.

GEARING AND DEBT

The Chairman has already commented on gearing levels
and also highlighted the benefits of our flexible borrowing
structure.

This flexibility has been crucial in such a volatite year. Qur
gearing oscillated in a 10% range as we responded to
the dramatic changes in market sentiment through the
year. Over the period we utilised both our revclving loan
facilities and our CFD capability in order to achieve this.

TR PROPERTY INVES IMENT TRUST
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We increased the capacity on our ICBC loan facility during
the year and the remaining loans were renewed at
existing levels. We did see small increases on margins
an some renewals, We alsg looked at the potential to
take out new or extend our longer-term debt. Our Euro
denorminated loan note is due for repayment in 2026 and
the Sterling note in 2031, however the flexibility of the
short- term facilities is valuable in mare volatile markets
and has certainly worked well for us in the current year.

We continue to explore new options in all markets.

OUTLOOK

As economies emerge from the grip of the pandemic,
investors have focused on assessing whether the damage
{or growth) was temporary, longer lasting or permanent.
Real estate investors are no exception and the range

of premiums / discounts to net asset values of listed
companies fighlights the breadth of expeciations across
the property spectrum. The difficuity is that there is no
precedent for the profife of recovery in tenant demand
across so mych of this asset class. Clearly existing
structural shifts have been accelerated and new ones have
emerged which may prove more permanent than the
markets currently expect. Ail of this uncertainty [eads us to
facus on income sustainability and those markets where -
if demand does return - supply is constrained.

whilst tenant demand is hard tc gauge we do benefit
frorm a benign financing envirgnment. Debt markets are as
accommodating as they have ever been, even if the long
end of the curve is rising. We see no reason far margins to
widen in the near term. Infiationary pressures are building
and fixed income asset values reflect these expectations.
Property offers income which is tied either directly
{index-linked} or indirectly {rental growth} ta economiic
expansion. Qur intention is to remain focused on areas
where that income is both sustainable and where it offers
growth.

in the near term, we aim to maintain the exposure to the
orivate rented residential sector (particufarly in Germany
and Sweden) as the market continues to undervalue not
only the quality of thase earnings but also the steady
growth profile. There is risk - in Germany - that a left
wing coalition government would amend the current
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federal law resulting in local cities getting more control
over rents. However the rent freeze in Berlin {over the
last 18 months) resulted in a reduction in the number of
available apartments as well 3s & slowing in the pace of
new apartment delivery. We trust that common sense
will prevail over political dogma. Elsewhere, undervalued
income streams are evident in supermarkets and in

parts of the healthcare market. Alengside index-linked
sustainability we will also maintain exposure to the
greatest growth opportunities. The structural shifts in
retail hehaviour are still angoing. Evolution in the speed
of delivery and post pandemic supply chain dynarnics

will drive growth across the logistics landscape from 'big
box" to Tast mile’ We will continue to own the developers
where we see increases in the value cf landbanks as weil
as growing developrnent margins. Investor demand for the
end product shows no sign of abating.

Office markets will remain volatile. Businesses will spend
time working out their requirements in a post pandemic
world. Interaction and collaboration will drive office usage.
Tasks that can be fulfilled without physical interaction will
be timetabled for remote working. A new balance wili
develop with one sure fire certainty, the premium being
attached to best in cfass newly built space with complete
environmental credentials. Developers will respond to
this demand and we expect an acceleration in buildings
being identified for refurbishment earlier than previously
envisaged. Obsolescence of the existing office stock will
accelerate.

Post the year end in early May, St Modwen Properties
announced that an offer of 542p per share from
Blackstone, 3 24% premium 1o the last published NAY
had the support of the board. This company has a large
strategic landbank, a high quality fogistics portfolio and
a growing housebuilding unit and whilst it was trading
close to its asset value, private equity clearly feels it is
undervalued. This is a reminder, 3s stated in a number of
previous reparts, that the depth of both equity and debt
availability underpins listed campany valuations,

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

3 June 2021



Portfolio

Distribution of Investments

as at 31 March é
2021 2021 2020 2020 =
L £000 Yo £000 % by
UK Securities E
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 304 3
UK Investment Properties 83,011 5.9 94,510 81
UK Total 478,715 342 446,698 385
Continental Europe Securities,
_~ Quoted . _ 921,801 65.8 708,597 611
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 100.0 1,155,295 99.6
- (kD (creditor)/debtor’ (1) - 8,698 0.7 B UK Securities
_~TRs creditor? _ B - - (3,808) (0.3) B UK Property
Total Investment Positions 1,400,375 100.0 1,160,185 100.0 Continental Europe
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
2021 20N 2020 2020
- B £'000 % £000 K]
UK Securities
- Quoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 28.9
- CFD exposure? 45,411 29 32,257 26
- TRS exposure* - - 6,598 05
UK Investment Properties _ 83,0M ~ 5.5 94,51¢ 78
UK Total - 524,156 34.0 485,553 39.8
Continental Europe Securities . 91.5%
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
_~CFD expasure’ B 100,560 6.5 24,471 20 B Eouities
Total investment exposure® - 1,546,517 100.0 1,218,621 100.0 B UK Property

Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March

: 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
o ) £000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000

Total investments £1,4Mm £1,155m £1,291m £1,316m £1,145m
Net assets £1,326 £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shares 28% 3% 33% 3% 29%
Overseas quated property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Dirett property (externally valued) 6% 8% 8% 7% 8%

Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March

2021 201 2020 2020

WL N E N Company  Benchmark
o % Y% %
GBP 27.9 23.3 270 26.8
EUR 51.2 509 53.0 53.1
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 79
SEK 12.9 12.9 1.0 1.3
NOK 1.3 13 11 _ 09
1 Netunrealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet [creditor)/debtor
2 Netunrealised loss on total return swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheet creditor.
3 Gross value of CFD positions,
4 Gross value of TRS position.
5 Total investments Illustrabng market expasure including the gross value of CFD and TRS positians TR PRGPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 17
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Investment Portfolio by Country
as at 31 March 2021

Markat
vafue
B %
Austria
CAlmmobilien 9092 0.6
9,092 0.6
Belgium
Warehausing and Distribution de Pauw 24,7711 1.8
Aedifica 16,502 1.2
Cofinimmo 13,677 1.0
VGP 8,070 0.6
Xior 5926 0.4
Care Property 4,841 03
Montea 2,329 0.2
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 1,923 0.1
wereldhave 47 -
L - 78,286 56
Finfand
Kojarmna 17,500 12
Citycon 270 0.2
— _19670 14
France
Argan 53,987 39
Gecina 24,036 1.7
Covivic 13,457 1.6
Kiépierre 10,364 0.7
Altarea o o A3 0
_ 103195 74
Germany '
Vonovia 145,982 10.4
LEG 63,904 4.6
Deutsche Wohnen 54,499 39
Aroundtown 39,306 2.8
VIB Vermoegen 37,980 2.7
TAG Immobilien 33,294 24
Alstria 8,811 0.6
Deutsche Eurosho o 5283 0.4
o - 389,059 2738
Ireland
Hibernia REIT 20,998 1.5
Irish Residential Properties 2,990 0.2
- 23988 17
Netherlands
Eurocommeicial Properties 25,077 1.8
Unibail-Rodam<co-Westfield 14,499 1.0
NOL o A099 03
_ T 31
Norway
Enra_ _ _ 8199 12
18199 12
Spain
Arima Real estate 21,102 1.5
Merlin _ S % 1) B I
7003 29
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Market
value
%

Sweden
Kungsleden 36,061 25
wihlborgs 23,390 1?
Cibus 18,201 1.3
Fabege 17,594 1.2
Castetlum 16,805 12
Fastighets Balder 16,216 1.2
Nyfosa 12,008 09
Catena 8,933 0.6
Samhalls 3,737 0.3
Pandox 2,690 0.2
15635 fik]
Switzerland
PspP . _ 41999 3.0
%‘_k __we9s 30
United Kingdom
SEGRO 60,357 43
Deswent London 33,584 2.4
Safestore Holdings 32,193 23
Landsec 31,327 2.2
Stenprop 30,477 2.2
Phoenix 25213 18
Unite Graup 25,143 18
Sirius 23,241 16
Picton 21,330 15
CLS Holdings 20,077 14
Londonmetric Property 19,903 1.4
McKay Securities 18,104 13
Secwre Income REIT 15,551 11
Supermarket Income REIT 9,614 07
Tritax Eurabox 7,634 0.6
PRS REIT 6,189 0.4
Assura 5194 04
Target Healthcare 4,418 03
Primary Health Properties 3,848 D3
Atrato Capital 1,468 0.1
Capital & Regional 1,062 0.1
Capital & Counties o w 0.1
395644 283
Direct Property _ . 8&on 59
CFO Positions
(included in current fiabifities) (WD 00
Total (nvestment Positions 1,400,375 1000

Companies shown by country of listing



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

EINNELGE 31 March
201 2020

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)
31 March
2020
Shareholding value  £146.0m  (£144.4rm)
% of investment
portfaliot 9.4% (11.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.7%)
Share price €55.70  (€44.86)

LEG

3. LEG (GERMANY)

31 March
2020
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Sharehalding value £67.8m (E38.7m)

% of investment

L 0,
portfoliof 4.4%  (3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6% (0-5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p)

Shareholding value £63.9m (£75.3m)
% of investment " .

postioliot A% (6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €112.2  (€102.7)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfalio of EUR56.8bn split between
Germany {84%), Sweden {11%) and
Austria {5%]). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
portfolio. The company is invotved in the
whaole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%} and its recurring sales program
{5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict regulations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia's management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authaorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them to benefit from critical political
goodwill in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms, The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return {computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a tota! portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely steong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fueled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

In Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outlook (and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values {¢.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a German residential company
fotused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-westphalia. It is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Geirany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and C
locations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform still within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to regulatory risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EURS.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macro-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liahilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
(maximum target set at 43% for 2021),
an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

Notes:

= The percentage of investment portfalio positions set out above include exposures theaugh CFO for both the individual positions and the portfalio
>The Investment Portfolio by Country positions set out on page 18 are the physicel holdings only included i the investrnents held al fair value in the Balance Sheel. The
profit or loss positions on the CFO contracts (1e not the investment exposure} are alsa shown on page 18 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtors or aeditors

in the Current assets.
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DEUTSCHE
B WOHNEN

4, DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
(GERMANY)

. 31 March
2020

Shareholding value £54.5m  (£36.4m)
% of investment

porttalio! 3.5% (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.3%)
Share price £€39.78  (€34.71)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany's second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure fo Greater Berlin (76%

aof the total portfolio Fv). The company
owns a high-quality portfolio consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a combined
value of €26hn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around repiesented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its develepment exposure
with a total investment cost of EURS.9bn
(27% of GAV) split between build-to-hofd
(FUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline} and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).
10 a context of the implernentation of
the rentai freeze in Berlin, the company
showed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting teturn of
14% in lipe with German residential peers.
The Greater Betlin portfolio was valued
at EURZ,853 per sqm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the positive unequivotal decision
fram the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +62%.

Mates

WARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £54.0m  (£46.3m)
Y% of investment N 8

portlolio! 3.5%  (3.8%)
% of equity owned 3.5%  (3.5%)
Share price €804 (€676}

Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
been listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has been to build &
portfofio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able to captuie
the developer margin while having little
to no risk on the letting side. In 2020,

the portfolio value amounted to EUR3bn
(100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greates Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% around Lyon).

The company delivered solid 2020 resuits
with an EPRA NRV per share up 13%

YoY and a DPS up 11%-. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 56% allows the
campany to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns aiongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong quarantee of alignment. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +307%

gecina

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 March
2028

shareholding value £53.9m  {(£47.5m)
% of investment o 0

partfalia? 3.5% (3.9%)
% of equity owned 0.7% (0.6%)
Share price €14 (1207

Gegina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portfolio of more than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region {(97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
(60% of the total office value). It owns
also a portfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets {of which FUR367m in student
hausing) predaminantly located in

the Paris region. Finally, the company
owns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city. The management is
capitatizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the tatal return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the fast couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and dispasing mature assets
to crystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2614, the corpany has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creation (EUR15 per share). In 2020, the
cormpany showed resilience with 99% rent
callection, stable portfalia valuation and
Like for like rentat growth of +2.3%. The
financial position of the company is very
solid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years.

The five-year shareholder total return has
been +21.6%.

= The percentage of investment portiaho posttions set aut above include expasures through CFD for both the indnrdual positions 2ad the porthalo
=The lavestment Portfalio by Country posttions set out on pege 18 are thé physicel holdings anty induded in the mvestments held at fair value in the Bzlance Sheet. The
prafit ar lass pasttions on the CFD cantracts (e, pot the ivestment expasure} 2re also shown on page 18 and ere included  the Belance Sheet es debrors or credrtars

in the Luirent assels.
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KLEFIERRE

7. KLEPIERRE (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

EIREICGE 31 March
2021 2020

Sharehelding value £51.3m (Wil
% of investment N

portfoliot 3.3% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
share price €19.89  (€17.57)

PIS|P

Swiss Properly

9. PSP {(SWITZERLAND)

31 march
2020

Shareholding value £44.0m (£27.9m)
% of investinenl o 0

portfoliat 2.8% (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6% (1.9%)
Share price 796p (641p)

Shareholding value  £42.0m (Em)
% of investment

0
portfoliot 2.7% (2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price £115.20  (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a tatal portfolio valuation
of EURZ2bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), Italy
{18%), Scandinavia (17%}) and 1beria
{10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crsis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by food retailers contrary to UK or Us
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges (partly driven by online
competition). The financial position of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt 1o EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEO of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%

stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operater, owning €.125 UK stofes,
weighted towards London and the South
East {¢.60%). In addition the company has
a large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities (through both v structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

Notes:

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland's key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company’s
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid results in 2020 with EPS
{excl revaluation} stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents {11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich {85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

= The percentage of investment portfolio positions set out abave indlude expesures through CFD for both the individual positons and the portfolio
>The Investrent Portfolia by Country posinons set out on page 18 aie the physical holdings only included in the investments held at fair value in the Balance Sheet, The
profit or lass positions on the CFD contracts (1. not the investment exposure) ere akso shown on page 18 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtors r creditors

in the Current assets

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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@AROUNDTOWN s

10. AROUNDTOWN (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £39.3m  {£20.3m})
% of investment o

portfolio? 2.5% (1.7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)

Share price €6.07  [£4.55)
Aroundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that owns
FUR24.5bn portfolio. It has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
office (60% of the cammeidial portfolio),
Hotels (28%), Retail (9%) and Logistics
{3%). The majority of its exposure is
in Germany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grang City. The
poitfolio has grown significantly since
Aroundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peei TLG Immobilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisary board deputy Chairman) who
founded the company, still owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group {down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the portfolio with a dispasal
pipeline of EURS00m while buying
back shares for a maximum amount of
EURSQOM. The five-year total sharehaider
return has been 58%.

Notes.

V'B Vermdgen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £38.0m (£22.9m)
% of investment

2.59 .9Y
portfoliot % (19%)
% of equity owned 5.5% (4.1%)
Share price €29.25 (€22.80)

VIB is a German company developing,
buying and holding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
company pursues a develop or buy

and hald strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid financial structure. The real estate
portfolio (FUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties {70% of total
tents), garden centers and DIY stores
{11%), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
portfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior £PS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
growth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. in 2020, the company maintained
a solid momentumn with EPS growing by
+3% and NAY per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shareholder retuin has
been 93%.

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON {UX)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £37.6m (il
% of investment o o

portfoliol 2.4% {0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)

Share price a228p (3270p)
Derwent London is a London Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West End and “tech belt”
(0ld Stieet, derkenwell etc.) areas of
London. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-19, which bath brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left ongoing uncertainty
over future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
We believe the role of the office remains
important however, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
Office landlord to weather the COVID-19
siorm given a) its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b) the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities (c.100bp), which
we belfieve will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and ¢} the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create vafue as schemes fike
Soho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street compiete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.

> The percentage of investment partfoho pesitions sei aut above include expasures through CFD for both the individue! positions and the porifolio
>The investment Pactfalio by Country pasitions set ut on page 18 are the physical holdings only included in the investments held at fair value in the Balance Sheel The
profit of loss positions on the CFD contracts {1 6. not the myestment exposure) 212 also shown on pzge 18 and are ncluded 1 the Balange Sheer as debtos or crediors

in the Current assets
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)

as at 31 march 2021

Residential
and

o Retail Industrial  Ground Rents Other
west End of Lendon 42.9% - 14.5% 0.6% 58.0%
inner tondon™ 1.6% 31.2% - - 32.8%
South west - . 9.2% - - 9.2%
Total - o 44.5% 40.4% 14.5% 0.6% 100.0%
“Inner London defined as inside the North and South Circular.
Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio Contracted Rent
as at 31 march 2021 as at 31 March
o Gross rental income B -
0 to 5 years 24%  Year1 £3,000,600
510 10 years 17% Years 2-5 £10,000,000
10 to 15 years 53% Years 5+ £19,000,000
15 to 20 years 0%

20+ years

6%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, London w2

Mixed Use

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London SW18

VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

10 Centre, Gloucester Business

Park, Gloucester GL3
i)
PR Y

Sector

Sector Industrial Industrial
le_n_ure Freehold Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehold
Size (sq ft) 64,000 Size (sq ft) 36,000 Size {sq ft} 63,000
Wﬂtipal Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Piincipal  Kougar Tool Hire Ltd Principal  Infusion GB
tenants Happy Lamb Hat Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the whiteleys Shapping Centre, The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Lockdown Baker

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
December 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of junction
11A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4
via junction 15.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Dbjective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in investiment
property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net
Total Return Index in Sterling. The index, calculated by FTSE, is free-float
based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105 constituent companies. The index

- limits exposure to any one company to 10% and reweights the other

24

-constituents pro-rata. The benchmark website www.epra.com contains

further details about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company’s business mode! follows that of an externally managed
investment trust.

The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-executive Board of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
contro! assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative -
Investment Fund Manager ("AlFM") with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the
Company on behaif of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and joanne E|hot
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio an

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements undeg
Investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of thé
on pages 41 to 43, f

In accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers D'
(“AIFMD™), BNP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary to thiassmes

BNP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the Investrnent Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Strategy and Investment Policies

The investment selection process seeks to identify well
managed companies of all sizes. The Manager generally
regards future growth and capital appreciation potential
mare highly than immediate yield or discount to asset
value,

Although the investment ghjective allows for investment
on an international basis, the benchmark is a Pan-
Furopean Index and the majarity of the investments

will be located in that geographical area. Direct property
investments are located in the UK only.

As a dedicated investor in the property sector the
Company cannot offer diversification outside that sector,
however, within the portfolio there are limitations, as set
oul below, on the size of individual investments held to
ensure diversification within the portfolio.

ASSET ALLOCATION GUIDELINES

The maximum helding in the stock of any one issuer or of
a single asset is limited to 15% of the portfolio at the point
of acquisition. In addition, any holdings in excess of 5%

of the portfolio must not in aggregate exceed 40% of the
porifolio.

The Manager currently applies the following guidelines for
asset allocation:

UK listed equities 25 50%
Continental Europen Iisted equities - 45 - 75%
Direct Property - UK 0-20%
Other Iisféa equities S 0-5%
Listed bonds 0-5%
Unquoted investhen_t_s__ir - 0-5%

GEARING

The Ccmpany may employ levels of gearing from time
io tima with the aim of enhancing returns, subject to an
overall maxirmum of 25% of the portfolio valye.
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In certain market conditions the Manager may consider it
pradent not to employ gearing on the balance sheet at all,
and tc hold part of the portfolio in cash.

The current asset allocation guideline is 10% net cash to
25% net gearing (as a percentage of portfolio value).

PROPERTY VALUATION

Investment properties are valued every six months by an
external independent valuer, Valuations of all the Group’s
properties as at 31 March 2021 have been carried out on

a “RICS Red Book” basis and these valuations have been

adopted in the accounts.

ALLOCATION OF COSTS BETWEEN REVENUE &
CAPITAL

On the basis of the Board’s expected long-term split

of returns in the form of capital gains and income, the
Group charges 75% of annual base management fees and
finance costs to capital. All performance fees are charged
to capital.

HOLDINGS IN INVESTMENT COMPANIES

it is the Baard's current intention to hald no more than
15% of the portfolio in listad closed-ended investment
companies.

Some companies investing in commercial or residential
property are structured as listed externally managed
closed-ended investrment companies and therefore form
part of our investment universe. Althcugh this is not

a model usually favoured by our Fund Manager, some
investments are made in these structures in order to
access a particular sector of the market or where the
management team is regarded as especially strong. If
these companies grow and become a larger part of our
investment universe and/or new companies come to the
market in this format the Manager may wish to increase
exposure to these vehicles. If the Manager wishes to
increase investment to over 15%, the Company will make
an announcement accordingly.
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Key Performance indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Trust’s objective against
the following Key Performance indicators ("KP1s"):

KP1 Board monitoring and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directors regard the aut-performance of the
Comnpany’s net asset value total return in performance
in comparison with the benchmark as being an overaf!
measure of value delivered to the shareholders’ over the
ionger-term.

The Board reviews the perfarmance in detail at each

meeting and discusses the results and outlook with the
Manager.

Gutcome
1year 5years

20.7% 77%

NAV Total Return”™ (Annualised)

Benthmark Total Return (Annualised)

159%  4.3%

* NAY Total Return is calculated by re-investing the dividends n the assets and
the Campany from the televant ex-dividend date. Divdends are deemed 10 be
re-Invested on the ex-dividends date for the benchrmark

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

The principai objective of the Company is a totaf return
objective, nowever, the Fund Manager also aims (o
deliver a retiable dividend with growih over the longer
erm.

The Board reviews statements on income received to date
and income forecasts at each meeting.

Qutcome
1year 5years
Cormpound Annual Dividend Growth® 14%  11.2%
Compound Annual RP! 15%  2.6%

“ The finat dividend in the time senies divided by the initial dividend in the
period raised to the power of 1 dnaded by the nurber of years in the series.

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst expectation of investment performance is a key
driver of the share price discount or premium to the Net
Assel Vafue of an investment trust over the longer-term,
there are periods when the discount can widen. The
Board is aware of the vilnerability of a sector-specialist
trust ta a change of investor sentiment towards that
sector, of tg periods of wider market uncertainty, and the
impact that can have on the discount.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and
issue shares. When considering the merits of share buy-
back or issuance, the Board looks at a number of factors in
addition to the short and fongerterm discount or premium
to NAV to assess whether action would be beneficiaf to
shareholders averall. Particular attentian is paid to the
cutrent market sentiment, the potential impact of any
share buy-back activity on the liquidity of the shares and
on Ongoing Charges over the longer term.

Outcome
1year 5 years
Average discount” 0.2%  6.3%
Total number of shares repurchased Nil 150,000

“ average daily discount throughout the period of share price to
NAV. with Income. Source: Bloomberg.



KP
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board i3 conscious of expenses and aims to deliver a
balance between excellent service and costs.

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges includes any direct
property costs in addition to the management fees and
all other expenses incurred in ninning a publicly listed
company. As no other investment trusts hold part of their
portfolic in direct property {they either hold 100% of their
partfolio as property securities or as direct property), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic is shown without direct property costs to allow

a clearer comparison of overall administration costs with
other funds investing in securities.

The Board monitors the Ongoing Charges, in comparison
to a range of ather fnvestmeant Trusts of similar size, both
property sector specialists and other sector specialists.

Board monitoring and outcome

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and the
Board reviews regular reports on actual and forecast
expenses throughout the vear,

Outcome
1year 5 years

Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees

0.65%

0.65%

Ongeing charges excluding performance

0,
fees and Direct Property Costs 0.63%

0.62%

The angoing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group.

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continue to operate in order to meet
the requirements for Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requirements outlined in
Section 1158,

The Directors believe that the conditions and ongeing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to
31 March 2021 and that the Company will continue to
meet the requirements.

The KPIs are considered to be Alternative Performance Measures as defined later in the Annual Report.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

in defivering fong-term returns to shareholders, the Board rmust also identify and monitor the risks that have been taken
in arder to achieve that return. The Board has included below details of the principat and emerging risks and uncertainties
facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable.

The Board also considers new and emeraing risks adding appropriate monitoring and mitigation measures accordingly.

The impact of the COVI0-19 pandemic, the response of financial markets, the unknown duration of the pandemic and
ongoing iImpact on economies around the world together with aperational changes in response 1o government guidelines
continues 1o increase some of the nsks listed below in comparison with prior years.

Risk Identified

Board moeaitering and mitigation

Share priie performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the London
Stock Exchange and the share price is determined by
supply and demand. The shares may trade at a discount
or premium 10 the Company’s underlying NAV and this
discount or premiurn may fluctuate over time.

The Board monitors the Jevel of discount or premium at
which the shares are trading over the short and fonger-
term.

The Board encourages engagerment with the shareholders.
The Board receives reports at each meeting on the activity
of the Company's brokers, PR agent and meetings and
evenls attended by the Fund Manager.

The Company’s shares are available through the BMO
share schemes and the Company participates in the active
marketing of these schemes. The shares are also widely
available on open architecture platforms ana can be held
directly through the Company’s registrar.

The Board takes the powers to buy-back and to fssue
shares at each AGM.

Poor investment performance of the porifolio refative to the benchmark

The Company's porticlio is actively managed. In addition
to investment securities the Company also invests in
commercial property and accardingty, the pertfolio may
nat follow or cutperform the return of the benchmark

The Manager's pbjective is 1o outperforr the benchmark.
The Board regqularly reviews the Company’s long-term
strategy and investment guidetines and the Manager's
relative positions against these.

The Management Engagement Commitiee reviews the
Managei’s performance annualiy. The Board has the
powers to change the Manager if deemed aporapriate.
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Risk Identified

Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company's
portfolio.

Although the paortfolio is diversified across a number of

gecgraphical regions, the investrent mandate is fociised -

unh a single sector and therefore the portfolio will be
sensitive towards the property sector, as well as global
equity markets mare generally.

Property companies are subject to many factors which
can adversely affect their investment performance, these
include the general economic and financial environment
in which their tenants operate, interest rates, availability
of investment and development finance and regulations
issued by gevernments and authorities.

Although we have now exited the European Union the
structure of our future relationship with Continental
Europe is still evolving and there could be an impact on
occupation across each sector.

The COVID-19 global pandemic dominated the financial
year. This has changed the way we live and wark,
creating unprecedented uncertainty regarding the impact
on economies and property markets around the world
beth in the short and longer term.

Any strengthening or weakening of Sterling will have

a direct impact as a proportion of our Balance Sheet is
held in non-GBP denominated currencies. The cuirency
exposure is maintained in line with the benchmark and
will change over time. As at 31 March 2021, 72.1% of the
Trust’s exposure lies to currencies other than GBP.

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receives and considers a reqular report from
the Manager detailing asset allocation, investment
decisions, currency exposures, gearing levels and ratignale
in relation 1o the prevailing market conditions.

The report considers the potential impact of Brexit and the
Manager’s response in positioning the portfolio,

The report considers the current and potential future
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing
implication for the property market and valuations cverall
and by each sector,

TR PRUPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

lower earnings in the underlying portfolic putting - The Beard receives and considers reqular income
pressure on the Company’s ability to giow the dividend forecasts.

could result from a number of factors: o , X
Income forecast sensitivity 10 changes in FX rates is also

lower eamings and distributions in investee manitored.

companies. Companies in some property sectors ) .
continue to be negatively impacted by the (OVID19 The Company has substantial revenue reserves which can
pandernic. Companies in some sectors cancelied or be drawn upon when required.

reduced dividends during the last financial yearas a |
precautionary measure to protect their balance sheets
in the short term. Although most have retured to
paying dividends, some are at a lower ievel than
previously and others are continuing to withhold
dividends;

The Board will continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19
and the long term implications for income generation.

prolonged vacandies in the direct property portfolio
and lease or rental renegotiations as a result of
COVID-19;

strengthening Sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in Sterling terms. The Company

has seen a material increase in the level of eamings
in recent years. A significant factor in this was the
weakening of Sterling following the Brexit decision.
Sterling strengthenad in the last quarter of the
financial year. This may continue or reverse again

in the near or medium term as the tonger term
impiications of Brexit and the COVID-19 pandemic and
the impact on the UK and Furopean econormies are
undersiood. Strengthening of Steriing would fead to a
1alk in earnings;

adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or
other income received by the Company; and

changes in the timing of dividend receipts fram
investee companies.
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Risk 1dentified

Accounting and operational risks

Disruption or faiture of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties and
the risk that these suppliers provide a sub-standard
service.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
nperational rosponse fronn the manager and service
providers has been closely monitored.

Board monitoring and mitigation

- Third party sarvice providers produce periodic reports to

the Board on their control environments and business
continuation provisions on a regular basis.

The Management Engagement Committee consicgers the
performance of each of the scrvice providers un @ regular
basis and considers their ongoing appeintment and terms
and canditions.

The Custodian and Depaository are responsible for the
safequarding of assets. In the event ¢of a loss of assets
the Depository must return assets of an identical type
or corresponding amount unless able to demonstrate
that the loss was the result of an event beyond their
reascnable control.

Monitoring the guality and timeliness of service as
service providers respend to COVID-19 requlations and
guidelines, in particular with widespread home working
and consideraticn of the durabllity of the arrangements.
Many organisations are now planning to incorporate
home warking intg their operational structure as a
permanent feature.

Financial risks

The Company's investment activities expose it to a
variety of financial risks which include counterparty
credit risk, liquidity risk and the valuation of financial

instruments. Any impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
been considered.

Details of these risks together with the policies fer

managing these risks are found in the Netes te the
Financial Statements in the full Anpual Reports and
Accounts.

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Custorns as an investment trust, subject to continuing
to meet the relevant eligibility conditians. As such the

Company is exemnpt frem capital gains tax on the profits
realised from the sale of investments.

Any breach of the relevant eligibility conditions could
lead to the Company losing investment trust status and
heing subject to corporation tax on capital gains realised
within the Company’s portfolio.

The Investment Manager monitors the investment
portfolio, income and praposed dividend levels to ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached. The
results are reported to the Board at each meeting.

The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company’s tax
advisor through the year who also reports to the Board
on the year-end tax position and reports on CTA 2010
compliance.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMINT TRUST
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk 1dentified

Board monitoring and mitigation

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the Londan Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
rules; failure to meet the requirements under the
Alternative Investment Funds Directive, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, European
and overseas legislation alfecting UK companies.
failure to meet the required accounting standards or
make appropriate disclosures in the Interim and Annual
Reports.

The Board receives reqular requlatory updates from

the Manager, Company Secretary, tegal advisors and
the Auditors. The Board considers these repaorts and
recommendations and takes action accordingly.

The Board receives an annual report and update from the
Depository.

internal checklists and review procedures are in place at
service providers.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either through the use of bank debt or threugh -

the use of derivatives may be utilised from time to time.
Whilst the use of gearing is intended to enhance the NAY
total return, it will have the oppasite effect when the
return of the Company's investrnent portfolia is negative
or where the cost of debt is higher than the return from
the portfolio

The Board receives regular reperts from the Manager on

the levels ¢f gesring in the portfolio. These are considered
against the gearing limits set in the Investment Guidelines
and also in the context of current market conditions and
sentiment. The cost of debt is monitored and a balance
sought between term, cost and flexibility.

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of porifolio manager or other key staff.

The Chairman conducts regular meetings with the Fund
Management team.

The fee basis protects the core infrastructure and depth
and quality resources. The fee structure incentivises
outperformance and is fundamental in the ability to retain
key staff.
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Viability Statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Cerporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company to assess
the prospects of the Company over the longer term, the
Directors have assessed the prospects of the Company
over the coming five years. This period is used by the
Board during the strategic planning process and the Beard
consider this period of time appropriate for a business of
our nature ang size,

This assesstment takes account of the Company’s current
position and the policies and processes for managing the
principal and emerging risks set out on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s ability to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period of assessment.

In making this statement the Board carried out a robust
assessment of the principal and emerging fisks facing the
Company, including those that might threaten its business
maodel, future perfarmance, solvency and liquidity.

In reaching their conclusions the Directors have reviewad
five-year forecasts for the Company with sensitivity
analysis t0 a number of assumptions; investee company
dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, tax
rate and asset value growth.

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has a long-term investment strategy
under which it invests mainty in readily realisable,
publicly listed securities and which restricts the tevel of
borrowings.

Of the current portfolia, 50% could be liquidated within
five trading days and 69% within 10 trading days.

On a Group basis, Current assets exceed current
liabilities at the Balance Sheet Date.

The Company invests in real estate related companies
which hold real estate assets, and invests in commercial
real estate directly. These investments provide cash
receipts in the form of dividends and rental income.

The Company is able to take advantage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust structure and able to hold a
proportion of its partfolic in less liquid direct property
with a view to long-term cutperformance.
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At the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 million undrawn on its revolving loan facilities.

The structure has alsa enabled the Company to
secure long-term financing. EUR 50 million loan notes
issued in 2016 are due to mature at par in 2026 and
GBP15 millior loan notes issued on the same date are
due to mature at par in 2031,

The impact of COVID-19 on the UK and European
commercial property markets remains a consideration.
This resulted in a reduction in dividend receipts from
investee companies in the year to 31 March 2021 with
sorme companies withhalding or reducing dividends.
The majority of companies have returned to paying
dividends, although some at lower levels than before
the pandemic. As a result an improvement in incame
is anticipated in the forthcoming year. The longer
term impact on some sectors is still difficult to assess,
however the company has low exposure to these
sectors.

The direct property portfolic has been well positioned
in respect of the COVID-19 crisis and rental collection to
date has been robust. We have very limited exposure
to retail and some smaller occupiers in the hospitality
sector, however, overall the expected drop in income
from the direct portfolio in 2020/271 was not material
and likewise is not expected to be in the forthcoming
year.

The expenses of the Company are predictable and
modest in compaiison with the assets. Regular and
robust maonitering of revenue and expenditure forecasts
are undertaken throughout the year. The Company
could suffer a reduction in earings of 95% and still be
able to meet its liabilities as they fell due.
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Viability Statement continued

The Company has ne employees and consequently
does not have redundancy or other emnployment
refated liabilities or responsibilities.

The Company retains title ta its assets held by the
Custadian which are subject to further safequards
imposed on the Depositary.

The impact of Brexit and COVID-19 have been
considered in terms of the potential effect on Sterling.
72% of the portfalio is exposed to cufrencies other than
Sterling.

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Real Estate will continue to be an investable sector of
international stock markets and investors will continue
to wish to have exposure to that sector.

Closed-ended Investment Trusts will continue to be
wanted by investors and requlation of fax legislation
will pot change to an extent to make the structure
unattractive in comparison to other investment
products.

The performance of the Company will continue to be
satisfactory, Should the performance be less than the
Board deems 1o be satisfactory, it has the appropriate
powers to replace the Investment Manager

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its hiabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
tompany’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”) factors

can present both opportunities and threats to the
performance we aim to deliver to our shareholders. The
Board is therefore committed to taking a responsible
approach on £SG matters. This covers the Cornpany’s own
responsibilities on governance and reporting and, the most
materiat way in which the Company can have an impact,
through responsible awnership of the investments that are
made on its behalf by its Manager.

As a long-term investor, governance and sustainability
considerations have always been embedded in our
Manager’s Investment Process. £5G risk assessments

and considerations are integrated into the detailed
fundamental investment research and analysis that takes
place on any potential investrent before it is considered
for inclusion in the portfolio and continues on an ongoing
basis for all investments held.

This approach is in line with the definition of an Article
& Fund under the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Requlations. Whilst this is currently Furopean not UK
requlation it is nonetheless a widely utilised definition.

There are two fundamental considerations to investment
in property companies: the assets themselves and their
management. The Manager seeks to invest in sustainable
assets which are managed Dy quality teams in a well
governed corporate stiucture. As a result, there has

been a long-standing and streng culture of stewardship
in the Manager’s investment approach. The Manager
believes that engaging with companies is best in the

first instance, rathar than simply divesting or excluding
investment opportunities, However, there are instances
where governance matters have driven a decision not to
invest in a company. As one of the largest teams investing
in Pan-European real estate equities, our Manager meets
with a significant number of the management teams of
investee and potential investee companies each year and
has a robust record of engagement with an agenda cf
reducing risk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice. Whilst likely an elevated nurnber reflecting
the impact of Covid, over the course of the year, our
management team participated in 380 individual or group
meetings with companies and their management teams.

Corporate Governance disclosure requirements have
increased transparency enormaously in recent years
and enabled informed engagement, with social and

employment practices also gaining increased focus and
disclosure. Environmental measures are now rapidly
coming to the fore and with wider disclosure requirements
being placed upon our investee companies, as & result the
Manager is able to scrutinise more easily other measures
such as climate change and sustainability policies and
outcomes.
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Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the importance of the
Company’s own Governance and disclosures. The
Company’s compliance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporate Governance is detailed in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 44 of this Annual Report.

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there is the
requirement o detail information about employee and
human rights; including informaticn about any palicies

it has in relation to these matters and effectiveness

of these policies. As the Trust has no emiployees, this
requiremnent does not apply. The Company is nat within
the scope of the UK Madern Stavery Act 2015 because it
has not exceeded the turnover threshold and is therefore
not obliged to make a slavery and human trafficking
statemnent. The Direclors are satisfied that, to the best of
their knowledge, the Company’s principal supptiers, which
are listed an page 108, comply with the provisions of the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015,

The Board currently comprises three male Directors and
two female Directors. The activities of the Nomination
Committee in relation to the board changes are referred
to in the Nomination Committee Report on pages 51 and
52. The Board's diversity peolicy is autlined in more detaif
in the Corporate Governance Report. The Manager has an
equal opportunity policy which is set out cn its website
www.bmo.cam

Governance of investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Board has approved a corporate governance voting
policy which, in its opinion, ccords with current best
practice whilst maintaining a primary focus on financial
returns.

The exercise of voting rights attached to the portfolio
has been delegated to the Manager. Where practicable,
ali shareholdings were voted at all company meetings
in the financial year in accordance with BMOGAMSS

own corporate governance policies. This ensures that

a strong, consisient approach is taken to proxy voting
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Corpofsate Responsibility continued

which backs up and reinforces engagement, takes a
fobust line on key governance issues such as executive
pay and integrates environmental, social & diversity
issues and sustainability practices into the vating process.
The Manager regularly engages with companies on
Governance matters, supported by our significant stakes in
large praperty comoanies. Oui size in this specialist area
of the equity market has helped ensure cur views are
heard, augmented by the strength of BMO’s Responsible
Investment team and their broader engagement.

BMO’s Responsible Investment Annual Review provides
more information on its firm-level stewardship poiicies,
as weil as how these comply with the expectations of
the UK Stewardship Code 2020. This is available at www.
brnogam.com

During the financial year, the company voted against at
least one management propoesal at 37% of shareholder
meetings and engaged with 19 companies (17 companies
engaged on corporate governance issues).

Environmental

Envirenmental policies in the property sector focus largely
on sustainability and climate change. Climate change is
one of the defining challenges of modern times,

The management team have sourced data and research
trom several providers, including the BMO Responsible
investment tearn, M5C) and GRESB. The guantity and
depth of data available in our secior varies greatly; the
larger companies now have teams dedicated to providing
environmental impact data and reporting, however many
of our companies are small and do not currently coniribute
data to the organisations providing analysis to the investor
cornmunity. With environmental issves coming to the fore
and inevitable increased leqislation we expect to see fairly
rapid improvements and standardisation in data provision,
increasing our ability to engage with companies on these
matters.

GRESB

GRESB is 2 mission driven and investor led organization
providing standardised and validated Environmenta,
Social and Governance (ESG} data ta the <apital markets,
Established in 2009, GRESB now covers over $5 trillion

in real estate assets, publishing i) an annual reaf estate
assessment score for participating companies, and i} 3
public disclosure score for all listed real estate companies
The real estate assessrment score ranks Environment,
Sacial and Governance metrics based on data contrtbuted
directly from participating companies, whilst the public
disclosure score evaluates the level of £5G disclosure by
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listed property companies and RETS. Further detaft on
GRESB can be found at www.gresb.com

M

MSLHESG reseaich covers a wide range of environmental
impact measures including CO2 and greenhouse gas
emissions, energy and water usage, in addition to wider
cofporate qovernance scores. Further detail can be found
al www,msci.com/our-solutions/esg-investing /esg-ratings

Coverage of our sector is set out in the table below. Where
coverage is based on public data, a significant propartion
is included, whereas where specific data has to be
submitted by companies the caverage is currently much
thinner.

ESG data coverage by % weight

GRESS s

Real Estate Assessment  Public Disclosure

{ampany Rating

7 fund Benthmark fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark
Rated 54% 55% 6% 999 83% 98%

Uor ated 8% 450 4% 1% 7% 2%
Total 168% 160% 100% 100% 160% 108%

Source: GRESE, MSCI, BMO Glabal Asset Management Data as et 31.03 2021 Fund
exposure Cziculated as the % weight of the invested equity pontfolo

Portfolio-weighted carbon intepsity

For the first year, we are disclosing, as best we can, the
portfolic-weighted carbon intensity of the total porifolio.
However, we still only have data on 82% of our equity
portfolio and 97% of the index. As far a5 the data allows,
we have mapped the Carbon Intensity (measured in terms
of €02 Scope 1 and 2 emissions per $m of sales) against
the benchmark and for comparative purposes against a
wider equity index.
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As ¢an be seen in the chart above, the fund’s portfolio
weighted carbon intensity was broadly in line with that of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider
globa) equity index. This reflects the fact that for property,
this is largely-measuring the impact of ongoing emissions
from running a building whereas the wider index includes
operating companies with manufacturing capabilities and
the need to distribute goods worldwide.

For the property sector, the focus is currently on the
energy efficiency of buildings once they are accupied,
but we expect in time more attention will be paid to
the carbon emitted in getting them built and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a large proportion of a
building’s emissions over its lifespan.

The message is that this is still an area where it is difficult
to make fully informed decisions. The assessments from
the various data providers reach different conclusions

as they do not all score in 3 consistent way. We expect
this to improve and change but it will be a journey. Our
Manager is dedicating a lot of resource to the analysis

of the information available and also has the benefit

of the knowledge of BMOs award winning Responsible
Investrnent Team. As data coverage improves, our
Manager will in tuin be able ta engage with our investee
companies on environmental matters and report to our
shareholders in more depth.

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recognises the importance of
sustainability in our business and in the direct property
assets which we invest in, hold and manage on behalf of
our investors, Property impacts upon the environment,
the health and wellbeing of occupiers, and the
comrmunities in which they are situated. Specific issues
relevant to physical property investment portfolio Include,
for exampie, responsible and sustainable refurbishment
practices, efficient use of resources throughout their
operation, and design and services to support the heaith
and wellbeing of occupiers and local cammunities.

Environmental Audits are conducted on all our buildings
prior to purchase. The Company witl take remedial

action or enforce tenant obligations to do so wherever
appropriate. in managing Environmental, Social and
Governance issues across the direct portfolio ~ our
Manager engages with occupiers, external managers and
suppliers. As a responsible steward of the Company’s
assets, our Manager is committed to improving
sustainability characteristics through interventions that are
caretully pfanned and executed.

e
@
=
*
m
a2
o
=
E

-2
Q
=
9

Our Manager has strong, direct relationships with
occupiers and is cornmitted to working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resources to
set and achieve meaningful sustainability targets for the
assets in the portfolio. As part of this, and working with
the portfolio property managers, a Sustainability Roadmap
is being implemented which targets biodiversity net gain
across the portfolio by 2025, improving energy, water and
waste efficiency, transitioning to 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions in line with
climate science.

By order of the Board
David Watson M L\
Chairman ’//) W

3 June 2021
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Directors

DAVID WATSON
Chairman

Appointed:
April 2012
Experience:

David became Chairman following
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 july 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board's
Senior Independent Director when he
simultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit committee to Tim, a
position he was appointed to on 1

January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group ple,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and
has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services industry.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as SID and
Chair in a number of boards have built
significant experience in shareholder
and investor engagement.

Other Appointrents:

David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.
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KATE BOLSOVER

Non-Executive Director

Appointed;
October 2019

Experience:

she previously worked for Cazenove
Group and J.P. Morgan (azenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was managing director of the mutual
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she warked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JP Morgan
American Investrnent Trust PLC until
2016, Senior independent Director of
Montanaro UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow’s People until
2017,

skills and Contribution to the Board:
From her execuytive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate's role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder
engagement.

Other Appointments:

Kate is currently Chairman of

Fidelity Asian values PLC and Seniof
independent Girector of invesco Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

SARAH-JANE CURTIS
Non-Executive Director
Appainted:

January 2020

Experience:
Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarah-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grosvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolONE.

. skills and Contribution to the Board:

Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied
career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

Other Appointments:

Sarah-jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
a consultant to Value Retail PLC.



SIMON MARRISON
Senior Independent Director

TIM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed: Appointed:
September 2011 January 2018
Experience: Experience:

joined the Board of the Company

on 28 September 2011 and became
senior Independent Director on 28th
July 2020. He has over 30 years’
experience in the European property
investment industry. He is currently
senior advisor for European Real Estate
at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis Roberts). Prior
to this he spent 19 years at LaSalle
Investment Management where he
was European CEO for 12 years with
responsibility for a portfolio of over
€20 billion acress Europe. Mr Marrison
has been based in Paris since 1990
having started his career in London.
Until 1997 he was a partner at Healey
& Baker (naw Cushman & Wakefield})
and from 1997 to 2001 he was at
Rodamco where he became Country
Manager for France. He joined LaSalle
in 2001 as Managing Director for
Continental Europe.

skills and Contribution to the Board:

Simon brings in 3 wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
relevant skills in investment
management,

Other Appointments:

Senior advisor for European Real Estate
at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis Roberts)

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years” experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedie Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Other Appointments:

Tim is currently 8 Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Biood Cancer UK.

All directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Cammittee.
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Managers

l L

MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

X
JO ELLIOTT

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in january 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolio and latierly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

{1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

GEORGE GAY

Jo Elliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the propeity team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager
with London and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. jo has a BS¢ (Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingharn and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988. Jo is a Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capitai Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chaitered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investrnent agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
Law from City University.
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Alban Lthonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Reseatch analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSc in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. fn 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from £SCP-EAP.



Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements of
the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March

2021. The Group comprises TR Property Investment Trust
plc and its wholly owned subsidiaries. As permitted by
legislation, some matters normally included in the Report
of the Directors have been included in the Strategic Report
because the Board considers them to be of strategic
importance, Therefore, the review of the business of the
Culnpdny, recent events and outlock can be found on
pages 4 to 35.

S5TATUS

The Company is an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
an investment trust in gccordance with Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010.

The Company Nas a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a naminal value of 25p each which are premium
fisted on the Londan Stock Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from HM Revenue
& Customs that the Company has been accepted as

an approved investment trust for accounting pericds
commencing on or after 1 April 2012 subject to the
Cormpany continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongaing
requirements for approved companies in Chapter 3

of Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company} {Tax)
Regulations 2011 (Statutory Instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct its affairs so as

to maintain investment trust status. The Company has
alse conducted its affairs, and will continue 10 conduct

its affairs, in such a way as to comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Regulations. The Ordinary shares can be
held in Individual Savings Accounts {ISAS).

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

At 31 March 2021 the net assets of the Company amounted
fo £1,326 million (2020: £1,136 millien), on & per share
Basis 417.97p (2020: 358.11p) per share.

Revenue eamnings per share for the year amounted to
12.25p (2020: 14.62p) and the Directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 9.00p {2020: 8.80p) per
share bringing the total dividend for the year to 14.20p
(2019:14.00p). In arriving at their dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the income forecasts for the year te
March 2022.

performance details are set cut in the Financial Highlights
on page 2 and the putcome of what the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance indicators on pages 26 and 27.
The Chairman’s Statement and the Manager’s Repart give
full details and analysis of the resulis for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

At 31 March 2021 the Company had 317,350,980
(2020- 317,350,980} Ordinary shares in issue.

At the AGM in 2020 the Directors were given power to
buy back 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since this AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares at
the nominal value of 25p each under this authority. The
outstanding autherity is therefore 47,570,911 shares.
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This authority will expire at the 2021 AGM. The Company
will seek to renew the power to make market purchases
of Ordinary shares at this year's AGM.

Since 1 April 2021 to the date of this report, the Company
has made na market purchases for cancellation. The Board
has not set a specific discount at which shares will be
repurchased.

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

Details of the managemeant arrangements and fees are
set out in the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning on page 53. Total fees paid

to the Manager in any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group
Equity Sharehalders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the

year to 31 March 2021 amaunt to 1.2% {2020: 0.8%) of
Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Included in this were
performance fees earned in the year ended 31 March 2021
of £9,659,000 (2020: £2,683,000).

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND IFRS

The Group and Company financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the Internaticnal Accounting
standards Board (IASB), together with interpretations

of the International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee approved by the International
Accounting Standards Coemmittee (IASC) that remain in
effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the
European Union and as regards the Group and Company
finandial statemments, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The accounting policies are set out in note 1 to the
Hinancial Statements on pages 73 to 77.
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Report of the Directors continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s Financial tnstruments comprise its
investment portfolio, cash balances, borrawings and
debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlement, profit

or loss balances on derivative instruments and accrued
income and expenses. The financial risk management
objectives and policies arising from its financial
instruments and exposure of the Company to risk are
disclosed in note 11 o the financial statements,

GOING CONCERN

The Directors’ assessment of the longer-term viability of
the Company s set out on pages 33 and 34.

In assessing Going Concern, the Beard has made a detailed
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group to
meet its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and
liguidity tests which considered the effects of substantial
falls in investment valuations, substantial reductions

in revenue received and reductions in market liquidity
including the effects and potential effects of the continued
economic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The
Board is satisfied with the operational resilience of service
providers despite COVID-19 and continues to manitar their
performance throughout the pandemic.

tn light of testing carried out, the overall levels of the
investment liquidity held by the Comipany and the
significant net asset portiolio position, and despite the
small net current liability position of the Parent Company
and Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate financial resources to
continue in operation for at least the next 12 months
following the signing of the financial statements and
therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group'’s
systems of internal contrals and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Portfolic Manager (s responsible for the
day to day investment management decisions on behalf
of the Group. Accounting and company secretarial services
have both been outsourced.

The internal controls aim to ensure that the assets of the
Group are safeguarded, praper accounting records are
maintained, and the financial information used within

the business and for publication is refiable. Control of the
risks identified, covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management, is embedded in the controls of

the Group by a series of requiar investment performance
and attribution statemnents, finandial and risk analyses,
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AIFM and Portiolio Manager reports and quarterly control
reports. Key risks have been identified and controls put in
place to mitigate them, induding those not directly the
responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolio Manager. The key
risks are explained in more detail in the Strategic Report
an pages 28 to 32.

The effectiveness of each third party provider's internal
controls is assessed on a continuing basis by the Cornpliance
and Risk departments of the AlFM and Portfolio Manager,
the Administratar and the Carnpany Secretary. Each
maintains its own system of internal controls, and the Board
and Audit Committee receive reqular reports from them.
The control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstaternent of
loss and to manage, rather than eliminate, risk of failure to
achieve objectives.

As the Company has nc employees and its operational
functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Committee does not consider it necessary for the Company
to establish its own internal audit function. Instead, the
Audit Committee relies on internal control reports received
from its principal service providers to satisfy itself as to the
contrals in place.

The Board has esiablished a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any major risks faced by the
Group. The Board undertakes an annual review of the
Group's system of internal controls in line with the Turnbull
guidance. Business risks have also been analysed by

the Board and recorded in a risk map that is reviewed
reqularly. Each quarter the Board receives a formal
report from each of the AIFM, Portfolio Manager, the
Administratar and the Company Secretary detailing the
steps taken to monitar the areas of risk, including those
that are not directly their respansibifity, and which report
the detalls of any known internal control failures.

The Board also considers the flow of informaticn and the
interaction between the third party service providers and
the controls in place to ensure accuracy and comoleteness
of the recording of assets and income. The Board receives
a report from the Portfolio Manager setting out the key
controls in operation.

The Baard also has direct access ta company secretarial
advice and services provided by Link Company Matters
which, through its naminated representative, s
responsible for ensuring that the Board and Committee
procedures are followed and that applicable requlations
are complied with.

These controls have been in place throughout the period
under review and up to the date of signing the accounts.



Key risks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure robust internal controls and
monitoring procedures are in place in respect of these
risks on an ongoing basis.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE “AGM")

The AGM will be held on 27 July 2021 at 2.30pm at the Rayal
Auomobile Club, 89/971 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5HS. The Notice
of AGM i3 5et out on pages 100 and 101, 1he full text of the
resolutions and an explanation of each is contained in the
Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 104 1o 107,

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were ng contracts subsisting during or at the end

of the year in which a directer of the Company is or was
materially interested and which is or was significant in
relation to the Company's business. No Director has a
contract of sefvice with the Company. Further details
regarding the appointment letters can be found on page 52.

DONATIONS

The Company made no political or charitable donations
during the year (2020: £nil).

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company confirms that there are no items which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 9.8.4R in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021,

VOTING INTERESTS

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and ather shareholders’ rights,
shares may be issued with such rights and restrictions as
the Company may by ordinary resolution decide, or (if there
is e such resolution or so far as it does not make specific
provision) as the Board may decide. Subject to the Articles,
the Companies Act 2006 and other sharenholders’ rights,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board.

Voting

At a general meeting of the Company, when voting is
undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords its owner
one vote.

Restrictions on Voting

Ne mernber shall be entitled to vote if e has been
served with a restriction notice {as defined in the Articles)
after failure to provide the Company with information
concerning interests in those shares required to be
provided under the Companies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights
Votes are exercisable at the general meating of the Company
in respect of which the business being voted upon is being

heard. Vates may be exercised in person, by proxy, or in
relation to corporate rmembers, by corporate representatives.

The Articles provide & deadline for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours (or such shorter time
as the Board may determine) hefare the meeting (not
excluding non-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject
to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may approve.

Significant Voting Rights

At 31 March 2021, no shareholders held over 3% of voting
rights on a discretionary basis. However, at 31 March 2021
the following shareholders held over 3% of the voting
rights on a non-discretionary Dasis:

% of
Ordinary

share voling
rights®

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphin Lid 1.1%
Retail Investors - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investrent Management ttd 51%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group plc 30%

* see above for further information on the vating nghts of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this report, the
Company has not been informed of any notitiable changes
with respect o the Ordinary shares.

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution at & General Meeting of
the shareholders.

Amendments to the Articles of Association will be
proposed at the 2021 AGM and further details are set out
on page 106 to 107

Corporate Governance

Full detaifs are given in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 44 to 50. The Corporate Governance Report forms
part of this Cirectors’ Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors is accountabie to shareholders for
the governance of the Company’s affairs.

This statement describes how the principies of the 2018
edition of UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”)
issued Dy the Financial Reporting Council (the “FRC") in
2018 have been applied to the affairs of the Company. The
Code can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In applying the principle of the Code, the Directors

have also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance published by the AIC (the "AIC Code™), of which
the Company is a member. The AIC Code establishes the
framewaork of best practice specifically for the Boards of
investment trust companies. Furthermore, the AIC Code
has full endorsement of the FRC, which means that AlC
members who report against the AIC Code, on the whole,
meet their abligations under the Code and the related
disclosure requirements contained in the Listing Rules. The
AlC Code can be viewed at www theaic co.uk.

The Directors believe that during the period under review
they have complied with the main principles and relevant
provisions of the Code, insofar as they apply to the
Company’s business, and with the provisions of the AIC Code.

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company did nat comply with
the following provisions of the Code in the year ended

31 Maich 2021

Provision 9, Due to the nature and structure of the
Company the Board of non-executive directors does not
feel it is appropriate to appoint a chief executive.

Provision 24. The Board believes that all Directors,
including the Chairman, should sit on all of the Board's
Committees.

Provision 26. As the Company has no employees and its
operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the
Audit Committee does not consider it appropriate for {he
Company to establish its own internal audit function. The
Company’s service providers provide assurance of their
effective internal processes and controls.

Provision 32. The Board does not have a separate
Remuneratian Committee. The functions of a
Remuneration Committee are carried out by the
Management Engagernent Committee.
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Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently consists cf five directors, all of whom
are nan-executive. The Beard’s independence, including
that of the Chairman, has been considered and all of the
Directors are deemed to be Independent in character and
have no relationships or circumslances which are likely 1o
affect their juggement.

The Board subscribes to the view expressed in the AIC
Code that long-serving Direciors should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majority. It does not
consider that the length of a Director's tenure, in isolation,
reduces his or her ability to act independently. The
Boara’s policy on tenure is that continuity and experience
add significantly to the strength of the Board although
the Beard believes in the merits of an ongoing and
progressive refreshment of its compesition.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefit of diversity and as of the
date of this report the Board consists of three men and
two women.

Diversity is taken into account as part cf the recruitment,
appointment and succession planning process and

the Board is also aware of the developing corporate
governance with regard to ethnicity of individual

Direciors. The Board is commitied to appointing the rmost
appropriate candidate, regardiess of gender or other forms
of diversity and therefore no targets have been set against
which to report.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Assaciation, the
Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by special
resolution, the business of the Company is managed

by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the
Company, whether relating to the management of the
business of the Company or not. In particular, the Board
may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow
money and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings,
property, assets and uncalled capital and o issue
debentures and other securities and to give security for
any debt, liability or obligation of the Company to any third
party.

There are no contracts or arrangements with third paities
which affect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
of the Company.



DIRECTORS

The Chairman is Mr Watson and the Senior Independent
Director is Mr Marrison. Mr Watson succeeded Mr Seaborn
as Chairman when he retired from the Beard af Director
following the AGM on 28 July 2020. Mr Marrison succeeded
Mr Watson as the Senior Independent Director on this
date. The Directors’ biggraphies, on pages 38 and 39,
demonstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and
professicnal experience relevant to their positions as
Directors of the Company.

Directors’ retirement by rotation and re-election is subject
to the Articles of Association. in accordance with the Code,
all directors will be subject to annual re-election.

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curtis, Mr Gillbanks, Mr Marrison,

M Watson will all retire at the forthcoming AGM in
accordance with the Coede and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-glection. All Directors are regarded as
being free of any conflicts of interast and no issues in
respect of independence arise. The Board has concluded
that all Directors continue to make valuable contributicns

BOARD MEETINGS

and believe that they remain independent in character
and judgement.

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of
office in an event of a takeover bid.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a
Normination Cuininitlee and a Management Engagement
Committee, which also carries out the functicns of

a Remuneration Committee. All the Directars of the
Company are non-execUtive and serve on each Committee
of the Board. It has been the Company’s policy to

include all Directors on all Committees. This encourages
unity, clear communication and prevents duplication of
discussion between the Board and the Committees.

The roles and responsibilities of each Committee are set
out on the individual Committee reports which follow. Each
Committee has written terms of reference which clearly
defing its responsibilities and duties. These can be found
on the Company’s website, are available on request and
will also be available for inspection at the AGM.

The number of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Directors, are shown below:

Board Audit MEC Nomination
Attended Fligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible
David V;afson 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Simon Marrisen 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Kate Bolsover & 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1

In addition tc formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors also attend a number of informal meetings to
represent the interests of the Company. and to discuss operational markets and succession planning.

THE BOARD

The Beard is responsible for the effective stewardship of the Cornpany’s affairs. Certain strategic issues are monitored
by the Board at meetings against a framework which has been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may
be arranged as required. The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
categorised under various headings, including strategy, management, structure, capital, financial reporting, internal
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controls, gearing, asset allocation, share price discount, contracts, investment policy, finance, risk, investment restricticns,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments.

In erder 16 enable them to discharge their responsibilities, all Directors have full and timely access to relevant information.
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company’s investment performance and considers financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature. The Board monitors compliance with the Company's cbjectives and is responsible for
setting asset allocation and investment and gearing limits within which the Portfclio Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portfolie, which is contractually delegated to the Portfolio Manager.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Board has responsibility for the aoproval of
investments in unquoted investments and any
investments in funds managed or advised by the Portfolio
Manager. It has also adopted a procedure for Directors,

in the furtherance of their duties, to take independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company.

CONFLICTS GF INTEREST

In line with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the
power to authorise any potential confiicts of interest that may
arise and impose such fimits or conditions as it thinks fit. A
register of potential confiicts is maintained and is reviewed at
every Board meeting 1o ensure all details are kept up-to-date.
Appropriate authorisation will be sought prior to the
appgintment of any new Directer or if any new conflicts arise.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder relations are given hiah priority by the Board,
the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager. The prime medium
by which the Company communicates with shareholders
is through the (nterim and Annual Reports which aim to
provide shareholders with a clear understanding of the
Comoany’s activities and their results. This information is
supplemented by the daily calculation of the Net Asset
Value of the Company's Ordinary shares which is published
on the London Stock Exchange.

This information is also available on the Company's
website, www.lrproperty.com together with a manthly
factsheet and Manager commentary.

it is the intention of the Beard that the Annua! Report and
Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issued to shareholders
5o as to provide at least twenty working days’ notice of
the AGM. Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in
advance of the AGM, or to contact the Board at any other
time, are invited to do so by writing to the Company
Secretary at the registered address given on page 108.

General presentations are given to both shareholders and
analysts fcllowing the publication of the annual results.
Ali meetings between the Manager and sharehalders are
ieported to the Board.

SECTION 172 COMPANIES ACT 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires directors
to act in good faith and in a way that is the most likely
to promote the success of the Company. In accerdance
with the requirements of the Companies (Miscellaneous
Reporting} Regulations 2018, below, the Company
explains how the Directors have discharged their duty
under section 172 during the reporting period. Fulfilling
this duty naturally supparts the Company in achieving its
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Investment Objective and helps to ensure that alf decisions
are made in a responsible and sustainable way.

Upen appointment, Directors” are provided with 3 detailed
induction outlining their duties, legally and requlatory, as

a Director of 3 UK public limited company and continue to
regularly receive relevant technical updates and training.
Under their letter of appaintment, the Directors also have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
opportunity to seek independent prafessionat advice in the
furtherance of their duties as a director, at the Company’s
expense. The Company has a schedule of Matters Reserved
for the Board which clearly describes the Board's duties
and responsibilities. In addition, there are alsa the Terms

of References of the Board’s Committees which outline

the responsibilities that are delegated from the Board.

The Terms of References are reviewed at least annually to
consider any requlatory and best practice developments.

DECISION MAKING

The impartance of stakeholder considerations, in
particular in the context of decisign-making, is reqularly
brought to the Board's attention by the Company
Secretary and taken into account at every Board
meeting, and g paper reminding Directors of that is
tabted at the start of every Board meeting. The Board
considers the impact that any material decision will
have on all relevant stakeholders (g ensure that it is
making a decision that promotes the long-term success
of the Company, whether this be, for examole, in
relation to dividends, new investment opportunities or
the Company's forward strateqy, 'n addition, the Board,.
along with the Manager, hold a meeting focused on
strategy on an annuai basis tc look ahead in the market
and anticipate potentiai scenarios and how this may
impact the Company’s stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company’s stakehoiders and ensures that they are
considered during all its discussions and as part of its
decision-making. Since the Company is an investment
trust that is externally managed, the Company does
not have any employees (the Directors have a Letter of
Appointment and are not employees of the Company],
nor does it have a direct impact on the community

or environment in the conventional sense. The Board
recognises its key stakeholders and explains befow
why these stakeholders are considered imporiant to
the Company and the actions taken to ensure that their
interests are taken into account.



Stakeholder Group and why  Board engagement

they are important

shareholders

Shareholder support is
essential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term strateqy of the
business.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, including institutional and retail investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and te engage with

Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from shaiehulders al its AaMm. shareholders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and 1o address questions to thern directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company vatues any feedback and guestions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.

« Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website

| and sent to shareholders. These publications provide informatien on the Company and
1 its portfalio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financial position.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the Stock Exchange and
monthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

- Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

Working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers waork together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns

with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Director is also available to Sharehalders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

The Manager

Holding the Company’s

shares offers investors a
liquid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
exposure to the Company’s
diverssified portiolio. The
Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for

the Company to successfully
defiver its investment strategy
and meet its cbjective.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
line with the Company's investment objective. Important components in the collaboration
with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at alt levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
! topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to

| ensure a close dialogue is maintained.
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Corperate Governance Report continued

stakeholder Group and why

Board engagement

they are important

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the

Depository and the Broker

A range of advisers enables The Board maintains regular contact with its key external providers and receives regular
“ the Company to function as [ reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of

constituent of the FTSE 250 to
ensure it meets its relevant

r an investrent trust and a

the regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
taken into account, The Management Engagernent Committee formally assesses their
performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the

J obligations. J key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately

Lenderss

Availability of funding and

| liquidity are crucial to the
Company’s ability to take
advantage of investorent {

opportunities as they arise. |

Regulators

‘ The Company can only ‘ | The Board reg reqularly considers how it meets various regulatory and statutory obl|gat|ons arn
follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it
‘ makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the Tonger-term.

operate with the approval
’ of its regulators who have

a legitimate interest in how

the Company operates in [
‘ the market and treats its

[ ultimately shareholders
assels and the Board

/ recagnises the importance

| of good stewardship and
communication with investee

J companies in meeting the {
Company’s investment !

objective ond stategy. |

r meetings.

The Board is always mindful of the requirement to act in
the best interests of shareholders as a whole and 1o have
regard to other applicable section 172 factors which form
part of Board’s decision-making process. The following
key decisions taken by the Board during the year ended
31 March 2021 are examples of this:

GEARING

During the financial year, the Company continued to utilise

its existing revolving annual loan facilities and following

a review of the available options each were renewed on
broadly similar terms as the renewals fell due throughout the
year. The Board is keen to maintain a wide range of banking
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remunerated ta deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Cammittee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

The Board needs to demonstrate to lenders that it is a well-managed business, capable of
( consistently delivering long-term returns.
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shareholders. 7 ) ]
investee Companies
Portfolio companies are ‘ The Manager communicates regularly with portfolio companies and is an engaged .

| shareholder (on behalf of the Company).

‘ The Board monitors the Manager's stewardship arrangements and receives regular feedback
‘ on meetings with the management ¢f portfolic companies and voting at their general

relationships to ensure that it has access to 3 diverse range
of terms and is not reliant on any one provider. The faclities
provide flexibility and complement the longer-term private

placement fixed term debt that is in place.

Using revenue reserves to support the dividends paid
to shareholders.

Subject to shareholder approval of the proposed final
dividend, the Company paid a total dividend of 14.20p for the
financial year, [fepresenting an increase of 1.40% compared
to the previous year. The financial year was a period of
uncertainty, when many companies, particularly within the
UK and turope, either cut, postponed or cancelted their



dividends. The Board recognises the importance of dividends
to shareholders and after careful review of the Company's
revenue forecasls and reserves together with the investment
outlock with the Manager, the Board decided that,
notwithstanding the exceptional market conditions, it would
draw on the revenue reserve to support the dividend.

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

During the year the Board continued to focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving the Company’s
investment objective within an appropriate risk framewaork.
Following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic in March
2020, the focus widened to consider the potential impact of
COVID-19 on the Company (including portfolio activity, risks and
opportunities, gearing, revenue forecasts and the operations
of other third party providers) to ensure that the portfolio had
sufficient resilience together with the Company’s operational
structure to meet the unprecedented circumstances.

DIRECTORATE

The Board's policy on tenure was reviewed during the

year, The stability of the Board during one of the most
challenging periods was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made to the Board in October
2019 and January 2020. Therefore, no changes were made
to the Board composition during the financial year. However,
the Board is mindful of the importance of having a suitable
successian plan especially as David Watson has served on
the Board since 2012 and Simon Marrison since 2011,

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Board is in agreement that having a good cerporate
culture, particularly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders wil! aid delivery
of its long term strategy. The Board promotes a culture
of openness, in line with this purpose through ongoing
engagement with its service providers and the Manager.

The Directors agree that establishing and maintaining

a healthy corporate culture within the Board and in its
interaction with the fManager, Shareholders and other
stakeholders will support the delivery of its purpose, values
and strategy. The Board seeks to promote a culture of
openness, debate and integrity through ongoing dialogue
and engagement with its service providers, principally the
manager. The Board strives to ensure that its culture is in
line with the Company's purpose, values and stiategy.

The Company has a number of pclicies and procedures
in place to assist with maintaining a culture of good

governance including those relating to diversity,

Directors” conflicts of interest and Directors” dealings in
the Company's shares. The Board assesses and monitors
compliance with these policies as well as the general
culture of the Beard regularly through Board meetings and
in particular during the annual evaluation process which is
undertaken by each Director (for more information see the
performance evaluation section on page 51.

The Board seeks to appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluates their service on & reqular basis
as described on page 54. The Board considers the culture
of the Manager and cther service providers, including
their policies, practices and behaviour, through regular
reporting frem these stakeholders and in particular during
the annual review of the performance and continuing
appointment of all service providers.

EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Baard recognises the reguirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detail information about human rights,
amployees and community issues, including information
about any policies it has in relation to these matters and
the effectiveness of these policies. These requirements,
practically, are not applicable to the Company as it has no
employees, all the Directors are non-executive and it has
outsourced all operational functions tc third-party service
oroviders. Therefore, the Campany has not reported further
in respect of these provisions.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover is in
place in respect of the Directors. The Company’s Articles
of Association provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemnity for Directors in respect of costs
which they may incur relating to the defence of any
proceedings braught against them arising out of their
positions as Directers, in which they are acquitted or
judgement is given in their favour by the court.

To the extent permittad by law and by the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Company has entered into
deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each Director of
the Company in respact of liabilities which may attach to
thern in their capacity as Directors of the Company. These
provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity
provisions as defined by section 234 of the Companies
Act 2006, were Introduced in January 2007 and currently
remain in force.
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Coiporate Governane Bepost continued

DIRECTORS STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors’ report are listed on pages 38
and 3%. Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of
the Company’s auditors, each of these Directors confirms
that:

- to the best of each Director’s knowledge and belief,
there is no information (that is, information needed by
the Company’s auditors in connection with preparing
their report} of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

each Director has taken all the steps a Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This information is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

By order of the Board

David Watson ¢/ W
Chairman /7 ﬁV”

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Committees and make
recommendations in relation to structure, size and
composition, the balance of knowledqge, experience
and skill ranges;

Consider succession planning and tenure policy and
oversee the development of a diverse pipeling;

Consider the re-election of Directors; and
Review the outcome of the board evaluation process.

The Nomination Committee meets at least on an annual
basis, and more frequently as and when required and last
met in March 2021.

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Committee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity policies.

The Committee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Board and will continue to review succession
planning and further recruitment and take into account the
recommendations of external Board evaluations.

BOARD EVALUATION

Fallowing the engagement of Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to facilitate an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board, its committees and
the perfarmance of each director for the year ended

31 march 2020. The annual evaluation for the year ended
31 March 2021 was carried out by the Company. This
took the form of questionnaires followed by discussions
to identify the effectiveness of the Board's activities,
inciuding its Committees,

The Chairman also reviewed with each Director their
individual performance, contribution and commitment.
The appraisal of the Chairman followed the same format
and was led by Simon Marrison. The results of the
evaluation process were presented to and considered by
the Board. There were no significant actions arising from
the evaluation process and it was agreed that the current
composition of the Board and its Committees reflected a
suitable mix of skills and experience, and that the Board
as a whole, the individual Directors and its Committees
were functioning effectively.

After careful consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Governing Board Members’ Teaure and Reappaintment, all
of the directors, will be offering themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM. It is considered that each of them
rnerit re-election by shareholders. Further information on

each directors” skills and their contribution to the Board are
outlined in the directors’ biographies on pages 38 and 35.

In accordance with the provisions of the Lode, it is the
intention of the Board t¢ engage an external facilitator to
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be carried out for
the year ended 31 March 2023. The Board will continue to
complete an internal board evaluation annually within the
intervening years.
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BOARD’S POLICY ON TENURE

In line with the update of the Code in 2018, the AIC has
updated its Code of Carporate Governance in 201%. The AlC
recommended, under Provision 24, a different approach to
tenure in relation to investment companies, considering
how they differ to chairs of aperating companies, whera
the Board does not have a chief executive. The Beard tock
into consideration the approach and introduced the ‘Palicy
Governing Board members’ Tenure and Reappeintment’
This policy outlines the Company's approach to tenure and
rezppointment of non-executive directors. It highlights the
Board’s belief that the value brought through continuity
and experience of Directors with longer pericds of service
is not only desirable, but essential in an investment
company. The Board did not feel that it would be
appropriate to set a specific tenure limit for individual
Directors or the Chairman of the Board or its committees.
Instead, the Board will seek to recruit a new Director on
average every three years so as reqularly to bring the
challenge of fresh thinking into the Board's discussions,
ensuring that on each occasion that the Board enters into
new investment commitments, at least half the Board
members have direct personal experience of negotiating
previous commitments with the Manager,

DIRECTORS TRAINING

when a new Oirector is appointed, he/she is offered
training to suit their neads. Directars are also provided
with key information on the Company’s activities cn

a reqular basis, including reguiatory and statutory
requirermnents and internal controls. Changes affecting
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
arise. Directors ensure that they are updated on regulatory,
statutory and industry matters.
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LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director has a contract of employment with the
Company. Directors’ terms and conditions for appointment
are set out in letters of appointment which are available
for inspection at the registered office of the Company and
will be gn display at the AGM.

David Watson
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

3 June 2021




Report of the Management Engagement Committee

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Manitor and review the performance of the AIFM and
Portfolic Manager;

Review the terms of the Investment Manager
Agreement;

Annually review the contract of terms and agreements
of each external third party service provider; and

Review an an annual basis, the remuneration of the
Girectors.

In addition to the Investment Management role, the Board
has delegated to external third parties the depasitary
and custodial services (which include the safeguarding of
assets), the day to day accounting, company secretarial
services, administration and reqistration services. Fach

of these contracts was enterad into after full and proper
consideration of the quality of the services offered,
including the contrel systems in operation insofar as they
relate to the affairs of the Company. The Management
Engagement Committee (the “MEC™) determines and
approves Directors’ fees following proper consideration,
having regard to the level of fees payable to non-
executive Directors in the industry generally, the role
that individual directors fulfil in respect of Board and
Committee responsibilities and the time committed to
the Company’s affairs. For further details please see the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 55 ta 57.

The MEC meets at least on an annual basis, towards the
end of the financial year and last met in March 2021.

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

At the MEC meeting in March 2021, the Committee
reviewed the overall performance of the AIFM

and Portfolic Manager and considered both the
appropriateness of the Manager’s appointment and the
contractual arrangements (including the structure and
level of remuneration) with the Manager.

In addition to the reviews by the MEC, the Board reviewed
and considered performance reports from the Portfolio
Manager at each Board meeting. The Board also received
reqular reports from the Administrator and Company
Secretary.

The Board believe that the Manager’s track record and
performance remains ocutstanding. As a result, the MEC
confirmed that the AIFM and Portfolio Manager should

be retained for the financial year ending 31 March 2021
being in the best interests for all shareholders. A summary
of the significant terms of the Investment Management
Agreement and the third party service providers who
support the Trust are set out below

During tha year the MEC also reviewed the performance
of all their third party service providers including BNP
Paribas, Link Company Matters, Computershare, both the
Company’s brokers and PwC (3s tax advisors). The Portfolio
Manager provides regular updates on the performance of
all third party providers during the year and attended this
part of the MEC Meeting. The MEC confirmed that they
were satisfied with the level of services delivered by each
third party provider.
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MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

On 11 )uly 2014, the Board appointed BMO Investment
Business Limited as the Alternative Investment Fund
Manager {in accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive) with portfolio management
delegated to the Investment Manager, Thames River
Capital LLP

The significant terms of the Investment Management
Agreement with the Manager are as follows:

On 12 Apri! 2021 BMO announced that it had reached
an agreement to sell its assel management business in
Europe, the middle East and Africa, which will, subject
to completion, become part of Columbia Threadneedie
Investments, the global asset management business

of Ameriprise Financial, Inc. Details have not yet been
finalised and published but both companies have
confirmed the importance of maintaining the stability
and continuity of the teams which presently support our
company. The transaction is expected to clase near the
end of the calendar year,

NOTICE PERIOD

The Investment Management Agreement (“IMA”) provides
for termination of the agreement by either party without
cormpensation on the pravision of not less than 12 months’
written notice.
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MANAGERMENT FEES

The fee for the period under review was a fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based on
the net asset value (determined in accordance with the
AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June,
September and December, payable quarterly in advance.

The fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board
for the year to 31 March 2022 and the fixed element of the
fee and the ad valorem rate will remain unchanged.

The Board continues to cansider that the fee structure
aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager as
weil as belng highly competitive.

The fee arrangements will continue to be reviewed on an
annual basis.

PERFORMANCE FEES

in addition to the management fees, the Board has agreed
to pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of
an accounting period if certain performance objectives are
achieved.

A performance fee is payable if the total return of adjusted
net assets (after deduction of all Base Management
Fees and other expenses), as defined in the iIMA, at

31 March each year outperforms the total return of the
Company’s benchmark plus 1% (the “hurdle rate”); this
outperformance {expressed as a percentage) is known
as the “percentage outperformance”. Any fee payable
will be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assets
at 31 March each year multiplied by the percentage
outperformance, then multiplied by 15%. The maximum
performance fee payable for a period is capped at 1.5%
of the adjusted net assets. However, if the adjusted

net assets at the end of any periad are less than at the
beginning of the period, the maximum performance fee
payable will be limited 10 1% of the adjusted net assets.

If the tota! return of shareholders’ funds for any
performance period is less than the benchmark for the
relevant performance period, such underperformance
(expressed as a percentage) will be carried fosward to
future performance periods.

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
fexpressed as a percentage) will be carried forward and
applied to offset any percentage undeiperformance

in future performance periods. In the event that the
benchmark is exceeded but the hurdle is not, that
outperformance of the benchmark can be used to offset
past or future underperformance. These amounts can
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be used for offset purposes only and therefore cannot
have the effect of creating a fee in a year where 3 fee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in that year. At 31 March 2021 there is a carry forward of
outperformance of 1.8% (2020: 1.8%).

No fee will be payable unless the adjusted net assets
outperform the hurdle rate, after taking into account

any accumulated percentage underperformance

brought forward at the beginning of the financial year.
Performance fees earned in the year ended 31 March
2021 were £9,659,000 (2020: £2,683,000). Total fees

paid to the Manager in any one year (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity
Sharehclders’ Funds. Total fees payabte for the year ta 31
March 2021 amount to 1.2% (2020: 0.8%) of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds.

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Paribas was appointed as Depositary on 14 july 2014
in accordance with the AIFMD. The Depositary’s
responsibilities include: cash menitoring; segregation and
safe keeping of the Company’s financial instruments; and
monitoring the Company’s compliance with investment
and leverage requirements. The Depositary receives

for its services a fee of 2.0 basis points per annum on
the first £150 million of the Company’s assets, 1.4 basis
paints per anntim on assets above £150 million and
below £500 million and 0.75 basis points on assets above
£500 million.

REVIEW GF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS' FEES
Custody and Administration Services are provided by

BNP Paribas and Company Secretarial Services by Link
Company Matters. The fees for these sefvices are charged
directly to the Company and are contained within

other administrative expenses disclosed in notes to the
accounts,

/ A -

David Watson
Chairrnan of the Management Engagement Cormmittee
3 June 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneraticn Policy, in accerdance with the requiremnents
of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reparts) Requlations 2013. An
ordinary resolution for the approval of this report will be
put to the members at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

The law requires the Company’s Auditors, KPMG LLP

to audit certain of the disclosures provided. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such.
The Auditor's opinion is included in the ‘Independent
Auditor's Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC met in March 2021 and considered the results
and feedback from the board evaluation alengside

other factars. The MEC also cansidered the frequency af
remuneration increases for the Trust, feedback from the
market and investors an the level of frequency and the
current impact of the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19).

Following the MEC meeting in March 2021, it was agreed
that the current level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remained appropriate. It was alse agreed that the
Non-executive Director’s fee weuld remain at £35,000 per
annum with effect from 1 April 2021, It was further agread
that the Directors holding the role of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Senior Independent Direcior would continue
to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase in
their responsibilities. Moreover, it was agreed that the
Chairman’s remuneration would remain at £70,000.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s policy is that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company's affairs and the responsibilities borne by the
Directors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of
high calibre to be recruited. The palicy is for the Chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee and -
the Senior Independent Director to be paid higher fees

than the other Directors in recognition of their mare
oneraus roles. This policy was appraved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors” intention is that this
will cantinue for the year ending 31 March 2023,

The Directers are remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly in arrears, to the birector personaily or
to a third party specified by that Director. There are no
long term incentive schenes, shale option schemes or
pension arrangements and the fees are not specifically
related to the Directors’ performance, either individually or
collectively.
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The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Directors,
who are appointed with the expectation that they will
serve for a period of three years. Directors” appointments
are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the
Board as a whale. None of the Directors have a contract
of service and a Director may resign by notice in writing
to the Board at any time; there are no notice periods. The
terms of their appointment are detailed in a letter to them
when they join the Board. As the Directors do not have
service contracts, the Company does not have a policy on
terminaticn payments.

There is no notice period and nc payments for loss of
office were made during the period. The Company’s
Articles of Association currently limit the total agqreqgate
fees payahle to the Board to £300,000 per annum.

Shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taken
into account in formulating the Directors remuneration
policy. At the last AGM, over 99.6% of shareholders voted
for the resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Report (04% against). At the 2020 AGM, over 99% voted
for the resolution approving the Directors’ Rermnuneration
Policy (0.4% against), showing significant shareholder
support.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are set out
below, with a description and approach to determination.
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Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees

- Additional Fees Expenses Fees ather
[ The aggregate limit for the Additional fees may be paid | The Directors are entitled | Board members are not '
Fees for the Board as a whole [ to any Director who fulfils the | to be paid all reasonable | eligible for bonuses, pension J
( is £300,000 per annum, in f role of the Chairman, who | expenses properly incurred benefits, share options,
accordance to the Articles of { chairs any committee of the | by them attending meetings | long-term incentive schemed J
Association, which is divided | Board or who is appointed _ | with shareholders or other ( or other non-cash benefits or ]
between the Directars as , as the Senior Independent Oirectors or otherwise taxable expenses.
they may deem appropriate. I Director. { in connection with the
| Annual fees are set to These fees will be set discharge of their duties as
J Directors.

|
reflect the experience of % at a competitive level to J

[ each board member and \ reflect experience and time ‘
time commitment required | commitment. ‘ ‘
by Board members to carry [ [
out their duties and 1s } {

J determined with reference to | f
the appointment of Directors J / J
of similar investment J I

companies. | 41
ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

ror the year ended 31 March 2027, Directors’ fees were paid at the annuaf rates of Chairman: £70,000 (2020: £70,000)

and all other directors: £35,000 (2020: £35,000). An additional £5,000 is paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Commiitee Chairman and Senior Independent Director. The actual amounts paid to the Directors during the financial year
under review are as shown below.

AMOUNT OF EACH DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)

The fees payable in respect of each of the Directors who served during the financial year were as folfows:

£

David Watson( 60,461 40,000
Simon Marsison®® 38,410 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn® 23,333 70,000
ol T ' 232,200 208872

All fees are at a fixed rate and there is no variable remuneration Fees are pro-rated where a change takes place during
a financial year There were no payments to third parties included in the fees referred to in the table above There are no
further fees to disclose as the Company has no employees, chief executive or executive directors.

appomted as Chairmen on 28 July 2020
appointed as Senior independent Director on 28 July 2020
retired as Chairman on 28 July 2020
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Directors’ Remuneratien Report continued

COMPANY PERFOBMANCE telative tmportance of Spend on Pay

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended gggg change
31 March 2021, the percentage change over each period 9
in the share price total return to shareholders compared

Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
to the share price total return of benchmark, which the , P
) . Directors’ fees 232 209 N.0%
Board considers to be the most appropriate benchmark
for investment performance measurement purposes. An Five year change comparison
explanation of the performance of the Company is given in  Qver the last five years, Directors’ pay has Increased as set
the Chairman’s Statement and Manager’s Report. aut in the table below:

Performance Graph - Shase Price Total Return for

. 2016
Ordinary Share Class £000 Change
4000
] Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%

3500 Audit Committee

Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
2000 Senior Independent

Director 40,000 35,000 14.3%
500 Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%
2006 For and on behalf of the Board
1560 //) W

an /1
1000 David Watson
" Chaiiman of the Management Engagernent Commmitlee
5
Nx-1l  Ma-2  MaeT) MBS MBS MRS Ma-D? M-l el R Marn 3 jUne 2021

B 1 Property share Price Total Return ] Benchmark Total Retum

Share Price Total Return assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March 2011 and
relnvestment of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses). (Scurce:Thames
River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment into the Index of £1,000 on
33 March 201, (Source:Tharmes River Caphal)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS §N SHARES (AUDITED)

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointment, if 1ater, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2020
David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Sarzh-Jane Curtis - -

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this report, there have
been no subsequent changes to the Directors’ interests in
the shares of the Comnpany.
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman: mMr Gillbanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
Review the internal financial and non-financial controls;

Review reports fram key third parly service providers;

Cansider and recommend to the Beard for approval the
contents of the draft Interim and Annual Reports;

Review accounting policies and significant financial
reporting judgements;

Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company’s
compliance with financial reporting and regulatory
requirements;

The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the interim and final dividends; and

Considering the impact of providing non-audit services
on the external Auditor's independence and objectivity.

Representatives of the Manager's internal audit and
compliance departments may attend these committee
meetings at the Committee Chairman’s request.

Representatives of the Company's Auditor attend the
Committee meetings at which the draft interim and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed, and are given
the coportunity to speak to the Committee members
without the presence of the representatives of the
Manager.

The Board recognises the requirement for the Audit
Cornmittee as a whole to have competence relevant

to the sector and at least one member with recent and
relevant financial experience. The Chairman and Mr
watson are Chartered Accountants with extensive and
recent experience in the Finandal Services Industry. The
other members of the Committee have a combination of
property, financial, investment and business experience
through senior positians held thraughout their careers.

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
During the year the Committee met twice with all
members at each meeting and considered the following:

Consideration of the Risk Map, any changes to the
likelihood or impact of risks and consequential
changes required to Board Monitoring and mitigation
procedures. Consideration of any new or emerging
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risks and inclusion in the Risk Map if appropriate. This
has inciuded consideration of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemnic and impact across a range of risk categories;

The Group's Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports thereon;

The |SAE/AAF and SSAE16 reports of their equivalent
from BMQO and BNP Paribas;

whether the Company should have its own internal
audit function;

The External Auditor’s Planning Memorandum setting
out the scope of the annual audit and propased key
areas of focus;

The reports from the Auditors concerning their audit
of the Financial Staternents of the Company and
Consideration of Significant issues in relation to the
Financiat Statements;

The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the
accounting policies of the Company, including the
reascnableness of any judgements required by such
policies;

The Viability Statement and consideration of the
preparation of the Finandial Statements on a Gaing
Concern Basis taking account of forward looking income
forecasts, the liquidity of the investment portfolio and
debt profile;

The financial and other disclosures in the Financial
Statements;

The information presented in the Interim and Annual
Reports tc assess whether, taken as a whole, the
Reports are fair, balanced and understandable and the
information presented will enable the shareholders o
assess the Company’s position, perfermance, business
model and strateqy;

The performance of the external auditers, to approve
their audit fees and consider the assessment of
ingependence;

The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the interim and final dividends; and

The reviewal of the Committee’s Terms of Reference,
ensuring they remair appropriate and compliant with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.



Report of the Audit Committee continued

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systern
of Internal Controls and for reviewing thelr effectiveness.
Key risks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure that robust interna! controls
and maonitoring precedures in respect of these are in place
on an ongeoing basis. Further details can be found on

page 28 to 32

The Audit Committee received and considered reports on
Internal Controls from the key service providers. No areas
of concern were highlighted.

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to identify any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required to
existing risks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place in respect of these risks. The impact of COVID-19,
the response of financial markets, the ongoing impact

on economies around the world and operational changes
made by our service providers in response to government
guidelines were considered and the risk map adjusted
accordingly.

Based on the processes and controls in place within the
BMO Group and other significant service providers, the
Board has concurred that there is no current need for the
Company to have a dedicated internal audit functicn.

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee has considered this report and finandial
statements and the Viability Statement on pages 33

and 34. The Committee considered the Auditor’s
assessment of risk of material misstatement and reviewed
the internal controls in place in respect of the key areas
identified and the process by which the Board manitors
each of the pracedures to give the Committee comfort

on these risks on an ongoing basis. These risks are also
highlighted in the Carnpany's Risk map.

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Group’s investments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Paribas. The quoted
assets are priced by the Administrator's Global Pricing
Platform which uses independent external pricing
sources. The control process surrounding this 1s set
out in the BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Internal Contrals
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
period reparted to 31 December 2020 did not reveal
any significant exceptions. The guarterly control repert
to the Board from BNP Paribas covering the period up

to 31 March 2021 had no significant issues to report.
In addition the Manager estimates the NAV using
an alternative pricing source on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditors agreed 100% of the listed investments
of the portfolio to exiernally quoted prices and
independently received third party confirmatigns from
investment custodians and fuund the carrying value of
listed investments to be accepiable.

Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physical property
portfolio is valued every six months by professional
independent valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basts of
Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA
1 Valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by
the International financial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13
defines Fair value as:

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
fahility seftied, or an equity instrument granted could
be exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction”

In undertaking their valuation of each property, Knight
Frank make their assessment on the basis of a collation
and analysis of appropriate comparable investments,
rental and sale transactions, together with evidence

of demand within the vicinity of each property. This
information is then applied to the properties, taking
into account size, location, terms, covenant and other
material factors.

The heard has reviewed reparts from the Manager and
the external valuer and determined the valuation fo be
reasanable.

The Auditors have set out their detailed testing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Companys valuation
of investment properties to be acceptable.

There has been nothing brought to the Committee’s
attention in respect of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, which was matenial or signiticant or
that the Committee felt should be brought to shareholders’
attention.
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AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company’s external auditor, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company’s auditors at the 2016 AGM.
The Committee expects to repeat a tender process no
later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the following
31 March year end, in line with the fatest Corporate
Governance provisions.

During the year, KPMG presented thelr Audit Plan for

the vear end at the interim Commiitee meeting and the
Committee considered the audit process and fee proposal.
The Committee also reviewed KPMG's independence
policies and procedures including quality assurance
procedures. It was considered that these policies are fit
for purpose and the Directors are satisfied that KPMG are
independent.

Total fees payable to the Auditor in respect of the audit for
the year to 31 March 2021 were: £80,000 (2020. £80,000),
which were appioved by the Audit Committee.

The Committee has approved and implemented a policy
on the engagement of the Auditor ta supply non-audit
services, taking into account the recommendations of
the Accouniing Practices Board with 3 view to ensuring
that the external Auditor does not provide non-audit
services that have the potential to impair or appear {o
impair the independence of their audit role In addition,
the Commiitee reviewed the actions put in place by the
Auditor to ensure there was a clear separation between
audit and advisory services. The Committee does not
believe there to be any impediment to the Auditoi’s
objectivity and independence.

The fees for non-audit sefvices for the year to 31 March
2021 were nil (2020: nil).

Full details of the Auditor's fees are provided in note 6 to
the accounts on page 79

The Board noted that Mr Kelly, the current partner, was
appointed for the 2017 year-end audii and will continue

as partner only until the conciusion of the 2021 year-end
audit. Mr Merchant will replace Mr Kelly as audit partner
for the 2022 year-end audit. Mr Merchant has considerable
experience in the Financial Services sector and the audit of
investment Trust Cormpanies.
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Following each audit, the Committee reviews the audit
process and considers its effectiveness and the quality
of the services provided to the Company. Within this
process, the Cornmitiee takes fnte consideration their
own assessment, the self-evaluation of the auditor and
the Audit Quality Review Report produced by the FRC in
crder to maenitor the progress of the Auditor’s performance
comparable with its peer and the targets set by the FRC.
The review following the completion of the 2020 Audit
concluded that the Commitiee was satisfied with the
Auditor's effectiveness and performance.

The Committee felt that KPMG had run an effective

and efficient audit process with appropriate chalienge.
Subsequently, a resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as
the Company’s Auditor will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

Tim Gillbanks
Chaiman of the Audit Commiltize

3 June 2021



Statermnent of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statemenits

The directors are respansible for preparing the Annual
Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors Report and the
financial staternents In accordance with applicable law and
requlations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements on the same basis, In
addition the Group financial statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules to
be prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Requlation (EC)
Na 1606,/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s profit or
loss for that peried. In preparing each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the directors are
required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

@ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and reliable;

# state whether they have been prepared in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial staterents, International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to
Regutation (EC) Na 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

® assess the Group and Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

#® use the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease aperations, of have no realistic
alternative but to da so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position

of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that

its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are responsible far such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free frorn material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities,

Under applicable law and requlations, the directors are
also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that complies with that law and
those requlations.

The directors are responsible far the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website, Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THFE DIRECTORS
fM RESPELT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Each of the directors confirms that to the best of their
knowledge:

@ the financial statements, prepared in accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a tiue
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and Parent Corrpany and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
& whole; and

o the strategic report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

The Directors consider the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the group’s position and performance, business
model and strategy.

By order of the Board

N pran/nk

DBavid Watson
Chairmarn
3 June 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

1. OUR QOPINION IS UNMODIFIED

We have audited the financial staternents of TR Property
Investrnent Trust Pl ("the Company”) for the year ended
31 March 2027 which comprise the Group Statement of-
Comprehensive Income, Group and Company Statements
of Changes in Equity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related
notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

~ The financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as at 37 March 2021
and of the Group's return for the year then ended;

— The Group financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

— The Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accardance with Uk-adopted
internationa! accounting standards and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006; and

— The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirernents of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial

statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Requlation ta the extent

applicable.

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK} (“15As (UK)"} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and apprapriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion is
consistent with our report to the audit committee.

£14.9m (2020:£12.5m)
1% (2020: 1%) of Total Assets

Materiality:
Financial statements
asawhole

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks valuation of direct

e . . bropertyinvestments - 4b
Carrying amount of listed
investments ) AlLg

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on
7 November 2016. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is for the 5 financial years ended 31 March
2021. We have fulfilied our ethical responsibilities
under, and we remain independent of the Company in
accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard
were provided.

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgement, were of mast significance in the audit of the
financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to
frayd) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect cn: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters
(unchanged from 2020), in decreasing order of audit significance, in arfiving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures 1o address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from those
procedures. These matters were addressed, and cur results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and
solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
consequently are incidentat to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

_ The risk Qur response

Valuation of direct
property investments

Subjective valuation: we performed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking to rely on controls, because the nature

of the balance is such that we would expect to
obtain audit evidence primarily through the detailed

procedures described:

5.6% (2020- 7.5%) of the Group's
total assets (by value} are held in
investment properties.

{Group and Parent
Company)

(£83.1 million;
2020: £94.5 million)

The fair value of each propeity
requires significant estimation,

Qur procedures included.

— - Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using our own

Refer to pages 58 (0 60
(Audit Ccmmittee Report),
page 74 and 75 (accounting

in particular with regard to
ihe key estimated rental
value and yield assumptions.
The key assumpticns will be

property valuation specialist, we evaluated the
competence, experience and independence of the
external valuer;
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policy), and nate 10 on
pages 82 to 85 (financial
disclosures).

impacted by a number of factors  — Tests of Detail: We compared the information
incluging quality and condition provided by the Group to its external property

of the building and tenant valuer for a sample of praperties, such as rental
covenant strength. income and tenancy data to supporting documents

including lease agreements;
The effect of these matters

is that, as part of our risk — Methodology choice: We held discussions with
assessment, we determinad the Group’s external property valuer to determine
that the valuation of investment the valuation methodology used. We included our
properties has a high degree of own property valuation specialist to assist us in
estimation uncertainty, with a critically assessing the results of the valuer’s report
potential range of reasonable by checking that the valuations were in accordance
outcomes greater than our with the RICS Valuation Professional Standards
materiality for the financial ‘the Red Book” and IFRS and that the methodology

statements as a whole. The adopted was appropriate by reference to

financial statements {note [10]) acceplable valuation practice;

disclose the sensitivity estimated  — Benchmarking assumptions: With the

by the Group. assistance of our own property valuation specialist,
we held discussions with the Group’s external
property valuer to understand movements in
property values. For a sample of properties, we
assessed the key assumptions used by the valuer
upon which the valuations are based, including
those relating to estimated rental value and yield,
by making a comparison to our own understanding
of the market and to industry benchmarks;

— Assessing transparency: We also considered the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about the degree
of estimation and sensitivity to key assumption made
when valuing the direct property investments.

Our results:

— We found the valuation of investment properties to
be acceptable (2020: acceptable).
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The risk

Carrying amount of listed
investments

Low risk, high value:

ievel Tinvestments makes up
88.2% (2020: 84.4%) of the
Group's tatal assets (by value)

(Group and Parent)

(£1,3174 million;
2020: £1,060.1 million}

Refer to pages 58 to 60
{Audit Committee Report),
page 75 {accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 82
to 85 (financial disclosures).

to be subject to a significant
level of judgement because
they comprise liquid, quoted
investments. However, due to

their materiality in the context
aof the financial statements as 2

whole, they are considered to

be one of the areas which had
ihe greatest effect on our overall

audit strategy and allocation
of resources in pfanning and
completing our audit.

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN

OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was
set at £14.9m (2020: £12.5m), determined with reference
to a benchmark of total assets, of which it represents
1.0% (2020: 1.0%).

Materiality for the Parent Company financial statements as
a whole was at £14.1m (2020 12.0m) determined as 0.9%
of the total assets of the parent company (2020: 0.9%).

in line with our audit methodology, our procedures on

individual account balances and disdlasures were performed

to a lower threshald, performance materiality, so as to reduce

to an acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial
misstaternents in individual account balances add up to a material
amount across the financial siatements as a whole. Performance
materiality was set at 75% (2019: 75%y) of materiality for the
financial statements as a whole, which equates to £111m (2020:
£9.4m) for the Group and £10.5m (2020: £90m) for the Parent
Company. We applied this percentage in our determination of
performance materiality because we did not identify any factors
indicating an elevated level of risk.

in addition, we applied materiality of £2.0m (2020
£3.2m} and performance materiality of £15m (2020:

£2 4m) to investment income, other operating income,
gross rental income, service charge income and net
returns on contract for differences for which we believe
misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for
the financial statements as a whole could reasonably
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The Group’s portiolio of quoted

and is one of the key drivers of
results. We do not consider these
investments to be at a high risk
of significant misstaterment, or

Our response

We performed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking to rely on centrels, because the nature of

the balance is such that detailed testing is determined
ta be the most effective manner of obtaining

audit evidence,

Our procedures induded:

— Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 100%aof
level 1listed investments in the paortfolio to
externally quoted prices; and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of level
1 listed investment haldings in the portfclio o
independently received third party confirmations
from investment custodians,

Our results

— We found the carrying amount of listed
investments to be acceptable (2020: acceptable),

be expected to influence the Company’s members’

assessment of the financial performance of the Company.

We aqreed lg report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncortected identified misstatements exceeding £0.75m
(2020: £0.63my in additicn to other identified misstaternents
that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the
materiality level specified above and was performed by a
single audit teamn,

The audit team performed the audtt of the Group as if it was
a single aggregated set of financial information. This approach
is unchanged from the prior year, The audit of the Group was
perfarmed using the Group materiality level set out above.

Total Assets
£1.491m (2020: £1,256m)

Group Materiality
£14.9m (2020: £12.5m)

£14.9m

Whale financial
statements matenality
{2020 £12.5m})

£14.1m

Pargnt Company
Materiality
(2020: £12.0m}

£0.75m Misstaterments
reported 10 the pudit
commitiee (2020
£3.63m/

A Total Assets



Independent auditar’s repart conlinued

4. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the Group or Company or to cease its operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group cr Company's
financial position means that this is realistic. They have
also concluded that there are no material uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to
continue 35 @ going conwern [or at least a year trom the
date of approval of the financial statements {"the going
concern period”).

we used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the
general econemic environment to identify the inherent
risks to its business model and analysed how those risks
might affect the Group o Company's financial resources

or ability to continue operations over the going concern
period. The risks that we considered most likely to
adversely affect the Group or Company’s available financial
resources and its ability to operate over this period were:

— The impact of a significant reduction in the valuation
of investments and the implications for the Group or
Company's debt covenants;

— The liquidity of the investment portfolio and its ability
to meet the iabilities of the Greup as and when they
fall due; and

— The operational resilience of key service organisations.

We considered whether thesa risks could plausibly affect
the liquidity in the going concern period by assessing the
degree of downside assumption that, individualty and
collectively, could resuit in a kquidity issue, taking into
account the Group or Company's current and projected
tash and liquid investment positien (and the results of
their reverse stress testing).

We considered whether the going concern disciosure in
note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the Directors’ assessment of going concern,
including the identified risks and related sensitivities.

Our cenclusions based on this work:

— We consider that the Directors use of the gaing
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;

— We have not identified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as & going concern for
the going concern period;

— We have nothing material to add or draw attention to
in relation to the Directors staternent in note 11to the
financial statements on the use of the going concemn
basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group cr Company’s

se of that basis fur the going concern peried, and
we found the qoing concern disclosure in note 110 be
acceptable; and
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— The refated statement under the Listing Rules set out
on pages 41 and 42 is materially consistent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequeni events may result in
cutcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conciusions are not a guarantee that the Group ot
Company will continue in operation.

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

[dentifying and responding to risks of material
misstaternent due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud
(“fraud risks™) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

— Enquiring of Directers as to the Group's high-fevel
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud;

— Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors, the Administrator and the Group’s
Investrent Manager; and

— Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures
to address the risk of management override of controls,

in particular to the risk that management may be in

a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.

we evaluated the design and implementation of the
contrals over journal entries and other adjustments and
made inquiries of the Administrator about inappropriate
or unusual activity relating to the processing of journal
entries and other adjustments. We substantively tested all
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material post-closing entries and, based on the results of
our fisk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, including the segregation of duties between the
Directers and the Administrator, na further high-risk journal
entsies o other adjustrments were identified.

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud risk related

to revenue recognition because the revenue is non-
judgemental and straightforward, with limited apportunity
for manipulation. We did not identify any significant
unusuaf transactions or additional fraud risks.

identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and reguilations that could
reasonably be expecied t¢ have 3 material effect on the financial
statermenits frorm our general commercial and sector experience
and through discussion with the Directors, the tnvestment
Manager and the Administrator (a5 required by auditing
standards) and discussed with the Directors the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations
that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies
legislation), distributable profits legislation, and its
quaiification as an Investment Trust under UK taxation
legislation, any breach of which could iead to the Group
losing various deductions and exemptions from UK
corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these faws and requiations as part of our procedures
on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disciosures

in the financial statements, for instance through the
impasition of fines or fitigation. We identified the following
areas as those most likely t have such an effect: money
laundering, data protection, bribery and corruption
legislation and certain aspects of company legisfation
recognising the financial nature of the Group’s activities
and its legal form. Auditing standards hmit the required
audit procedures to identify non-compiiance with these
laws and requlations ta enquiry of the Directors and the
Administrator and inspection of requlatory and legal
carrespondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of operational
requlaticns is not disclosed to us of evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even
though we have property planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example,
the further removed nan-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, the fess likely the inherently
limited pracedures required by auditing standards would
identify ir.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained & higher risk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls. Qur audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not
responsible for preveniing nen-compliance o fraud and
cannat be expected to detect nan-compliance with all
faws and requlations.

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are responsible for the other infarmation
presented in the Annua) Report together with the financial
statements. Qur opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conciusion therean.

Our responsibility is to read the ather information and,

in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is
materially misstated of inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that
work we have not identified material misstatements in the
other information.

strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

— we have not identified material misstatements in the
Strategic report and the Directors’ report;

— in our gpinion the informaticn given in those reports
for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

— in our cpinion those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.



Independent auditor’s report continued

Directors’ remuneration report

in our opinion the part of the Directars’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are requiied to perform procedures to identify whether
there is a material inconsistency between the Directors’
disclosures in respect of emerging and principdl risks and
the viability statement, and the financial statements and
our audit knowledge.

Based on thosé procedures, we have nothing material to
add or draw attention to in relation to:

— the Directors’ confirmation within the viability Statement
on pages 33 and 34 that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks facing the
Group, including thase that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency and liquidity;

— the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
describing these risks and how emerging risks are
identified, and explaining how they are being managed
and mitigated; and

— the Directors’ explanation in the Viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over what period they have done so and why they
considered that period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have 3 reasonabtle
expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to review the Viability Statement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules. Based on
the above procedures, we have concluded that the above
disclosures are materially consistent with the financial
statements and our audit knowledge.

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the
context of anly the knowledge acquired during our
financial statements audit. As we cannot predict all future
events or conditions and as subsequent events may

result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of anything to repart on these statements is not a
guarantee as to the Cempany’s longer-term viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether
there is a material inconsistency between the Directors’
corporate governance disclosures and the financial
statements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each
of the following is materially consistent with the financial
statements and our audit krowledge:

— the Directors’ statement that they censider that the
annual report and financis! statements taken as a
whole is fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides the informaticn necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s position and performance, business
model and strategy;

— the section of the annual report describing the work of
the Audit Committee, including the significant issues
that the audit committee considered in relation to
the financial statements, and how these issues were
addressed; and

— the section of the annual repcrt that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

We are required to review the part of Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the Group's compliance
with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review. We have
nothing to report in this respect.

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required 1o report
to you if, in our opinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are natin
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

— certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or

— we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set aut on
page &1, the Directors are responsible far: the preparation
of the finandial statements including being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disciosing, as applicable, matters reiated to qoing concern;
and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Comnpany or to cease
operations, oF have no realistic alternative but 1o de so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue our gpinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(LK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expecied to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
slatements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on
the FRC's website at:
wwww.fre.org.uk/auditarsresponsibilities.
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9. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO
WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Group’s members, as

a body, in accordance with Chanter 3 of Part 16 of the
Campanies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company. Dur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Group's members thase matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor’s repart and for
na other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do net accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Group and the Groups members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
forrmed.

Ay
/s

Richard Kelly (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Saltire Coyrt

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

3 June 2021



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Income
investment income 2 36,557 - 36,557 47112 - 47112
Other operating income 4 67 - 67 35 - 35
Gross rental income 3 3,185 - 3,185 3,415 - 3,415
Service charge income 3 1,051 - 1,051 1,786 - 1,786
Gains/(losses) on investments held at
fair value 10 - 196,582 196,582 - {153,614) (153,614)
Net movement on foreign exchange;
investrments and loan notes - (3,144) (3,144) - 1,296 1,296
Net movement on foreign exchange;
cash and cash equivalents - (1,474) {1,474) - 302 302
Net returns on contracts for difference 10 3,320 17978 21,298 5,724 (41,276} (35,552)
Net returnt on total return swap 0 - (188) (188) - (3,808) (3,808)
Total Income 44,180 209,754 253,934 58,072 {187.100) {129,028)
Expenses ]
Management and performance fees 5 {1,556) (14,328) (15,334) (1,570) (7,392} (8,962)
Direct property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs (1,321) - (1,321) {1,984) - (1,984)
Other administrative expenses {1.231) _(604) (1,835) _ {1,39) (615} (2,013)
Total operating expenses (4,108) (14,932) (19,040) (4,952) (8,007) (12,959)
Operating profit/{loss) 40,072 194,822 234,894 53,120 (195,107) {141,987)
Finance casts 7 (416) (1,969) (2,385) (814) {2,443) (3,257)
pProfit/(loss) from ope-rations before B B N
tax 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 {197,550) {145,244)
Taxation 8 (767) 2,667 1,900 (5912) 3149 (2,763)
Total comprehensive income 38,889 195,520 234,409 46,394 {194,401) (148,007)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9  12.25p 61.61p 73.86p 14.62p {61.26)p (46.64)p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Association of

fnvestment Companies. Al iterms in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income of expense that is not included in the abave staternent therefere “Total comprehensive

income” is also the profit for the year,

All income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption farnings
Ordinary Account Reserve L ETY
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,135,453
Totat comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends pafd 17 - - - (44.429) {44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
fFor the year ended 31 March 2621 Notes Shave Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Oedinary Account Resetve Ordinary
£000 £°000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2020 79,3238 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 7 - - - (44,429) {44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share . Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinaty Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - {148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794} (43,794}
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43162 43,971 969,982 1.136,453
COMPANY
for the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
ordinary Arcoynt Reserve Ordinary Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £6G00
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 439N 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income -~ - - (148,007) (148,007}
Dividends paid 17 ~ - - (43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453

The nates from pages 73 to 97 form pait of these finandial Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets

as at 31 March 2021
Notes Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 0 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred faxation asset 12 686 686 - -
1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59,972
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100,223 100,099 w
Current liabilities 13 (107,280) {150,120) (59,711) (110,016) % :
Net current (Habillties)/assets {17,175) (60,488) 40,512 e 53
Yolal assets less cumment liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807 “
Non-current liabllities 13 ({57,593) (57,593) (59,354) (59,354)
Net assets 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Capital and reserves
Called up share capita 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79138
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 4391 43,971 43,91 43,971
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 569,982 969,982 -
Equity shareholders' funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,135,453 1,136,453
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 41797p 417.97p 358.11p 358.1p

These financial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property Investment Trust plc (Company No:84492} and authorised for
issue on 3 June 2021,

T o ap/it.

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2027

Company Group Campany
2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of profit/({loss) from operations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 {145,244) {145,244)
Firrance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value through profit or loss {214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,711
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes (179) (179} 859 859
(fncrease)/decrease in accryed income {102) (102) 584 584
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,81 316,841
Purchases of investments (370,496) (370,496) (383,674) (383,674)
Decrease/({increase) in sales settlement debtor 4,753 4,753 (1,417) 0,47}
{Detrease)/increase in purchase settlement creditor (5,781} (5,781) 4,501 4,50
(Increase)/decrease in othei debtors (11,436) {n,436) 4,447 4,447
Increase/(decrease) in other creditors 2,451 {4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends intluded in investinent income and net
refurns on contracis for difference {8,489) {8,489) (3,818) (3.8183)
Net cash outflow from operating activities betore
interest and taxation (15,590) (15,590) (2,919) (2,919)
Interest paid (2,607) (2,607) (3,421 (3,421)
Taxation paid (1915 {1,915) (2,321) - (2,321)
Net cash outflow from operating activities  (20,112) Co(om2)  (mes) (8660
Finauncing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) {44,429) (43,794) {43,794)
Drawdown of loans _ 55000 55000 40000 ‘40,000
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities  10sn 10,571 (3,794) (3,794)
Decrease in cash o a (9.541) {9,541) FZASS) (15,_4;57
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents _ a7y 0 (4amy 0 302 0 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29114 29,112 40129 20,127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received 45 45 37 37

The nates from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Finandal Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
International Financial Reperting Standards {IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/200Z as it applies in the European
Unicn and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with IFRS.

In assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity inchiding the effects and potentia! ellects
of the cyrrent and likely ongaing cconomic inipacl caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operational
resilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues to monitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

In light of the testing carried cut, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current liability positien of the Group and Parent Company {which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid level 1
investments), the Directors are satisfied that the Company and Group have adequate financial resources to continue in operaticn

for at least the next 12 moenths following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate te adopt the gaing
concern basis of accounting,

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational currency.
sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumpticns used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an angoing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factars.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the valuation of investment
properties. See section (f) of this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements censolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. All the
subsidiaiies of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements.

In accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
It obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management services;

+ |t commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investrnent
income; and

» It measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

tach of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpose of aperating or supporting the investment operations of
the Company (including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 0 sets out that in the case of controlled
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company hias consclidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such contiol ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. All intra-group baiances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This s consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b} Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or hefore the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provisicn is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend faregone are recognised in the capital returns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on @ time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term depaosits is accrued to the end of the year. Stack lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
which case the proportionate commission received is deducted from the cost of the investment.

Recogniticn of property rental income is set out in section (f) of this note.

Recognition of income from contracts of difference 1s set out in section (g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
¢) Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into

revenue and capital items is given in note 16, In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue iterns
except as follows:

- Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposal of an investment;

- Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the vaiue of the
investments can be demonstrated, this includes irecoverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of residential
leasas as premiums receivad for extending or terminating leases are recagnised in the capital account;

- Dne quarler of the base managernent fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital return to reflect the
Board's expectations of tong term investment returns. All performance fees are chaiged to capital return;

The fund administration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly 1o the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quaiter to income and three quarters to capitai.

d} Finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters ta capital return.

e) Taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the armnount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged of credited directly to equity if it ielates to items that are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's effeciive rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
temporary differences between the tieatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
aqgainst capital returns In the supplernentary infermation in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the “margina! basis”.
ynder this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Statement of Cemprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable ar recoverable on differences between the cairying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the cofresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferied tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable ternporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company Is an investrnent trust under $.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax on capital
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capitat gains tax.

f) Investment property
investrnent property is measured inftially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transter taxes, professional
fees for legat services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the candition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
costis incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Statement of Camprenensive Income in the year in which they arise.

investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn fram use and no future economic
benetit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive income in the year of disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with (FRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income. The Group engaged @ as independent valuation
specialisis to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Valuations of investment properties
Determinaticn of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation - Global
Standards (The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants profiles, future revenue streams, capital valucs of
fixtures and fittings, plant and marhinery, any cnvironmental iallers and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assurnptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgemenit and have not only relied solely on histerical transactional comparables. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclased In note 10 (e).

Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
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incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements of other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the terant will exercise that option. Premiums received to terminate or extend jeases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised in the period In which the expense can be coniractually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
When a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
market, the investments cancerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are also
described in these financial statements as investrnents held at fair value.

All invesiments are designated upon initial recogniticn as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investmenits, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks seurced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including all the FTST All -Share and the most liquid AIM constituents. Unquoted investments or investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA gquidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

In its financial statemnents the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset valye. The subsidiaries have historically been holding vehicles for direct property investrnent or financing vehicles. No
assels are currently held through-the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of CFDs and total
retuin swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
Contracts for Difference ("CFDs”) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments” underlying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract {e.g. notional dividends, financing cests, interest returns and capital
changes) are alfocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP Notional dividend income or expenses arising on long or short positions
are appertioned wholly to the revenuse account. Notional interest expense on long positions is apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price movements of securities in relation
to CFD exposures are allocated whally to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
Altloans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing loans and borowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost s calculated by taking inte account any discount of premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amoitised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving foreign currencles are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the yransaction.

Foreign cursency monetary assets and liabllities are translated into Sierling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

§) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
Interim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders.

I} Adeption of new and revised Standards
Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting poficies adapted are consistent with thase of the previous consolidated financiaf statements except as noted below.

IFRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided more guidance on the definition of & business to assist in determining
whether a transaction results in an asset or a business acguisition. The amendments have nat had 2n impact on the Group's
financial statements.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7. The amendments provided temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the peiiod of uncertamty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a matenial impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to JAS 1 and JAS 8 - Definition of Material. The International Atcounting Standards Board refined 1is definition of
“material” and tssued practical guidance on applying the concept of matedality. The amendrments have not had a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

The Conceptual Framewark for Finandial Reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard however its purpose is to outline
a set of concepts for financial reparting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framewaork has not had a material impaci on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the feporting date that become effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has nat early adopted any new International Financial Reporting
Standard of interpretation. Standards, amendments and interprelations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issyance of
the Group’s financial staternents are listed below:

145 1 Amendments - Classification of tisbilities as Current or Non-Cutrent (effective date amended to 1 January 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for ciassifying fiabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

1S 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected to have a mateiial impact on
the Group’s financial statements

1AS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates {effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty” The amendments also clarity the
interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected tc have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

145 16 amendments - Proceeds before intended Use (effective T january 2022) The amendments intend te clarity the accounting
for the net proceeds fiom selling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's financia! statements.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

IAS 37 Amendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling contract {effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarify that for
the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that refate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendments are not
expecied o have 3 material impact en the Groups finandial statements.

IAS 39, IFRS 4, 7. 5 and 15 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform {Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021) IBOR reform refers
to the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacement of some interbank cffered rates (IBOR) with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the refarm on a company’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy, additional information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to (BOR reform is required In additinn, details of the company’s
progress in completing its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IS 41, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvements 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1)anuary 2022) The minor improvements,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group's financial statements, to the standards noted were endorsed in
September 2020.

IFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual Framewasrk (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 {instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business cambination. In addition, IFRS 3 now contains & statement that an acquirer
does not recagnise contingent assets acquired in 2 business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a materia!
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS 9 Deterral (effective 1 January 2023) The optien for cempanies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 April 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-15, have been extended to lease payments ortginally due on or before 30 June 2022.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts {(effective 1January 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statemants.

IFRS 17 Amendments ~ Amendments to IFRS 17 (effective 1 January 2023) In June 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to expiain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standard. The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 49M
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
Scrip dividends from listed investrents 7,482 3,370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

36,557 472

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£'000 £000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415

Setvice charge income 1,051 1,786

Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,321) (1,984)
o o 2915 3217
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3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial 1eases on its praperty portfolic. Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to enable pericdic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market
conditions. Seme leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

201 2020
£000 £000

Within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
S 7 /7 meo0  285%0

4 GTHER OPERATING INCOME

£000 £000

Interest receivable 1 32

Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 44 3

Underwriting commission 22 -
' T ‘ > 2 T

Underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee companies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensaticn in the form of cormimission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which it is prepared to increase its
holding should that be the outcome. The commission eamed is taken o revenue unless any securities underwritten are required to

be taken up in which case the proportionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investment. During the year the Company
participated in one (2024: ail} underwriting and all commission earned was taken to revenue and shown under Other aperating income.

5 MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

Retwn Return Return Retumn
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4,709 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7,392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directers on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020
£000 £000

Directors’ fees (Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 57) 232 209
Auditor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statements 80 80

Legal fees 15 3

Taxation fees 69 103

Other administrative expenses ) 199 199

Other expenses 454 562

Irrecoverable VAT 182 214

Exﬁenses charged to Revenue C 1:231 1,398

Expenses charged to Capital 604 615 a2

B 1835 2,013 TZ
S
=

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £757,000 {2020: £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged solely to the
fevenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are ¢harged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS

0 2020
£000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1241 1866

Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 139

HMRC interest: release of FIl GLO provision (240) -

o B 2,385 3,257

Amount allocated to capital return {1,969) (2,443)

Amount allocated to revenue return o 16 814
8 TAXATION

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) 1,989 {1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) 213
Overseas taxation 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 (1,981) 87 5,968 (3,149) 2,819
(Over)/under provision in respect of priar
_years (1,980) - (1,980) (406) - .. f408)
875 (1,981) (1,106) 5,562 {3,149) 2,413
Deferred taxation (108) (686)  (794) 350 - 350
Current tax charge for the year 767 {2,667) {1,900) 5,912 {3,149) 2,763
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8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2020: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK far a large company of 19%
(2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

2021 201 2020 2020 2020

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Totat
Return Return Return Return

£000 £000 £'000 £°000 £000

Net profit/{ioss) on ordinary activities

before taxation 39656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550)  {145244)
Corporation 1ax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44377 9938 (37.535) (27,597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - {37,351) (37,351) - 29,187 26,187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204) (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1,038) (1,038)
Non-taxable retwns {23) (3,330) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends (972) - {972) (1,043) - (1,043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (4,573) - (4,573) (5,540) - (5,540}
Overseas withholding taxes B66 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred Vax prior year adjustment {108) {686) (794) - - -
(Over)/under provisian in respect of prior

years (1,980) - {1,980) (406) 5 {a01)
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Deferred tax not provided 3 1084 1087 288 R 1) N

767 (2,667) (1,900) 5,912 (3,149) 2,763

The Group has not recagnised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nil) arising as a result of losses carried forward.

it is considered foo uncertain that the Group wili generate profits in the refevant companies that the losses would be availsble to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Oue to the Company’s status as an investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required ta obiain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation or
disposal of Investments.

€} Provision for deferred taxation
The ameunts for deferred taxation provideg at 19% {2020: 19%) comprise:

Group
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return

£'600 £'000 £0060
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) {686) - - -

Shown as:
Deterred tax (asset)/liability - (686) {686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued

¢} Provision for deferred taxation continued
Company

201 pitral 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 168
Unutilised losses carried forward - {686) (686) - - -
Shown as;
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (636) (686) 108 - 108
The movernent in provision in the year is as follows:
Group
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Retuin Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 {350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - {108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) (686) 108 - 108
Company
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 {350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year ) - (686) {686) 108 - 108
EARN!NGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000
Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/{loss) 195,520 (194,401)
Net total profil/(loss) 234,409 {148,007)
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue earnings per share 12.25 14.62
Capital earnings/(loss} per share 61.61 {61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 {46.64)

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share are the same.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE
a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company
palyal 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,0711 83,071 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Invesiments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting
Gross Gross
Valuation Net oW Valuation revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ EEIEIEYG) 31 March 31 March
2020 (disposals)  {depreciation) 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £7000 £000
Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17,978 (141) 3,320 5,724
Total return swap (3,808} 3,996 (188) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 215,973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 (9.838) {1,601 83,0m 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

in seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and also in tnvestment property located in the UK. The Company therefare considers that there
are two distinct reparting segments, investrnents and direct property, which are used for evaluating periormance and allscation of
respurces. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives information on the two segments on a regular basis. Whiist
revenue streams and direct property costs ¢an be attribuied to the reporting seqgments, general administrative expenses cannot be
split to aliow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above.

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these casts from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217000) for the direct property reperting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

GIoss Gross

Valuation Net Net ERETITEIT revenue revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ EEEIRNENA 31 March 31 March

2020 (disposals)  (depreciation} 2021 2021 2020

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 {30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963

UK unlisted eyuilies 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct property’ 94,510 {9,338) {1,601 83,071 4,236 5,201

Continental Furopean listed equities 708,597 89,093 124,111 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

UK cantracts for difference? 5,071 (13,108) 8,621 584 1,242 2,714
European contracts for difference? 3,627 (13,709) 9,357 (725) 2,078 3,010 a3
=
UK total return swap? {(3,308) 3,996 (188) - - - ZE
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 = z

Included in the above figures are purchase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,000) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £195,000).

These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £329,018,000 {2020- £367.577,000) from investments, including direct property, sold in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317,581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

' Net additions/ (disposals) includes £465,000 (2020: £581,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/(depreciation} includes
amounts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciaticn/(depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movement in fajr value in the year.

¥ The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movement in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or mare of any class of capital in 10 companies (2G20: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See note 21 on pages 96 and 97 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investrments) or the balance
sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value {due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hieraschy disclosures
Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation technigues using observable inputs other than queted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Group are explained in the accounting pelicies in notes 1(f) and 1(g).
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

e} fair value of financiaf assets and financial fiabilities continved
The table below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Firancial assets/{liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 L (E]
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,07 83,071
Contracts for difference - (141) - (141}
Foreign exchange forward contracts 3 - (1,107) - (1,107}
- T T 133877 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268
At 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Leve! 3 Total
£'000 £000 £°000 £000
- Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785
Investment properties - - 94,510 94,510
Contracts for difference . - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - {3.808) - (3,808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (5,609) - (5,609)
T T T T T T wese0103 (719) 95192 1154576

The table above represents the Group's fair value hierarchy The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,425,000). These have been
cateqarised as level 3 in both years. The moverment in the vear 6f £2117.000 (2620: £13,600) is the change in fair value in the yesy,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the release of a corperation tax provision of £343,600
in a subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2021 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:
£1,214,422 000)

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 2021 31 March Appreciation /EEEIRENT
2020 Purchases Sales  {Depreciation)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,458
tavestment properti; o - - T
- Mixed use 52,623 315 {303) {4,658) 47,977
- Office & Industrial 41,887 150 (10,000} 3,057 35,094

o ST T s 465 (10,303) (1601 83,071
T T 95192 465 (10303  (815) 84,539

All appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above relates to movernents in fair value of unlisted equity investments and investment
praperties held at 37 March 2021

The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see 1.6 overleat).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant uncbservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value higrarchy of
investrment properties are;

@ Fstimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2020: £6.5- £65)
® Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower)
fair value measyrement A significant increase (decrcasc) in long term vacanuy 1ale in isulation would result in a significantly lower
{higher) fair value measurement.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental vaiues as they are partially determined by market rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office & -
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial EZ
£000 £'000 Tz
— T
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 -
Decrease in rental value by 5% (250) (1,610) (25) (1,885)
increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040) (5,835) {925) {10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office &
31 March 2020 arising from Retail Industrial Other Total
' £'000 £000 £000 £000
Increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% (1,225) (1.720) - (2,945)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (5,025) (6,005) {950) (11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the long term in the pursuit of the Investment Objectives set cut on
page 24. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends. ’

The principal risks the Greup faces in its portfolic management activities are:
® Market risk (comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk)

® Lliquidity risk

® (redit risk

The manager's policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the =
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reparts to the Baard on the portfolia activity and performance at eacn Board meeling.
The Board monitors the investment activity and straleqy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group's exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolio, was as

follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD long gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS long gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Policies on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure ta a single company, geographical
region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual of sector price risks. As an
investrment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Gioup is exposed to price movements acrass the property
asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The following table illustiates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fair valyes of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The jevel of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the orevious vear. The sensitivity is based on the Group's equity, fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables held constant.

2021 pitral 2020 2020
Intrease Decrease Inciease Decrease
in faix in fair in fair in fair
value value valye value
£000 £°000 £000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive Income - profit after tax

Revenue return (103) 103 77 77
Capital return 209,801 (209,801) 173,817 (173,817)
Change to the profit after tax for the year/sharehblders' funds - 59,698‘7309,698) 173,740 WE,MO)
Change to fotal earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p (54.75)p

11.2 Curfency risk
A proportion of the Group’s portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, Euros or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency mevements outside the turozone by funding investments in overseas
securities with unsecured foans denominated in the same cuirency or through forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Eurc denominated accounts.
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T1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
Al the reporting date the Group had the following expesure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2021 2020

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Euro ) 51.0% 53.0%
swedish Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net expesure to foreign currencies of the net
mongtary assets and liabilities:

Swedish um

Sterling Krona 53
2021 £/000 £'000 24
N — — zz
Receivables {due from brakers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299 7
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank [oans, loan notes and overdrafts (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (10,142) {1,031) - -
FX forwards (61,209) - 13,848 46,254
ﬁfcreign currency exposure on net monetary items (95536) 13,976 ‘E,OS9 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-curient liabilities (15,000) {42,593) - -
Total currency exposure ' " 370,365 679,351 170,694 106,023

Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2020 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Receivables {due from brokers, dividends and other income receivabfe) 31,552 27,495 634 413
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 11,922 952 1,643
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafis (40,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,026) (6,076) - -
FX forwards {133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency expo—sﬁre on net monetary items {124,603} 95,355 24,121 45,639_
Investments held al fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-current assets (15,108) {44,246) - -
Total currency exposure ' - 306,587 602,685 124,957 161,824

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Eurc and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assumes the following changes in exchange rates:
® Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)

® Stedling/Swedish Keona +/- 15% {2020:15%)

® Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this wouid have had the folfowing effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Sswedish
Euro Krona Fuso Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £0060 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax

Revenue return {2,726} {585} {250} (3,016 (340} 99
Capital return (83,243) (20,269) (1,579) (71,091) (13,132) (2317)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds (85,969} {20,858) (7.829) (74,107} {13,472} (7,416)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share (36.13)p (29.93)p

If sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive lncome -
profit after tax

Revenue return 3,41 732 318 4,971 423 13
Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect:

@ the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

® the fair value of the loan nates;

@ the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
@ the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans; and
@ the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as a resuit of changes in interest rates are taken inte account when
making investment dedisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themselves and the level of gearing and structure of its
debt portfalic is a key factor when assessing the investment in 8 property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
set out in note 13. In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving lean facilities which carry variable
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus 3 margin. These facilities total £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000)

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investment portfolio, These gearing levels are reported reqularly to the Board.

The majority of the Group's investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group’s financial assets are not directly
subject tg significant amounts of nsk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

& (lodling interesl 14les: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

@ fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group’s exposuie to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027,000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure 1o fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nif).

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

T IINYNIS
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@& Interest recelved on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent
{2020: same).

® Interest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan fadlities, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of lean (2020: same).

@ The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the expasure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as Investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2021 201 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Change to shareholders’ funds (1,176) 1,176 (317) 37
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share {0.37)p 0.37p (@.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whele, since the expaosure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holids.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unquoted investments in the portfolic are subject to liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% (2020: 8%) of the
Group's investment portfelio was held in direct property investments,

At 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment pertfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile
Within
1year
£'000

Within
2-3 years
£000

Within
1-2 years
£000

At 31 March 2021

Within
3-4 years
£ 000

Within
4-5 years
£000

More than
5 years
£000

Total

Bank loans” 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 110 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717
within Within Within Within within ~ More than
1year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
Al 31 march 2020 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59,246
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 11,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,812
Other creditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

“ A £60m multicyrrency facility with RES wes renewed for one year in February 2021 £50m (2020. £10m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A
E30m one year facility with ING Luxembourg was renewed in July 2020. £30m {2020: £30m) wes drawn on this faclity 2t the balance sheet date. A £40m facihty
was renewed with I(CBC In ovember 2020 £15m (2020: £nil) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date,

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unguoted and direct property investments. These are set

out in the Investment Policies on page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with 3

value over £5 million must be approved by the Beoard for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revalving facilities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure of a counterparty tc a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtars and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank bafances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periodically by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
in summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Balance  Maximum Balance Maximum

sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£'000 £000 £°000 £°000

Debtars 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29114 40,129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirernent for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected uedit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an ISDA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its OTC derivative contract counterparties. An 1SDA Master Agreement
is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the event ol ¢ delault and/or termination event. Under
an IS0A Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instrurnents
payables and/or receivables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterparty, However, bankruptcy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
festrictions on or prohibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables in¢lude financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group's derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as follows.
Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

Net amounts Net amgunts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £000 £000 £'000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs (141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
o o (141) 50,913 8,698 31,525

RS position: N a )
ING - - (3,808) 7997
o S - - (3,808) 7997

FX forward contracts: -

Bank of Montreal - - (2,582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC {1,307) - - -
Westpac - - {9) -
'  (,107) - (5,609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost {refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet amount is 3
reasonable approximation of fair value {debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prepayments).

The fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the Lendon Stock [xchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
curient year.

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market {(Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unqueted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2620: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

@ fo ensure that it will be able to continue as a going cancern; and
@ o maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an approptiate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Grouo at 31 March 2021 consisted of ¢alled up share capital, share premium, capital redempiion
and revenue reserves tatalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not regard the loan notes and loans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

@ the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAY shall not be less than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Group Company
201 2021
£'000 £°000

Group Company
2020 2020
£7000 £'000

Amaunts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future settlesnent 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and acciued income’ 5176 5176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difterence - - 8,698 8,698
CrD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash ' - - 7997 7997
Other debtors 403 403 358 358

" 60,99 60,520 60094 59972

Non-current assets
Delferred taxation asset 636 £86 - -

*ncludes amounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 194 194 5,975 5,975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference m 11 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3,783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5,609 @ o

Other creditors 110 104 294 286 Z5
o 107,280 150,120 59,711 10,016 2 S

Non-cufrent liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deterred taxation - - 108 108

i 57,593 57,593 59,354 59,354
Loan Notes ‘

On the 10th Febiuary 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the t0th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Curo Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219,000
(2020: £15,553,000) &t 31 March 2021

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The lean notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

® Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shall ai all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Greup complied with the terms of the lvan notes agreement throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecurad, multi-currency, revolving short-term loan facilities totalling £130,000,600 (2020: £110,0060,000) at
31 March 2021, At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2020: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

longterm  Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £000 £000

Total

Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246

Cash flows:

Drawdown of bank loans : - 55,000 55,000
Movement on forelgn exchange {1,653) ~ (. 653)
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 7 57593 95,0b0 152 503

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary share capital

The balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue cf the Ordinary equity share

capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, allotted

and fully paid
Number £'000

Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 317,350,980 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made na market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
Share premium account

The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds on issue of the equity share

capital comprising Grdinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption ieserve is used to record the amaunt equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s awn

shares in order to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

Group Company
2021 2021
£'000 £000

2020

£000 £'000

Grotp Company

2020

Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,531
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
o B ) 1,092,740 1,091,830 897220 902,996
Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
- 1,159,962 1,159,962 989982 969982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unhsted investments and

gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties,
Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include gains of £70,685,000 {2020: £83,697,000) relating to unlisted and

subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain {2020- £50,742,000) relating to investment properties. Bividends are

only distributabie fram the revenue reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
201 2020

£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27927 27,292
(2019: 8.60n) per Ordinary share

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

_{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share B 16,502 16,502
. 44,429 43,794
Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p g %
{2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27,927 Z5
zZ
3

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial statements in accordance with IAS 10 "Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”

Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirements of 5.1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
201 2020

£000 £000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
_(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share _ 28,562 27,927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit afier taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,409,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 (2020: 317350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AL 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitinents of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent liabilities (2020: nil).
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21 SUBSIDIARIES
The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are registered and operating in Scotiand, England and Wales:

Rey. Number Principafl Activities

New England Properties Limited 788895 Non-trading company
The Coelonnades Limited . 2826672 Non-trading company
Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company
Trust Union Propesties Residential Developments Limited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Lid 2415846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017 Nan-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited 2415839 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {(Number Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Ten) Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 ‘ Non-trading company
Trust Union Propeities {(Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Non-trading company
Trust Union Propesties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen} Limited 2416026 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust Unijon Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 216027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading compaiiy
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Praperty investment
Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Theale} Limited 2416031 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {(Number Twenty-Twa) Limited 2415765 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limiteg 2416036 Non-trading company
Skillion Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc 2663561 Investment financing
FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited (18030} SC68799 Non-trading company
FGH {Newcastie) Limited 1466619 Non-trading cormpany
NEP (1994) Limited 977481 Non-trading company
New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
New England Investments Limited 2613905 Non-trading company
New England Retail Properties Limited 1447221 Non-trading company
New England {Southern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company
Sapco One Limited 303940 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company
TR Property Finance Limited 2415941 investment holding and finance company
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued

The Cempany has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption frem the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

All the subsidiaries are fully cwned and 3!l the holdings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 1112 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1vQ with the exceptionof FGH Developments
(Aberdeen} Limited which is registered te 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balantes dind ransactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidaticn. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

201 2020
: ) £/000 £000

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 a2

TR Property Finance Limited 20,281 27,743 g %

New England Properties Limited (20 {20 2 2
£2,830 50,342 i

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneération of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified in IAS 24: Relaled Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 57.

Dividends totalling £17,000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance Measures are numerical measures of the
Company's current or historical performance, financial position or
cash flows, other than the financial measures defined or specified
in the Financial Statements.

The measures defined below are considered to be Alternative
performance Measures. They are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended investment
companies.

Total Return

The NAV Tatal Retumn is calcuiated by reinvesting the dividends
in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date. Dividends are deemed to be reinvested an the ex-dividend
date as this is the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark
and other indices. The Share Price Total Return is calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the
relevant ex-dividend date.

Nav Share Price
NAV/share price per share at
31 March 2020 3581 3175
NAV/share price per share at
31 March 2021 A17.97 392.5
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Return far the year 20.7% 28.3%

Net Debt

Met debt is the total value of loan notes, loans (including notional
exposure to CFOs and TRSs) less cash as a proportion of net asset
value.

The net gearing has been calculated as foliows:

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,600
CFD positions (notional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS position {notional exposure) ‘- 10,405
Less: Cash (29114) {40,129)
Less: Cash collateral (included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) {50,913} {3%522)
218,567 86,728
ﬁty sharemrs’ funds ¥1-,3T6,433— —1,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 76%
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Ongoing Charges

The Ongoing Charges ratio has been calculated in accordance
with the guidance issued by the AIC as the total of investment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset Values threughout the year.
The definition of admimistrative expenses does include property
related expenses, the Ongoing Charges calculatian is shown
inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majority of Investment Trusts which do not hold any direct
property investments.

Excluding
Performance
Fees &

Direct
Property Costs
£000

Including

Excluding
Performance
Fees

£'000

Performance
Fees
£000

Management Fee

{note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

less: Non

recurring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

ggzgf'“g Charge 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

The Ongoing charges ratio provided in the Company’s Key
Information Document is calculated in line with the PRIIPs
requlations which is different to the AIC methodology above.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Trust’s objective against a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are considered 1o be Alternative Performance
Measures. These are set out on pages 26 and 27 of this report
together with infermation about any calculations or the source of
data.



Glossary and AIFMD disclosure continued

2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

The Alternative fund Managers Directive is Eurspean legislation
which created a European wide framework for regulating the
managers of “alternative investment funds” (AlFs). It is designed
to regulate any fund which is not a UQTS (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) fund and which
is managed or marketed in the EU.

AlC
The Association of Investment Companies - the AIC is the
representative body for closed-ended investment companies.

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance or financial position
other than a financial measure defined or specified in the
accounting statements,.

Discount

The amount by which the market price of 3 share of an
investment trust is lower than the Net Asset Value per share
expressed as a percentage of the NAV per share.

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulations a shoit, consumer friendly Key
Information Document is required setting out the key features,
risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and is intended to assist
investors to better understand the Trust and make comparisons
between Trusts.

The decument includes estimates of nvestment performance
under a number of scenarios. These calculations are prescribed
by the requlation and are based purely on recent historical data.
It is important for investors to note that there is no judgement
applied and these do net in any way reflect the Board or
Manager’s views.

Key Performance Indicator “KP1”

AKPVis 3 quantifiable measure that evaluates how successful
the trust is in meeting its objectives. The Trust's KPIs are
discussed on pages 26 and 27,

MiFID

The Markets in financia| Instruments Directive is the EU
legislation that regulates firms who provide services to clients
linked to “finandial instruments” (shares, bonds, units in collective
investment schermes and derivatives) and the venues where
those instruments are traded.

Net Asset value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less liabifities (including borrowings)
divided by the numbsr of shares in issue.

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD")

In accordance with the AIFMD, information in relation to the
Company's leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AITM,

F&C Investment Business Limited, is required to be made
available to investors. Detailed regulatory disclosures including
those on the AIFM's remuneration policy are available on the T&C
website or from F&C on request. The numerical remuneraticn
disclusuies i telation 1o the AlkM's hirst relevant accounting
period witl be made available in due course.

Leverage
Under the AIFM Directive, 1t is necessary for AIFs ta disclose their
leverage in accordance with prescribed caleufations.

Although leverage is often used as ancther term for gearing,
under the AIFMD leverage is specifically defined. Two types of
leverage calculations are defined; the gross and commitment
methods. These methods summarily express leverage as a ratio
of the exposure of the AIF against its net asset value. ‘Exposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties
subject to mortgage, nen-Sterling currency, equity or currency
hedging at absclute notional values (even those held purely

for risk reduction purposes, such as forward foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedging) and derivative exposure
{converted into the equivalent underlying positions). The
cormvnitment method nets off derivative instruments, while the
gross method aagqregates them.

The table below sets out the current maximum permitted limit
and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020:

Gross Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
124% 118%

The leverage limits are set by the Ailtd and approved by the
Board and are in line with the Himits set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association.

This should not be confused with the yearing set out in the
financial Highlights which is calculated under the traditional
methed set out by the Assoaciation of Investment Companies, The
AlFM 15 also required to comply with the gearing parameters set
by the Board in refation to borrowings.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt s to the action you should take vou
should seek your own advice from a stockbroker, solicitor,
accountant or other independent professional adviser who is
authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 if
you are resident in the United Kingdom, or if not, from ancther
apprapriately authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred al! of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accompanying
documents to the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who
arranged the sale or transfer so they ¢an pass these documents
10 the person who now holds the shares.

Our preference is to welcome shareholders in person to our 2021
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced in 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Coinpany is continuing ta maonitor
the current COVID-19 legislation and public health guidance issued
by the UK Government.

We hiave prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Government’s roadmap out of lockdown at the date
of the meeting. It is expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as normal as a physical meeting.

However, it may be necessary to adapt our arrangements to
respond to any changes in circurnstances, including the possibility
of a delay to the further easing of restrictions. Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be communicated to shareholders before the
meeting, including through our website (wwwe.trproperty.com)
and via an RNS announcement.

The meeting will be conducted in accordance with legisfation
and public health guidance in force at the time of the meeting.
Depending on the circumstances at the time of the meeting, it
may be necessary to limit physical attendance by shareholders.
We regret that it wili not be possible to provide refreshments
in the ysual way. if new restrictions are imposed, it is possible
that we will not be in a position to accomimodate shareholders
beyond the minimum required 1o hold a quorate meeting.

Regardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
to pioceed as planned, we strongly encourage all shareholders
to vote in advance by proxy and appoint the Chairman of the
meeting as thelr proxy rather than any other narned person,
who may not be permitted to attend the AGM This will ensure
that their vate will be counted if they {or any other proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not able to attend the mesting All
resolutions will be voted on by a poll.

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to register
their intention as soon as practicable by email to the following
dedicated address. cmuk-trpropertyinvestment@linkgroup co.uk -

Shareholders who are not able or do not wish to attend the
meeting in person {regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able to watch a live webcast of the meeting. This wili include the
formal business of the meeting, the Manager's prasentation and
questions and answers. The webcast will not epable shareholders
to participate in the meeting or vote, However, shareholders will
be invited to submit questions through our website, by 12.00
noon on 26 July 2021 Questions of a very similar nature may be
greuped together to ensure the orderly running of the AGM.
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Shareholders are asked to consult the website in the period
ieading up to the event where any restrictions or changes will
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitted at that time.

Natice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the "Company™) will be held
at 2.30 pm on 27 july 2021 at the Roval Autormobile Club, 89/91
Pall mal!, London SWTY 5HS for the purpose of tiansacting the
following business:

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resalutions,

of which Resolutions 1 to 11 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 te 14 shall be propesed as Special
Resoiutions.

1 To teceive the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021,

2 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the
part containing the Directors’ remuneration policy) for the vear
ended 31 March 2021,

3 To dedare a final dividend of 9.00p per Ordinary share.
4 Tore-elect Simon Mariison as a Director.

5 To re-elect David Watson as a Director,

6 To re-elect Tirn Gillbanks as @ Direclor.

7 Tore-elect Kate Bolsover as a Directo.

2 To re-elect Sareh-Jane Curtis as a Director.

9 To re-appoint KPMG LLP (the “Auditor”) as Auditors of the
Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next Apnual
General Meeting of the Company.

12 To authorise the Directors to deteimine the remuneration of
the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Grdinary resolution

17 THAT, in substitution for all such existing authorities, the
Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) to exercise all
the powers of the Company to allot shares in the
Company and to grant rights to subscribe for, or to
convert any security inte, shares in the Company up to
a nominal value of £26,181,455 (being aporoximately
33% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at the latest practicable date prior to publication of
this Notice) provided that this authority shall expire
at the date of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company (or, if earlier, at the close of business
on 27 October 2022), save that the Company shal)
be entitled to make offers or agreements before the
expiry of this authority which would or might require
shares to be allotted or rights to be granted after
such expiry and the Directors shall be entitled to allot
shares and grant rights pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as if this authority had not expired.
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS {b) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may

. be paid for any such share shall not be more than the

12 THAT higher of:

{a) (in substitution for all such existing authorities and subject 9 :

to the passing of Resolution 11 set cut above) the directors (1) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
be empowered pursuant to Secticn 570 and Section 573 of for an Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock
the Act io allot equity securities (as defined in Section 560 Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authaority conferred immediately preceding the date on which the Company
by Resolution 11 above and/or to sell shares held by the agrees to buy the shares concerned; and

Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561(1) of
the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided Lhal
this power shall be limited to:

{ii) the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independant bid for an Ordinary
share in the Company on the trading venue where the

(i) the allotment of equity securities and sale of treasury purchase is carried out at the relevant time;
shares for cash in connection with an offer of, or

Invitaticn to apply for, equity securities: {¢) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be

paid for an Qrdinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
(3a) to shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be value per Ordinary share; and

practicable) to thefr existing holdings; and () the avthority hereby conferred shall expire at the

(bb) to holders of other equity securities, as required conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
by the rights of those securities, or as the Board in 2022 (cr, if earlier, at the close of business on 27 October
otherwise considers necessary, 2022), save that the Company shall be entitled to enter

into a contract to purchase Ordinary shares which will, or
may, be completed or executed whelly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase Crdinary
shares pursuant to such contract as iIf the power conferred
hereby had not expired.

and so that the Board may imipose any limits or restiictions
and make any arrangements which it considers necessary
ar appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitlernents, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical
problems in, or under the laws of, any territory or any other
matter; and 1¢ THAT, with effect from the conclusion of this meeting,

the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and
initialled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of
identification be herelry approved and adopted as the Articles
of Association of the Company, in substitution for, and to the
exclusion of, the existing Artictes of Association.

{it) in the case of the authority granted under Resolution
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
for cash, 1o the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph (i} above} of equity securities or sale of
treasury shares up to a neminal amount of £3,966,887
(being approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the notice of meeting),
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(b) the power given by this resolution shall expire upon the Registered Office-

expiry of the authority conferred by Resolution 11 above, Registered in England No: 84492 11-12 Hanover Street
save that the Company shall be entitled to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of such pewer which would
or might require equity securities to be allotted after such W1S 1YG
expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity

securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the

tondon

By Order of the Board

power conferred hereby had not expired. \<\/ Ha i
13 THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and For and on behalf of
unconditionally autherised in accardance with Section 701 Link Company Matters Limited

of the Act to make market purchases (within the Secretary
meaning of Section 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares

of 25p each in the capital of the Company on such terms 3 June 2021
and in such manner as the directors may from time to

time detefmine provided that:

{3) the maximum number of Ordinary shares hereby
autherised to be purchased shall be 14.99% of the
Cormpany’s Ordinary shaies in issue at the date of the
Annual General Meeting (equivalent to 47,570,511 Oidinary
shares of 25p each at 3 June 2027, the latest practicable
date prior to publication of this Notice);
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NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

i A member entitied o attend ang vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice is entitled to appoint ane
of more proxies to exercise all or any of the rights of the
member to attend, speak and vole in his or her place.
Shareholders are strongly encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
person whe may not be permitted to attend the AGM in the
event of restrictions or imits on attendance. A proxy need
not be a shareholder of the Company To appoint more than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photocopied and the
name of the proxy to De appointed indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such proxy is
appointed in respect of Completion and submission of a proxy
instruction will not preclude a member from attending and
voting in person at the AGM {subject to any restrictions on
physical attendance).

To be valid any proxy form ar other instrument appointing

a proxy must be returned by post, by courier or by hand to
the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristc! 8599 67Y, or
alternatively, by going to www.eproxyappoiniment.com
and following the instiuctions provided. All proxies must

be appointed by no later than 48 hours before the time of
the AGM. In the case of joint holders, where more than one
of the joirt holders ourports to appoint a proxy, anly the
appointment submitted by the most seniar holder will be
accepted. Seniority is deteimined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register
in respect of the joint holding (the first named being deemed
the moast senior).

)

In order to be able to attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting {and also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes a person may cast), a person must have

his or her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 2.30 pm on 23 july 2021 (or 6.00 pm on the
date two days before any adjourned meeting). Changes to
entries on the Register of Members after this time shall be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting.

vohing will be conducted an 3 poll at the Meeting. On & poll
vote every shareholder will through their proxy have cne vote
far every ordinary share of which he or she is the halder.

3 Shareholders should note that it is possible that, pursuant to
requests made by shareholders of the Company under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter
relating to: (i) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including
the auditor’s report and the conguct of the audit) that are 1o
be laid before the AGM; ar (i) any circumstance connected
with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since
the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reperts
were |aid in accordance with Section 437 of the Companies
Act 2006.
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The Company may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication fo pay its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where
the Company is required to place a statement on a website
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward
the statement to the Company's auditor not later than the
time when it makes the statement available on the website.
The business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes
any statement that the Company has been required under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a
website,

Any corporation which is a member of the Company <an
appoint one of More coiporate representatives who may
exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a member provided
that they do not do so in relation 1o the same shares,

The right to appoint a proxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on their behalf by another person and who
have been nominated to receive communication from the
Company in accardance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persons”). Nominated persons may have

a right under an agreement with the reqistered shareholder
who holds shares on their behalf to be appointed (or to

have someone else appointed) as a proxy. Alternatively, if
nominated persons do not have such a right, or do not wish
to exercise it, they may have a right under such an agreement
to give instructions te the persen holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting rights.

CREST members who wish to appoint 8 proxy of proxies
through the CRIST electronic proxy appointment service

may do so for the AGM to be held on 27 july 2021 and any
adjournment(s) therecf by using the procedures described in
the (REST Manual. CREST personal members or cther CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider should refer to their CREST
sponsors of voting service provider(s), whe will be able to
take the appropriate action on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by
means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

{3 "CREST Proxy Instruchion”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contain the information requirea for such
instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message
must be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s
agent, Lemputershare Investor Services PLC {CREST Participant
10 3RASD), no later than 48 hours before the time appuinted
for the meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt wili

be taken to be the time f{as determined by the time stamp
applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) fram
which the Company’s agent is able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsor or
voting service provider should note that Euroclear UK & Irefand
Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST
for any particular messages.
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Nutiial systein limings and limitations will therefcre apply

in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the
responsibility of the CREST member concermed to take (or, if
the CREST member is a CREST personal member or sponsored
member of has appointed 3 voting service provider, to procure
that his or her CREST sponsor or voting service provider

takes) such action as shail be necessary to ensure that a
message is transmitted by means of the CRIST system by any
particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CREST sponsor or voting service provider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
wncetting practical lnitations of the CREST system and
timings. The Cormpany may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumnstances set out in Requlation 35{5}(a)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001,

7 Any member attending the meeting {subject o any
restrictions in place at the time of the meeting) has the right
to ask questicns. The Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at
the meeting but no such answer need be given if: (a} to do so
wou'ld interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
or involve the disclosure of confidential information; (b) the
answer has already been given on a website in the form of an
answer to a question; or (¢) it 1s undesirable in the interests
of the Company or the gosd order of the meeting that the
question be answered. Questicns of a very similar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the
AGM. ’

g A copy of this notice, and other information required by
section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found at
WWW.ITDroperty.com.

9 Members satisfying the thresholds in secticn 338 of the
Companies Act 2006 may require the Company to give, to
members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a resclution which those members intend to
move (and which may properly be moved) at the AGM. A
resolution may properly be moved at the AGM unless:

(i) it would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reasen of
any inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s
constitution or otherwise); (i) it is defamatory of any person;
or (i) it Is frivolous or vexatious. A request made pursuant
to this right may be in hard copy or electronic form, must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, must
be authenticated by the person(s) making it and must be
received by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the AgM.

10 Members satisfying the threshalds in section 338A of the
Companies Act 2006 may request the Company to include
in the business to be dealt with at the AGM any matter
{other than a proposed resolution) which may properly be
included in the business at the AGM. A matter may properly
be included in the business at the AGM unless: (i} it is
defamatory of any person; or (il) it is frivolous or vexatious.
A request made pursuant to this right may be in hard copy
or electronic form, must identify the matter to be included in
the business, must be accompanied by a statement selting
out the grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the
person{s) making it and must be received by the Company not
later than six weeks before the date of the AGM.

—
L

Bivgraphical details of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 3% of the Annual Report & Accounts.

As at 3 June 2021 (being the latest practicable day prior

to publication of this Notice), the issued share capital of

the Company is 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each.
Therefore, the total number of voting rights in the Company at
3 June 2027 15 317,350,980.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Management Engagement Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the New Articles of Asscciation and the Letters of
Appointment for directors will be available for inspection for
at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Company’s AGM.

You may not use any electronic address provided gither in
this Notice or any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated.

The Company may process personal data of attendees at the
Annual General Meeting. This may include webcasts, photos,
recording and audio and video links, as well as other forms
of personal data. The Company shall process such personal
data in accordance with its privacy policy, which can found at
https://www.trproperty.com/legal
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Directers’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dividend.

The vole to approve lhe Remuneration Report is advisory anly
and will not require the Company to alter any arrangements
detailed in the report should the resclution not be passed.

The Board is proposing a Fnal dividend for the year ended

31 march 2021 of 9.00p per ordinary share. If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
t0 those shareholders on the Company s register at the close of
business on 18 June 2021.

RESGLUTIONS 4, 5, 6, 7, AND 8: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon Marrison,
Tim Gillbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-Jane
Curtis. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Beard
has determined that each of the directors continues to be
effective and demonstrates their cormmitment to their role.
Their biographical details, which are set out on pages 38 and

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledge to lead the
Company’s long-term sustainable success. Accordingly, the Board
upanimously recommends their re-election.

RESOLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappointment of the Auditers, KPMG
LiR and the authorisation for the directors to determine their
remuneration.

RESOLUTION 11: ALLOTMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL

Qur Board considers it appropriate that an authority be granted

to allot shares in the capital of the Company up to a maximum
nominal amount of £26,445,915 (Ttepresenting approximately one
third of the Company’s issued share capital as at 3 june 2021,
being the latest practical date prior to publication of this Notice of
the meeting) As at the date of this notice the Company does not
hold any shares in treasury.

The directors have no present intention of exercising this
authority and would only expect to use the authority if shares
could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net Asset Value per
share,

This authority will expire at the earlier of close of business
an 27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual Gengral
Meeting of the Coinpany to be held in 2022.
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RESOLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

This resolution would give the directors the authority to allot
shares {or sell any shares which the Company elects to hold
in treasury) for cash without first offering them to existing
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings.

This authority would be limited to allotments of sales in
connection with pre-emptive affers and offers to halders of
other equity securities if required by the rights of those shares
or as the board otherwise considers necessary, of otherwise up
to an aggregate nominal amount of £3,956,887. This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2021, the latest practicable date
priof to publication of this Notice. In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm their intention to follow
the provisions of the Pre-Emption Group's Statermnent of Principles
regarding cumulative usage of autherities within a rolling
3-year period where the Principles pravide that usage in excess
of 7.5% should not take place without prior consultation with
shareholders.

The authority will expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022,

RESOLUTION 13: AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held in 2020, a special resolution was proposed and
passed, giving the directors authority, until the conclusion of the
AGM in 2021, to make market purchases of the Compary’s own
issued shares up to a maximum of 14.99% of the issued share
capital.

Your Board is proposing that they should be given renewed
authority to purchase Qrdinary shares in the market. Your

Board believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropriate times and prices is a suitable method of enhanding
shareholder value. The Company would, within guidelines set
fram time to time by the Board, make either a single purchase or
a serles of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to sharehoiders.

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing Net
Asset Value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset Value

for the remaining shareholders. It is therefere intended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset Value.
Your Board considers that it will be most advantageous to
shareholders for the Company to be able to make such purchases
as and when it considers the timing to be favourable and
therefore does not propose to set a timetable for making any
such purchases.

The Cornpanies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares}
Requlations 2003 enable companies in the United Kingdom ta
hold in treasury any of their own shares they have purchased
with a view to possible resale at a future date, rather than
cancelling them. if the Company does re-purchase any of its
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shares, the directars do nul currently intend to hold any of the
shares re-puichased in treasury. The shares so re-puichased will
continue to be cancelled.

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority limit the maximum
price {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share. It shall nat be more than the higher of:

{1 105% of the average of the middie market quotations for an
Grdinary share 35 taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Offioal List for the five business days iImmediately preceding
the date on which the Company agrees to buy shares
woneeined; dand

(ii) the higher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary share in
the Cemnpany on the trading venue where the purchase is
carried out.

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share {being the nominal value). The Listing Rules also limit

3 histed company to purchases of shares representing up to
15% of 1ts issued share capital in the market pursuant tc a
general authority such as this. For this reason, the Company is
limiting its authority to make such purchases tc 14.99% of the
Company's Ordinary shares in issue at the date of the AGM; this
is equivalent to 47,570,911 Ordinary shares of 25p each {(nominal
value £11,892,727) at 3 June 2027, the latest practicable date
prior te publication this Notice. The authority will last until the
Annual General Mesting of the Company to be held in 2022

RESOLUTION 14: ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

Resolution 14 relates to the aduption of new Articles of
Assaciation (the "New Articles”) in order to update the
Company’s current Articles of Assodiation (the "Current Articles”™,
which were adopted on 14 December 2012, The New Articles
reflect developments in best practice, and provide additienal
clarification and flexibility. The main changes in the MNew Articles
are summarised in the Appendix on pages 104 and 105. Other
changes, which are of a minar, technical or clarifying nature have
not been noted in the Appendix. The New Articles showing all
the changes to the Current Articles are available for inspection,
at www trproperty.com and will also be available at the Annual
General Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained in this Notice
of Annual General Meeting are in the best interests of the
Company and sharehclders as a whole and recommends that you
vote in favour of them as your Directors intend to do in respect of
their beneficial shareholdings.
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigma Shares and Deferred Shares

The New Articles amend the Current Articles to remove
provisions and references relating to Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares. This reflects that on 14 December 2012 all Sigma Shares
were consolidated and redesignated as Qidinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company for
cancellation. The Company now has a single class of Ordinary
Shares.

Untraced shareholders

The New Articles amend the position in relation to untraced
shareholders. Rather than requiring the Company 1o take out
two newspaper advertisements, the New Articles requite the
Company to use reasonable efforts to trace the shareholder,
‘Reasonable efforts” to trace a shareholder may include, if
considered appropriate, the Company engaging a professional
asset reunification company or gther tracing agent to seaich for
3 shareholder who has not kept their shareholdei details up to
date.

In addition, the New Articles provide that money from the sale
of the shares of an untraced shareholder will be forfeited if not
claimed after two years, rather than six years.

These changes reflect best practice and provide the Company
with appropriate flexibility in connection with locating untraced
shareholders.

Sub-division of shares

The New Articles dlarify that any shares resulting from a sub-
division of the Company’s existing shares may, in addition to
having any preference or advantage as compared with the
Company’s other shares, also have deferred or other rights. This
change makes administering any sub-division of shares more
straightforward.

Operation of general meetings

The New Articles contain specific provisions o darify that the
Company can hold “hybrid” general meetings (including annual
general meetings) and to set out how such meetings are to
be conducted. Under the New Articles, the Company may hold
“hybrid” general meetings in such a way that enables members
to attend and participate in the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electronic facility. voting at hybiid meetings will, by detault, be
decided on a poll. lybfid meetings may be adjourned in the
event of a technological faillure.

The New Articles allow the Company, where appropriate, to make
changes to the arrangements for general meetings (including the
introduction, change or cancellation of efectronic faciities) after
notice of the meeting has been issued. The Company may give
notice of any such changes in any manner considered appropriate
(rather than via an advertisernent in two national newspapers).
The New Articles also explicitly allow the Company to introduce
health and safety arrangements at its meetings.

These changes were introduced to provide the Board greater
flexibility to align with technological advances, changes in
investor sentiment and evolving best practice, particularly in light
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of the Covid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duration of social
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings. The Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakenolder engagement over the coming years in a way
that is more canvenient for all parties. Absent exceptional
circumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company in person.
In line with the views expressed by the Investment Associalion
and Institutional Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an electionic basis, so
a physical meeting will still be required. In deciding whether and
how to held a hybrid general meeting in future, the Company
will have regard ta the views of sharehotders and institutional
governance bodies at the relevant time as well as to relevant
guidance or codes of best practice.

The New Articles also spealfically refer to the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of overflow
rooms. Satellite meetings are legally vaiid even without such a
provision but it has been added for clarity.

These changes are primantly contained in articles 47 48, 50
and 53 in the New Articles. A number of other consequential
amendments have been made to the New Articles.

Objections or Errors in Voting

In relation to the statutory requirement that a proxy must vote
in accordance with any nstructions given by the member by
whom the proxy Is appointed, the New Articles state explicitly
that the company is not required to check that proxies and
corporate representatives have voted in accordance with their
instructions or that their fallure to do so would vitiate the result
of a shareholder vote.

Number of directors
The New Articles reflect the statutory mintmurn of twe directors,
and introguce a maximum of 10 directors.

Reappointment of directors

in line with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors ta retire (and should
they wish to remain in office, seek re-election) at each annual
general meeting. This requirement does rat apply to directors in
their first year of appointment who were appointed in the period
between the AGM notice being issued and the AGM itself. This
copfirms existing Company practice.

Directors’ fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggregate of all fees paid

to directors shall not exceed £250.000 per annum. Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £30¢,000 to reflect the
amount approved by resolution of the Company on 22 July 2014.

Borrowing Powers

The New Articles include in the detinition of "borrowings” the
minofity proportion of maoneys borrowed by @ member of the
group and owing to & partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
{with “the minority proportion” meaning a propertion equal (o
the proportion of the issued share capital of a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which 1s not attributable to a member of
the group).



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting coat =

Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

The Current Articles provide that if a dividend or other payment
due to members has not been claimed for twelve years after
being declared or becoming due, it will be forfeited to the
Company. Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this period from
twelve to six years.

Payments of dividends and other amounts

The New Artides give the Board greater flexibility to determine
the appropriate method(s) it pays dividends (and other sums)
to sharcholders. This flexibility will liely e Board take account
of developments in market practice and keep down the
administrative cost of making payments. The New Articles

also provide that where a payment tapngt be made because

a shareholder has not provided valid account details to the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed until the
shareholder provides those details.

Capital Reserve

The New Articles remove Article 132 in the Old Articles, which
was included to ensure that the company quatifies as an
investrnent tiust and is treated as an investment company.
Following the modermisation of the investrnent trust regime and
amendments to legislation abolishing the restriction on the ability
to distribute capital profits, this provision is no longer necessary.

Strategic report and supplementary materials

The Companies Act 2005 and the Companies {Receipt of Accounts
and Reparts) Requlations 2013 allow the Company to send & copy
of its strateqic report with supplementary material instead of

its full accounts to a member whe has elected or tacitly agreed
to receive these documents, provided that the Company is not
prohibited from doing so in its articles. Article 129 is intended to
make it clear thefe is no such prohibition. Shareholders should
note that they can always view the full annual report on the
Company’s website or request 3 hard copy from the Company’s
reqistrar.

Gender Neutral Drafting
The New Articles amend the Current Articles so that gender
neutral language 1s used.

General

Other changes which are ¢f a minor, technical or clarifying nature
or which have been made te remove provisions in the Current
Articles which duplicate English company law are not noted.
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Directors and Other information

DIRECTORS

D Watson (Chairman)
K Bolsaver

5} Curlis

T Gillbanks

S Marrison

REGISTERED OFFICE

3rd Floor
1112 Hanover Street
London W15 1YQ

REGISTERED NUMBER

Registerad as an investment company in England
and wWales No. 84492

AIFM

BMO Investment Business Limited
Exchange House

Primrase Street

London EC2A 2NY

PORTFOLIO MANAGER

Thames River Capital LLP authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority

3rd floor

11-12 Hanaver Street

London W15 1YQ

Telephone: 020 7011 4100

FUND MANAGER
M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

FINANCE MANAGER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
J L Elliott ACA

DEPUTY FUND MANAGER
A Lhonneur

a. C
The Association of
Investment Companies
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DIRECT PROPERTY MANAGER
G P Gay MRICS

SECRETARY

Link Company Matters Limited
6th Floor, 65 Gresham Street
tondon EC2Y 7NQ

REGISTRAR

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions, Biidgwater Road
Bristol BS99 62V

Telephone: (370 707 1355

AUDITOR

KPMG LLP
15 Canada Square
London £14 SGL

STOCKBROKERS

Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited
One, New Change
London ECAM 9AF

Stifel Nicotaus Curope Limited
150 Cheapside
London £C2v 6ET

SOLICITOGRS

Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row
London ECTY 8YY

DEPOSITARY, CUSTODIAN AND FUND
ADMINISTRATOR

BNP Paribas Securities Services
10 Harewood Avenue
London NW1 6AA

WEBSITE
www.rproperty com

TAX ADVISERS

PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Centraf Square South

Orchard Street

Newtastle upon Tyne NET 3A7



General Shareholder Information

RELEASE OF RESULTS

The half year results are announced in late November. The full
year results are anngunced in early June.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The AGM is held in London in July.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATES
Dividends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares as follows:

Interim: January
Final: August

DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers’ Automated Clearing Services); mandate forms for

this purpose are available from the Registrar. Alternatively,
shareholders can write to the Reqgistrar (the address is given on
page 108 of this report) to give their instructions; these must
include the bank account number, the bank account title and the
sort code of the bank to which payments are to be made.

DIVIDEND RE-INVESTMENT PLAN (“DRIP")

TR Property livestment Trust plc offers sharehelders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the Company through
the DRIP Please note that following Brexit shareholders in Europe
are ne longer able to participate in the DRIP. DRIP forms may

be obtained fiom Computershare Investor Services PLC through
their secure website www.investorcentre.co.uk, or by phoning
0370 707 1694, Charges do apply; dealing cormmissicn of 0.75%
(subject lo a3 minimum of £2.50). Government stamp duly of
0.5% alsc applies.

SHARE PRICE LISTINGS

The market prices of the Company’s shares are published daily

in The Financial Times. Some cf the information is published in
other leading newspapers. The Financial Times alse shows figures
for the estimated Net Asset Values and the discounts applicable.

SHARE PRICE INFORMATION

ISIN GRO00S064097
SEDOL 0906409
Bloomberg TRY.LN
Reuters TRY.L
Datastream TRY

BENCHMARK

Details of the benchmark are given in the Strategic Report
on page 24 of this Report and Accounts. The benchmark in dex is
published daily and can be found on Bloombeig;

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Return Index 1n Sterling
Bloomberg: TRORAG Index

INTERNET

Details of the market price and Net Asset Value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company’s website at
www trproperty.com.

Sharenolders who hold their shares in certificated form can check
their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, via www investarcentre.co.uk. Please note that to gain
access to your detaits on the Computershare site you will need
the holder reference number stated on the top left hand carmer of
your share certificate.

DISABILITY ACY

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents issued
by the Company are available from the Company Secretary. If
needed, copies can be made available in a variety of formats,
including Braille, audio tape or larger type as appropriate.

You can contact the Reqistrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, which has installed textphones to allow speech and hearing
impaired people who have their own textphone to contact
them directly. without the need for an intermediate operater, by
dialling 0870 702 0005. Specially trained operators are available
during normal business hours to answer queries via this service.

Alternatively, if you prefer to o through a typetalk’ operator
(provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf Peaple) you
should dial 18001 followed by the number you wish to dial.
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General Shareholder Information ... v- o

NOMINEE SHARE CODE

where notfication has been provided in advance, the Company
will arrange for copfes of shareholder communications to be
provided to the operators of nominee accounts. Nominee
investors may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited to do so by the Chairman.

{GT BASE COST

Taxation of capital gains for sharehoiders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a dispesal of all or part of a shareholder’s holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder’s capital gains
tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in 2007 and the
redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 should be considered.

in respect of the cenversion to Sigma in 2007, agreeiment
was ieached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC") to base
the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost on

the proportion of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder into Sigma shares on Z5 july 2007,

Therefore, if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 jufy 2007, the
capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be equal to 20% of the original capital gains tax base cost
of the Qrdipary shares that they held pre-conversion. The base
cost of their remaining holding of Ordinary shares would then be
80% of the original capital gains tax base cost of their Grdinary
shares held pre-conversion.

As patt of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into Ordinary
shares in Decernber 2012, a further shareholder's agreement
was reached with HMRC that a shareholders capital gains tax
base cost in their new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
their capital gains base cost w1 the pre-existing Sigma shares
(l.e. their capital gains base cost under the existing agreement if
applicabie).

It it doubt as to the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders should consult with their own professional advisors.
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

MARKET PURCHASES

The shares of TR Property Investment Trust plc are [isted and
traded on the tondon Stock Exchange. Investars may purchase
shares through their stockbroker, bank or gther financial
intermediary.

HOLDING SHARES IN CERTIFICATED FORM

livestors may hold their investment in certificated form. Cur
registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
investors to buy and sell shares quickly and easily online withnuit
a broker or the need to open 3 trading account. Alternatively the
Investor Centre allows investors to manage portfolios quickly and

securely, update details and view balances without annual charges.

Further details are available by contacting Computershare on 0370
707 1355 or visit www.computershare.com.

TR Property Investment Trust plc now offers shareholders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the company through
the Dividend Re-investment Plan ("DRIP”) through the registrar,
Computershare. Shareholders can obtain further informaticn on
the DRIP through their secure website www.investorcentre.co.uk,
or by phoning 0370 707 1694. Charges do apply. Please note

that to gain access to your details of register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the helder reference number
stated on the top left hand corner of your share certificate.

SAVING SCHEMES, ISAS AND OTHER PLANS

A number of Banks and wealth management organisations
provide Savings Schemes and ISAs through which UK clients can
invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc.

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge dealing and other
fees for operating the accounts, and investors should read the
Terms and Conditions provided by these companies and ensure
that the charges best suit their planned investment profile. iMost
schemes carry annual charges but these vary between provider
and preduct. Where dealing charges apply, in scme cases these
are applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as a
flat charge. The optimum way to hold the shares will be different
for each investor depending upon the frequency and size of
investments to be made.

Details are given below of two providers offering shares in
TR Property Investment Trust, but there are many other options

interactive investor (ii)

Interactive investor provide and administer a range of self-select
investment plans, ncluding tax-advantaged ISAs and SIPPs
(Self-Invested Personal Pension), and Trading Accounts.

For more information, interactive investor can be contacted on
0345 607 60071, or by visiting https://www.ii.co.uk/

Interactive investor offer investors in TR Property and other
investment trusts a free gpt-in online shareholder voting and
information service that enables investors to receive shareholder
communications and, if they wish, to vate on the shareholdings
held in their account.

TR Preperty is also on the interactive super 60 rated list.

BMO Asset Management Limited (“8MQ")

BMO offer a number of Private investor Plans, Investment Trust
and Junior 1SAs and Children's Investment Plans. Investments
can be made as lump sums or through regular savings. lor more

information see inside the back cover. BMO can be contacted on
0200 136 420, or visit www.bmogam.com.

Please remember that the value of your investments and any
income from them may go down as well as up. Past performance
is not a guide to future performance. You may not get back

the amount that you invest. If you are in any doubt as to the
suitability of a plan or any investment available within a plan,
please take professional advice.

Saving Schemes and 1SAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS) BNP Paribas

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred to the
interactive investor platform on 14th October 2019,

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of their business that
operated Savings Schemes and 1SAs. Investors were given the
choice of transferring their schemes to Alliance Trust Savings
("ATS™) or to a provider of their own choice, or te close their
accounts and sell the heoldings.

if investors did not respond to the letters from BNP Paribas, their
accounts were transferred to ATS.

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred to the
interactive investor platform on 14 October 2019,

SHARE FRAUD AND BOILER ROOM SCAMS

Shareholders in a number of investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are infermed

of an opportunity to sell their shares as the company is

subject to a takeover bid. This is not true and is an attempt to
defraud shareholders. The share fraud also seeks payment of 3
“‘tommission” by shareholders to the parties carrying cut the fraud.

Shareholders should remain alert to this type of scam and treat
with suspicion any contact by telephone offering an attractive
investrment oppertunity, such as a prernium price for your shares,
or an atternpt to convince you that payment is required in order
to refease a settlernent for your shares. These frauds may also
offer to sell your shares in companies which have little or no
value or may offer you bonus shares. These so called “boiler
room” scams can also involve an attempt to obtain your personal
and/or banking information with which to commit identity fraud.

The caller may be friendly and reassuring or they may take a
more urgent tene, encouraging you to act quickly otherwise you
could lose money or miss out on a deal.

If you have been contacted by an unauthorised firm regarding
your shares the FCA would like to hear frem you. You can report
an unauthorised firm using the FCA helpline on 080C 111 6768 or
by visiting their website, which also has other useful information,
at www fca.org.uk.

If you receive any unsclicited investment advice make sure you

‘get the correct name of the persen and organisation. If the calls

persist, hang up. If you deal with an unauthorised finm, you will
not be eligible to receive payment under the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme.

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone calls of such a nature to
shareholders.
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How 1o Invest

One of the most convenient ways 1o invest in TR Property Investrent Trust plas through one of the savings plans iun by BMO.

BMO ISA CHARGES

Annual management charges and other charges apply according to

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual tax-
the type of plan.

efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current
tax year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings ANNUAL ACCOUNT CHARGE

from £25 a month. You can also transfer any existing 1SA: £60+VAT
iSAs 10 us whifst maintaining the tax benefits. GlA: £40+VAT
JISA/JIASCTF: £25+VAT
BMO JUNIOR ISA (JISA)" You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
A tax efficient way to invest up 10 £9,000 per tax year {in gddition to any annual subscription limits).
for a child. Contributions start from £100 furmp sum or DEALING CHARGES

£25 a month. Ji5As or CTFs with other providers can be

transterred 10 BMO. £12 per fund (feduced to £0 for deals placed through the online BMO

Investor Portal} for ISA/GIA/JLA and )1SA_ There are no dealing charges

on 3 Tk
BMO CHILD TRUST FUND (CTF)”

tt your child already has a CTF you can invest up to

£9.000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25

a month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred Government stamp_duty of 0.5% also applies on the purchase of
1o BMO. shares (where applicable).

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of monthiy direct debits.

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you may
BMO GENERAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (GIA) nat get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend on your
. . . . individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules may change.
This s a flexible way to invest in our ra{lge Please ensure you have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy
of Invesiment Trusts. There are no maximum Palicy and relevant Key Features documents befare investing, For
COnUibUlionS, and investments can be made from £100 ;ggu!a!o[y purposes, P&E‘BSE ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost §

lurnp sum or £25 a month. Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Documents {KIDs) for the investment trusts

BMO JUNIOR INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (j!l-\) you want to invest into,

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our HOW TO INVEST

range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under i ) ) ) o
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficial Gnhine applications are not gvailable i you are transferring an existing
owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain plan with another provider to BMO, of if you are applying for s new
control over the investment. Investments can be made plan in more than cne name but paper applications are available at
ffom a £100 lump sum of £2‘5 2 month per accounta bmoinvestments.co.uk/documents or by contacting BMO.

You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any NEW CUSTOMERS

To open a new BMO plan, apply online at bmogam.com/apply

time from £100 per account, Call. 0800 136 420™7 (% 2 37y = 3¢ vz < :
" X 5z
“The CTF and JISA atcounts are opened by parents in the child's name Frral mfa@bmogam.com - ;
and they have access to the money at age 18 “"Calls mey be recorded or Zm
maonitored for Wraining and quality purposes. EXISTING PLAN HOLDERS g §
Call: 0345 600 3030°7 57 s 7007 v adant g%
- . Emall:  investor.enquiries@bmogam.com .
-l bmomnvestments.co.uk By pOSt: 5. m g eters
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0345 600 3030, 900arm - 5.00pm, weekdays, alls may be TP

recorded or monitored for training and quality purposes. You €an also invest in the trust through online dealing platforras for

private investors that offer share dealing and 1SAs. Companies include:
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre
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How to Invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plgis through wvae ol ik savings plans run by BMmO.

BMO ISA

You can use your 15A allowance to make an annual tax-
efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax year
with a lump sum from £10¢ or regufar savings from £25 a
maenth. You can also transfer any existing 1SAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO Junior ISA (JISA)®

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,060 per tax year for

a child. Contrihutians start from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be transferred
to BMO.

BMO Lifetime ISA (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. Invest
up 10 £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 of regular savings from £25 a month.

BMO Child Trust Fund {CTF)"

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £9,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump surn or £25 a month.,(TFs
with other providers can be transferred to BMO.

BMO General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and investments
can be made from £106 lump sum or £25 a month.

BMO junior Investment Account (JIA)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our range of
Investment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions,
and the plan can easily be set up under bare trust (where
the child is noted as the beneficial owner) or kept in your
name if you wish to retain control over the investment,
investments can be made from a £100 lump sum or £25 a
month per account. You can also make additional lump sum
top-ups at any time from £100 per account.

“The CTF and JISA accounts are opened by parents in the child’s name
and they have access 10 the money at age 18. **Calls may ke recorded or
monitored for training and quality purposes.

BMO )

BMO Asset Management Limited

Charges

Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan.

Annual account charge
ISA/LISA: £60+VAT

GiA: £40+VAT
JISA/JIAJCTF: £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
{in addition te any annual subscription limits).

Dealing charges

£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deals placed through the online BMO
Investor Portal) for ISA/GIA/USA/JIA and JISA, There are no dealing
charges on a CTF.

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of monthly direct debits.
Government stamp duty of 0.5% also applies on the purchase of
shares (where applicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you may

not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend on your
individual arcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change.
Please ensure you have read the full Terms ang Conditions, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key Features documents before investing. For
requlatory purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Docurnents (KIDs) for the investment trusts
you want to invest into.

How to Invest

To open a new BMO plan, apply oniine at bnogam.com/apply
Online applications are not available if you are transferring an existing
plan with another provider to BMO, or if you are applying for 2 new
plan in more than one name but paper applications are available at
brmoinvestments.co.uk/decuments ar by contacting BMO.

New Customers

Call: 0800 136 4207 (8.30am - 5.30pm, weekdays)
Ernail: info@bmogam.com

Existing Plan Holdess
Call: 0345 600 30307% (9.00am - 5.00pm, weekdays)
email: investor.enquiries@bmogam.com
By post: BMO Administration Centre
PO Box 11114

Chetmsford
CM39 2DG

You can also invest in the trust through online dealing platforms for
private investors that offer share dealing and ISAs. Companies include:
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC,
Interactive [nvestor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

L. bmoinvestments.co.uk

f facebook.com/bmoinvestmentsuk

& 0345 600 3030, 9.00am - 5.00pm, weekdays, calls may be
recorded or monitored for training and quality purposes.

BMO Asset Managerment Limited 13 authorised and requiated by the financial Condoct Authority and is 7 member of BMO Global Asset Management EMEA of which the ulumate parent
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